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PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this Annual Report the words or pledséll likely result”, "are expected to", "will edinue”, "is anticipated", "estimat
"project" or similar expressions are intended teniify "forwardiooking statements" within the meaning of the Rev&ecurities Litigatic
Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are subjecettin risks and uncertainties. By identifyinggh forwardeoking statements for you
this manner, the Company is alerting you to thesipdty that its actual results and financial cdéimh may differ, possibly materially, fro
the anticipated results and financial conditionigated in these forwarlboking statements. Important factors that couldseathe Company
actual results and financial condition to diffesrfr those indicated in the forward-looking stateraémtiude, among others:

« Credit quality and the effect of credit quality thre adequacy of our allowance for loan losses;

« Deterioration in financial markets that may resulimpairment charges relating to our securitiegfpto;

« Competition in our primary market areas;

- Significant government regulations, legislation godential changes thereto;

o A reduction in our ability to generate or originatvenueproducing assets as a result of compliance witlghtened capit
standards

« Increased cost of operations due to greater regylaversight, supervision and examination of baskd bank holding compani
and higher deposit insurance premiu

« Limitations on our ability to expand consumer prodand service offerings due to anticipated strictmsumer protection laws &
regulations; an

« Other risks described herein and in the other teord statements we file with the SEC.

These risks and uncertainties should be considaredaluating forwardeoking statements and undue reliance should nqildeed on suc
statements. The Company wishes to caution read¢r® place undue reliance on any such forwaodking statements, which speak onl
of the date made. The Company wishes to advistersdhat the factors listed above could affectGbenpany's financial performance |
could cause the Company's actual results for fytareds to differ materially from any opinionssiatements expressed with respect to fi
periods in any current statements. Additionally statements in this document, including forwémdking statements, speak only as of
date they are made, and the Company undertakelligation to update any statement in light of nefoimation or future events.

ITEM 1: BUSINESS
GENERAL
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a Mang corporation headquartered in Oswego, New Y@rkOctober 16, 2014, the Comp.
completed its conversion from the mutual holdingnpany ("MHC") structure and the related public affg and is now a stock holdi
company that is fully owned by the public the "Cersion". As a result of the Conversion, the muh@ting company and former mtabr
holding company were merged into Pathfinder Banchrp. The primary business of the Company isntestment in Pathfinder Bank (
"Bank™) which is 100% owned by the Company and @wmnpany is 100% owned by public shareholders. Chmpany sold a total
2,636,053 shares of common stock, par value ofl$ped share, in the subscription offering, inclgdif05,442 shares sold to the Pathfil
Bank employee stock ownership plan ("ESOP"). Alrels were sold at a price of $10.00 per sharenta826.4 million in gross proceec
Additionally, $197,000 in cash was received froma therger of MHC into the company; and after acdagrfor Conversion related expen
of $1.5 million, which offset gross proceeds, thempany received $24.9 million in net proceeds. c@orent with the completion of t
offering, publicly owned shares of Pathfinder Bampcdnc., a federal corporation, "Pathfindezeeral”, were exchanged for 1.6472 shar
the Company's common stock. At December 31, 2@#ishareholders, including the ESOP, collectiviebld 4,352,203 shares of Comp
common stock. In 2011, in connection with PathéinBederal's redemption of TARP, Pathfinfederal sold 13,000 shares of prefe
stock to the U.S. Treasury for $13.0 million in ggroceeds as part of the SBLF program. The Coyngechanged on a one-fone basi
its preferred stock for Pathfind&ederal's preferred stock with the same rights @idleges to the U.S. Treasury in connection wtk
Conversion. At December 31, 2014, the Company ahdidiaries had total consolidated assets of $561llibn, total deposits of $41E
million and shareholders' equity of $68.8 milliolug a noncontrolling interest of $414,000, whiclpresents the 49% not owned by
Company as a result of the 2013 acquisition ofiteGibbons Agency, LLC.

The Company's executive office is located at 214WVFast Street, Oswego, New York and the telephamaber at that address is (315) 343-
0057. Its internet address is www.pathfinderbamok.c Information on our website is not and should n@tconsidered to be a part of
report.
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Pathfinder Bank

The Bank is a New Yorkhartered stock savings bank and its deposit atsare insured up to applicable limits by the F@h@ugh th
Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF"). The Bank is subjecextensive regulation by the New York State &émpent of Financial Services (
"Department”), as its chartering agency, and byRB¢C, as its deposit insurer and primary fedeegutator. The Bank is a member of
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLBNY") argldubject to certain regulations by the Federal élaman Bank System.

The Bank is primarily engaged in the business theting deposits from the general public in thenlBs market area, and investing s
deposits, together with other sources of funddpams secured by residential real estate, commewah estate, small business loans,
consumer loans. The Bank invests a portion cdistsets in securities issued by the United Stategi@ment and its agencies and spons
enterprises, state and municipal obligations, c@feodebt securities, mutual funds, and equity r#est The Bank also invests

mortgagebacked securities primarily issued or guaranteedlbiyed States Government sponsored enterprisesaltateralized mortgay

obligations. The Bank's principal sources of fuads capital, deposits, principal and interest payi: on loans and investments, as we
borrowings from correspondent financial institusonThe principal source of income is interest oank and investment securities.
Bank's principal expenses are interest paid ongiep@mployee compensation and benefits, datapsing and facilities.

Pathfinder Bank also owns and operates a limiteghgae commercial bank subsidiary, Pathfinder ComiakeBank, which serves t
depository needs of municipalities and public ésgitn its market area.

The Bank has Pathfinder REIT, Inc., a New York cogpion, as its whollyewned real estate investment trust subsidiary Décember 3:
2014, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. held $14.8 million irortgages and mortgage related assets. All disaesn this Form 10 relating to th
Bank's loans and investments include loans andstments that are held by Pathfinder REIT, Inc.

The Bank also has 100% ownership of Whispering Qadegelopment Corp., a New York corporation, thatdtained in case the neec
operate or develop foreclosed real estate emerges.

Additionally, the Bank has 100% ownership of Pattiér Risk Management Company, Inc. which was dsted to record the 51
controlling interest upon the December 2013 purelidghe FitzGibbons Agency, an Oswego County pitgpnd casualty and life and he:
insurance brokerage business with approximatel) & in annual revenues.

Finally, the Company has a neonsolidated Delaware statutory trust subsidiaaghfhder Statutory Trust I, of which 100% of tbemmor
equity is owned by the Company. Pathfinder Stayuoust Il was formed in connection with the issoa of $5.2 million in trust preferr
securities.




Table of Contents

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank had 112 full-tiemeployees and 19 paithe employees. The employees are not represdntes
collective bargaining unit and we consider ourtieteship with our employees to be good.

MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION
Market Area

We provide financial services to individuals, faiesl, small to midsize businesses and municipalities through ourrsbvanch offices locats
in Oswego County and our one branch office in OmgradCounty and our business banking office in SysacNew York that opened in
third quarter of 2014. Our primary market are®&vego and Onondaga Counties. Our primary lendiatket area includes both Osw
and Onondaga Counties. However, our primary démgmsierating area is concentrated in Oswego Coantlythe areas surrounding
Onondaga County branch.

The economy in Oswego County is based primarilyn@mufacturing, energy, production, heath care, &iilut, and government. The broe
Central New York market has a more diverse arragoohomic sectors, including, food processing petdo and transportation, in addit
to financial services. The region has developediquéar strength in emerging industries such as-pbcessing, medical devices
renewable energy.

Median home prices are consistent with the pomrdagjrowth and unemployment figures above, with2B&2 United States census re
indicating that median home values were $131,700nondaga County and $92,500 in Oswego County.léNfume values have stagn:
since 2008, the Syracuse metro area, including @agn and Oswego Counties, did not experience gmefisant loss of value during t
economic recession that many other areas of thetgoexperienced.

Competition

Pathfinder Bank encounters strong competition bothattracting deposits and in originating real tstand other loans. Our most dil
competition for deposits and loans comes from coroiaebanks, savings institutions and credit unionseur market area, including money-
center banks such as JPMorgan Chase & Co. and &afsknerica, regional banks such as M&T Bank, KeynB&ational Association al
First Niagara Bank, N.A., and community banks sastiNBT Bank and Community Bank N.A., all of whicavie greater total assets thar
do. We compete for deposits by offering depositofsgh level of personal service, a wide rangearhpetitively priced financial servici
and a well distributed network of branches, ATMsd alectronic banking. We compete for loans thioogr competitive pricing, o
experienced and active loan officers, local knog&df our market and local decision making, stroognmunity support and involvem
and a highly reputable brand. As the economy hgsdved, and loan demand has increased, compefitoom financial institutions fc
commercial and residential loans has increasedlitiddally, some of our competitors offer produatsl services that we do not offer, suc
trust services and private banking. Our primarguiis to build and develop profitable consumer eoachmercial customer relationsh
while maintaining our role as a community bank.

As of June 30, 2014, based on FDIC data, we hathtest market share in Oswego County, represeB816% of all deposits, and 0.6%
all deposits in Onondaga County. In addition, whembining both Oswego and Onondaga Counties, we tie eighth largest market st
of sixteen institutions, representing 4.5% of thtaltmarket.
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LENDING ACTIVITIES
General

Historically, our primary lending activity is origiating one- to foufamily residential real estate loans, the majooityvhich have fixed ratt
of interest. Our loan portfolio also includes coernial real estate loans, commercial and munidgeais, home equity loans and junior li
and consumer loans.

Historically, we have retained in our portfolio mag the loans that we have originated and in theent and prolonged low interest 1
environment, a significant portion of our loan folib consists of fixed-rate one- to fofmmily residential real estate loans with term
excess of 15 years. In order to diversify our lpartfolio, increase our income sources and makdaaur portfolio less interest rate sensit
in recent years, we have sought to significantbréase our commercial real estate and commercshéss lending, consistent with safe
sound underwriting practices. Accordingly, we oféeljustable-rate commercial mortgage loans, shattraediumterm mortgage loans, a
floating rate commercial loans. In addition, wdeofshorterterm consumer loans, home equity loans and linesredit with adjustab
interest rates and municipal loans with fixed iagtrates.

Residential Real Estate Loans

Historically, our primary lending consisted of drigting one- to four-family, owneasecupied residential mortgage loans, substantallypf
which were secured by properties located in ourketasirea. Over the past several years, we havenktegshift our lending focus towal
originating commercial real estate and commerociahs.

We currently offer one- to fouiamily residential real estate loans with termda@B0 years that are generally underwritten acogrtth Fanni
Mae guidelines, and we refer to loans that conféonsuch guidelines as "conforming loans." We galheroriginate both fixed-anc
adjustablerate mortgage loans in amounts up to the maximumfiocming loan limits as established by the Fedel@lising Finance Agenc
which as of March 31, 2014 was generally $417,@080single-family homes in our market area. We galhehold our one- to foufamily
residential real estate loans in our portfolio. W&o originate one- to four-family residential reatate loans secured by n@wner occupie
properties. However, we generally do not make lgarscess of 80% loan to value on non-owner o@aliproperties.

Our fixed-rate one- to fouiamily residential real estate loans include lota generally amortize on a monthly basis oveiogerbetween 1
to 30 years. Fixed rate one- to fdamily residential real estate loans often remaitstanding for significantly shorter periods thaeil
contractual terms because borrowers have thetagietfinance or prepay their loans.

Our adjustable-rate one- to fofamily residential real estate loans generally &insf loans with initial interest rates fixed fone, three, «
five years, and annual adjustments thereafterratexied based on changes in the pa&r United States Treasury bill constant matustg.
Our adjustableate mortgage loans generally have an interestadjiestment limit of 200 basis points per adjustmeith a maximur
lifetime interest rate adjustment limit of 600 wapbints. In the current low interest rate envinemt, we have not originated a signific
dollar amount of adjustable-rate mortgage loans.

Although adjustable-rate one- to folamily residential real estate loans may reduceantcextent, our vulnerability to changes in me
interest rates because they periodicallypriee, as interest rates increase the required paigrdue from a borrower also increase (subje
rate caps), thereby increasing the potential féaudeby the borrower. At the same time, the &pitif the borrower to repay the loan and
marketability of the underlying collateral may bavarsely affected by higher interest rates. Upwadlistments of the contractual inte
rate are also limited by our maximum periodic afetime rate adjustments.
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Regulations limit the amount we may lend relativeéhte appraised value of the real estate secunmdptin, as determined by an apprais
the property at the time the loan is originatedr Iborrowers who do not obtain private mortgageriasce ("PMI"), our lending policies lin
the maximum loan-to-value ratio on both fixed-rated adjustableate mortgage loans to 80% of the appraised valubeocollateralize
property, with the exception for a limited use protwhich allows for loans up to 90% with no PMAor most one- to foufamily residentie
real estate loans with loan-t@due ratios of between 80% and 95%, we requirebtireower to obtain private mortgage insurancer fist
mortgage loan products, we require the borroweshi@in title insurance. We also require homeownagsirance, fire and casualty, anc
necessary, flood insurance on properties secugag estate loans. We do not, and have never dfferénvested in, one- to fodiamily
residential real estate loans specifically desigioedorrowers with sub-prime credit scores, in@hgdinterestonly, negative amortization
payment option adjustable-rate mortgage loans.

Our one- to fourfamily residential real estate loan portfolio alsoludes residential constructions loans. Ourdesiial construction loa
generally have initial terms of up to six monthsbject to extension, during which the borrower paysrest only. Upon completion
construction, these loans convert to permanentslo@ur construction loans generally have ratestands comparable to residential |
estate loans that we originate.

Commercial Real Estate Loans

Over the past several years, we have focused gmating commercial real estate loans, and we belibat commercial real estate loans
continue to provide growth opportunities for us.e \Wxpect to increase, subject to our underwritiggdards and market conditions,
business line in the future with a target loan si£&100,000 to $1.5 million to small businessed egal estate projects in our market ¢
Commercial real estate loans are made up of loatigsd by properties such as multi-family residgnoffice, retail, warehouse and owner-
occupied commercial properties.

Commercial real estate loans are generally sedayqutoperty located in our primary market area.r @mmercial real estate underwrit
policies provide that such real estate loans magaée in amounts up to 80% of the appraised vditieeoproperty. Commercial real es
loans are offered with interest rates that aredfiker up to three or five years then are adjustdizleed on the FHLBNY advance r.
Contractual maturities generally do not exceed €ary. In reaching a decision whether to make anmneial real estate loan, we cons
gross revenues, operating trends, net cash flovikeoproperty, the borrower's expertise and crediory, and the appraised value of
underlying property. We will also consider the terand conditions of the leases and the credit tyualithe tenants. We generally req
that the properties securing these real estates|bane debt service coverage ratios (the raticaofiegs before interest, taxes, deprecit
and amortization divided by interest expense andeat maturities of long term debt) of at least #0Environmental due diligence
generally conducted for commercial real estate doahypically, commercial real estate loans madeadiporations, partnerships and o
business entities require personal guaranteesehyrthcipals and by the owners of 20% or more eftibrrower.

A commercial real estate borrower's financial ctindiis monitored on an ongoing basis by requinagiodic financial statement upda
payment history reviews, property inspections aadaglic face-tadface meetings with the borrower. We generally megborrowers wit
aggregate outstanding balances exceeding $1000@0vide annual updated financial statements addrfl tax returns. These requirem
also apply to all guarantors on these loans. We edquire borrowers to provide an annual repoihcdme and expenses for the propi
including a rent-roll, as applicable.

Loans secured by commercial real estate generalig greater credit risk than one- to féamily residential real estate loans. The incrd
credit risk associated with commercial real estaa@s is a result of several factors, includingidarloan balances concentrated with a lirr
number of borrowers, the impact of local and genecanomic conditions on the borrower's abilityrépay the loan, and the increa
difficulty of evaluating and monitoring these typgfdoans. Furthermore, the repayment of loansreetby commercial real estate prope
typically depends upon the successful operatiothefreal property securing the loan. If the cdskv ffrom the property is reduced,
borrower's ability to repay the loan may be impairédowever, commercial real estate loans genetallye higher interest rates than Ic
secured by one- to four-family residential reahesst
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Commercial Loans

We typically originate commercial loans, includiogmmercial term loans and commercial lines of d¢rexdi the basis of a borrower's abi
to make repayment from the cash flow of the bormswveusiness, conversion of current assets in deal course of business (for seas
working capital lines), the experience and stabibit the borrower's management team, earnings giiofes and the underlying assumptic
and the value and marketability of any collateeadwsing the loan. As a result, the availabilityfurfids for the repayment of commercial Ic
and commercial lines of credit may be substantiddpendent on the success of the business itstlfh@ngeneral economic environmer
our market area. Therefore, commercial loans antheercial lines of credit that we originate haveager credit risk than one- to fofamily
residential real estate loans or, generally, corsuoans.

Commercial term loans are typically secured by jepeint, furniture and fixtures, inventory, accouiseivable or other business assets, 1
limited circumstances, such loans may be unsecufgdm time to time, we also originate commercizhrs through Small Busine
Administration ("SBA") and United States DepartmehtAgriculture ("USDA") guaranteed loan program®ver the past several years,
have focused on increasing our commercial lendimd) @ur business strategy is to continue to increaseoriginations of our commerc
loans to small businesses in our market area, stulgi@ur underwriting standards and market cood#i Our commercial loans are genel
comprised of adjustable interest rate loans, indeégethe prime rate, with terms consisting of threseven years, depending on the nee
the borrower and the useful life of the underlyicgllateral. We make commercial loans to businesgesating in our market area
purchasing equipment, property improvements, bgsirexpansion or working capital. If a commercgan is secured by equipment,
maturity of a term loan will depend on the usefid bf the equipment purchased, the source of megay for the loan and the purpose of
loan. We generally obtain personal guaranteesuoc@ammercial loans.

Our commercial lines of credit are typically adalsle rate lines, indexed to the prime interest. r@enerally, our commercial lines of cre
are secured by business assets or other colladéamchigenerally payable alemand pursuant to an annual review. Since thermuial line:
of credit may expire without being drawn upon, th&al committed amounts do not necessarily repieséure cash requirements.

Tax-exempt Municipal and Commercial Loans

Tax-exempt municipal and commercial loans are a sneetfippnent of our commercial loan product segmerttDécember 31, 2014, loz
outstandings in this category were $7.2 milliorB&% of our total commercial loan portfolio.

We make municipal loans to local governments andicipalities for the purposes of either tax antatipn or for small spending projec
including equipment acquisitions and constructioojgrts. Our municipal loans are generally fixéd, a term of one year or less, and
generally unsecured. Interest earned on munitiaais is tax exempt for federal tax purposes, whiahances the overall yield on each Ic
Generally, the municipality will have a depositatgnship with us along with the lending relatioipsh

We also make tagrxempt loans to commercial borrowers based on afidigs issued by a state or local authority to jg@veconomi
development such as the state dormitory authority.

Home Equity Loans and Junior Liens

Home equity loans and junior liens are made upras| of credit secured by owner-occupied and nonesvoccupied one- to fodamily
residences and second and third real estate mertgags.

Home equity loans and home equity lines of creditgenerally underwritten using the same critdrat tve use to underwrite one- to four-
family residential mortgage loans. We typicallygomate home equity loans and home equity linesretlit on the basis of the applica
credit history, an assessment of the applicanflgyatn meet existing obligations and paymentstba proposed loan, and the value of
collateral securing the loan. Home equity loamsaifered with fixed interest rates. Lines of dtede offered with adjustable rates, which
indexed to the prime rate, and with a draw peribdpmto 10 years and a payback period of up to €&y, The loan-tealue ratio for oL
home equity loans is generally limited to 80% witembined with the first security lien, if applicabl The loan to value of our home eq
lines of credit are generally limited to 80%, usldézathfinder Bank holds the first mortgage. Iflvedd the first mortgage, we will permi
loan to value of up to 90%, and we adjust the @gerate and underwriting standards to compeneatdd additional risk.
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For all first lien position mortgage loans, we ws#side independent appraisers. For second positmrtgage loans where we also hold
existing first mortgage, we will use the lesseth# existing appraisal amount used in underwritirggfirst mortgage or assessed value. Fi
other second mortgage loans, we will use a thady service which gathers all data from real proptax offices and gives the proper
low, middle and high value, together with similaoperties for comparison. The middle value frora thirdparty service will be the val
used in underwriting the loan. If the valuation hoat for the loan amount requested does not pravidalue, or the value is not sufficien
support the loan request and it is determinedtti@borrower(s) are credit worthy, a full appraisdl be ordered.

Home equity loans and junior liens secured by jumortgages have greater risk than one- to faomly residential mortgage loans sect
by first mortgages. We face the risk that theatelial will be insufficient to compensate us foarlolosses and costs of foreclosure,

repayment of the senior mortgages, if applicablée/customers default on their loans, we attempidxk out the relationship in order
avoid foreclosure because the value of the coddhteny not be sufficient to compensate us for thewnt of the unpaid loan and we may
unsuccessful in recovering the remaining balanom fthose customers. Moreover, decreases in restkeestlues could adversely affect
ability to fully recover the loan balance in theeat of a default.

Consumer Loans

We are authorized to make loans for a variety ofq@eal and consumer purposes and consists primardyitomobile, recreational vehic
and unsecured personal loans, as well as unsetinesdof credit and loans secured by deposit adsou®ur procedure for underwriti
consumer loans includes an assessment of the apydicredit history and ability to meet existifgigations and payments for the propc
loan, as well as an evaluation of the value ofcthitateral security, if any.

Consumer loans generally entail greater risk thae @o fourfamily residential mortgage loans, particularlythe case of loans that .
unsecured or are secured by assets that tend teaikge in value, such as automobiles. As a resattsumer loan collections are prima
dependent on the borrower's continuing financiabiity and thus are more likely to be adverselieeted by job loss, divorce, illness
personal bankruptcy. In these cases, repossesBatt@l for a defaulted consumer loan may novjoi® an adequate source of repaymer
the outstanding loan, and the remaining value altees not warrant further substantial collectidiort$ against the borrower.

Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales and Servicing

We benefit from a number of sources for our loagioations, including real estate broker referrabsisting customers, borrowers, build
attorneys, and "walka" customers. Our loan origination activity miag affected adversely by a rising interest ratérenment which ma
result in decreased loan demand. Other factorsh ss the overall health of the local economy aadhpetition from other financi
institutions, can also impact our loan originatiomdthough we originate both fixed-rate and adji¢rate loans, our ability to generate €
type of loan depends upon borrower demand, manketdst rates, borrower preference for fixed- veemdjustableate loans, and the inter
rates offered on each type of loan by other lendtesur market area. These lenders include comaldbanks, savings institutions, cre
unions, and mortgage banking companies that alseejccompete for local real estate loans. Accogtli, the volume of loan originatio
may vary from period to period.
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The majority of the fixed rate residential loanatthre originated each year meet the underwritiidaiines established by Fannie Mae. W
infrequent, in the past, we have sold residentiaitgage loans in the secondary market, and we raapodn the future, although we contii
to service loans once they are sold.

From time to time, although infrequent, we may pase loan participations in which we are not ttael leender. In these circumstances
follow our customary loan underwriting and appropalicies. We also have participated out portiohtoans that exceeded our loansetoe
borrower legal lending limit and for risk diversiéition. We do not purchase whole loans.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority

Pathfinder Bank's lending activities follow writtemon-discriminatory underwriting standards and loan iodgjon procedures established
management and the board of directors. Our psliaie designed to provide loan officers with gurded on acceptable levels of risk, give
broad range of factors. The loan approval protesgended to assess the borrower's ability tayepe loan, the viability of the loan and
adequacy of the value of the property that willseahe loan, if applicable.

The board of directors grants loan officers indidtlending authority to approve extensions of itredhe level of authority for loan office
varies based upon the loan type, total relationdoipn of collateral and risk rating of the borraw&ach loan officer is charged with
responsibility of achieving high credit standardsdividual lending authority can be increased,psmgled or removed by the boarc
directors, as recommended by the President or 6¥ite President and Chief Credit Officer.

If a loan is in excess of any individual loan offits lending authority, the extension of credit trhesreferred to the Officer Loan Commit!
which currently consists of the President (senasgchairman), the Senior Vice President and Chiefli€ Officer, and the Senior Vi
President and General Counsel. The President teayappoint additional members to the Officer L&ommittee, including members of
management team and Pathfinder Bank's retail amunegcial lenders. The Officer Loan Committee hatharity to approve an extensior
total credit up to $1.0 million for one- to fowesidential real estate loans, $1.0 million for coencial real estate loans, $1.0 million
commercial loans, $1.0 million for unrated munitifzmns, $2.0 million for rated municipal loans,.$illion for home equity and juni
liens and $1.5 million for consumer loans. The d&xive Loan Committee, which consists of all memsbef Pathfinder Bank's board
directors, must approve all extensions of credéxness of the limits described above for the @fflooan Committee.

Loans to One Borrower

Under New York law, New York savings banks are eabjo loans-tmne borrower limits, which are substantially simiéa those applicat
to national banks, which restrict loans to one dear to an amount equal to 15% of unimpaired chpitel unimpaired surplus on
unsecured basis, and an additional amount equ&aD% of unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplushé loan is secured by reac
marketable collateral (generally, financial instents and bullion, but not real estate), subjeeixteptions.

Additionally, our internal loan policies limit thital related credit to be extended to any onedvegr (after application of the rules
attribution), with respect to any and all loanshaftathfinder Bank to $4.5 million, subject to certexceptions. The indebtedness include
credit exposure whether direct or contingent, uwaghused.

ASSET QUALITY
Loan Delinquencies and Collection Procedures

When a loan becomes delinquent, we make attempt®rtact the borrower to determine the cause ofdiéflayed payments and see
solution to permit the loan to be brought curreithinm a reasonable period of time. The outcomeay with each individual borrower.

the case of mortgage loans and consumer loanse addice is sent 15 days after an account becataisquent. If delinquency persis
notices are sent at the 30 day delinquency maek4thday delinquency mark and the 60 day delinquemark. We also attempt to estab
telephone contact with the borrower early on ingthecess. In the case of residential mortgagesloacluded in every late notice is a le
that includes information regarding horaemership counseling. As part of a workout agregmee will accept partial payments during
month in order to bring the account current. témipts to reach an agreement are unsuccessfuharmistomer is unable to comply with
terms of the workout agreement, we will review #fioeount to determine if foreclosure is warrantadyhich case, consistent with New Y
law, we send a 90 day notice of foreclosure and th80 day notice before legal proceedings are amaed. A consumer final demand le
is sent in the case of a consumer loan. In the chcommercial loans and commercial mortgage loagsfollow a similar notificatio
practice with the exception of the previously menéd information on homewnership counseling. In addition, commercial Balo no
require 90 day notices of foreclosure. Generatlyynmercial borrowers only receive 10 day noticeforeelegal proceedings can

commenced. Commercial loans may experience lonwgekout times that may trigger a need for a loardification that could meet ti
requirements of a troubled debt restructured loan.
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Impaired Loans, Non-performing Loans and Troubled Debt Restructurings

The policy of Pathfinder Bank is to provide a caotius assessment of the quality of its loan paotfitirough the maintenance of an inte
and external loan review process. The process pocates a loan risk grading system designed togreze degrees of risk on individi
commercial and mortgage loans in the portfolio. Bgament is responsible for monitoring of assetityuahd risk grade designations.

We generally cease accruing interest on our loahsnwcontractual payments of principal or interesstehbecome 90 days past du
management has serious doubts about further callidity of principal or interest, even though tloah is currently performing. A loan
remain on accrual status if it is in the processalfection and is either guaranteed or well seturé/hen a loan is placed on nacerua
status, unpaid interest credited to income is s®akr Interest received on naoerual loans generally is applied against prifaypanterest i
it is recognized on the cash basis method. Gegetalins are restored to accrual status when thgabion is brought current, has perforr
in accordance with the contractual terms for ageable period of time, generally for a minimum isf months, and the ultimate collectabi
of the total contractual principal and interestdslonger in doubt.

Our Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses policy (LAL establishes criteria for selecting loans torbeasured for impairment based on
following:

Residential and Consumer Loans:

« All loans rated substandard or worse, on nonaccamal above our TRC threshold balance of $300,000.
o All Troubled Debt Restructured Loans with a thrddHmlance of $300,000.

« Any other loans the Bank will be likely unable tollect all amounts of contractual interest and gipal as scheduled in the Ic
agreements

Commercial Lines and Loans, Commercial Real EstateTax-exempt loans:

« All loans rated substandard or worse, on nonaccamal above our TRC threshold balance of $100,000.
« All Troubled Debt Restructured Loans with a thrddHmalance of $100,000.

« Any other loans the Bank will be likely unable tollect all amounts of contractual interest and gipal as scheduled in the Ic
agreements

Impairment is measured by determining the presehitevof expected future cash flows or, for collakgiependent loans, the fair value of
collateral adjusted for market conditions and sgliéxpenses as compared to the loan carrying value.
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Troubled Debt Restructurings ("TDR")

TDRs are loan restructurings in which we, for eqoimor legal reasons related to an existing borrswvénancial difficulties, grant
concession to the debtor that we would not otherwinsider. Typically, a troubled debt restructgrinvolves a modification of terms o
debt, such as reduction of the stated interestfoatihe remaining original life of the debt, exséon of the maturity date at a stated interes
lower than the current market rate for new debhwitmilar risk, reduction of the face amount of trebt, or reduction of accrued interest.
consider modifications only after analyzing therbarer's current repayment capacity, evaluatingdinength of any guarantors basec
documented current financial information, and asisgsthe current value of any collateral pledg&tiese modifications are made only w
there is a reasonable and attainable workout pliainhas been agreed to by the borrower and tlirabisr best interests.

Loans on non-accrual status at the date of modiificare initially classified as noaccrual troubled debt restructurings. Our policyvides
that troubled debt restructured loans are retutoeaiccrual status after a period of satisfactory masonable future payment performe
under the terms of the restructuring. Satisfacfmyment performance is generally no less tharc@nsecutive months of timely payme
and demonstrated ability to continue to repay.

Foreclosed real estate

Fair values for foreclosed real estate are injtisdicorded based on market value evaluations gl arties, less costs to sell (“initial ¢
basis"). Any writedowns required when the related loan receivabéxihanged for the underlying real estate collataréhe time of transf
to foreclosed real estate are charged to the afioevéor loan losses. Values are derived from apaisaof underlying collateral or discoun
cash flow analysis. Subsequent to foreclosureiatans are updated periodically and assets arkenldo current fair value, not to exceed
initial cost basis. In the determination of fa#lwe subsequent to foreclosure, management alsiders other factors or recent developmi
such as, changes in absorption rates and markdttioms from the time of valuation, and anticipatades values considering managem
plans for disposition. Either change could resulidjustment to lower the property value estimatdgated in the appraisals.

Loan delinquencies together with properties withim Foreclosed Real Estate portfolio are reviewedtiy at the Board of Director level.
Classified Assets

Federal regulations provide for the classificatidioans and other assets, such as debt and espatyities considered by the FDIC to b
lesser quality, as "substandard,” "doubtful" ors8d An asset is considered "substandard" if iné&lequately protected by the current
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of ttwdlateral pledged, if any. "Substandard" assethide those characterized by the "dis
possibility" that the insured institution will sast "some loss" if the deficiencies are not coedctAssets classified as "doubtful" have a
the weaknesses inherent in those classified "sutbatd," with the added characteristic that the weakes present make "collectior
liquidation in full," on the basis of currently sxing facts, conditions, and values, "highly questble and improbable.” Assets classifie
"loss" are those considered "uncollectible” andsoth little value that their continuance as asaétisout the establishment of a spec
allowance for loan losses is not warranted. Astetsdo not currently expose the insured insttuto sufficient risk to warrant classificat
in one of the aforementioned categories but posgeaknesses are designated as "special mentiomitfapanagement.

When an insured institution classifies problem &sses either substandard or doubtful, it may estalijeneral allowances in an amc
deemed prudent by management to cover lossesrthdosh probable and reasonable to estimate. @leakowances represent allowan
which have been established to cover accrued |l@ssssciated with lending activities that are batbbpble and reasonable to estimate
which, unlike specific allowances, have not bedocaked to particular problem assets. When anré@usinstitution classifies problem as
as "loss," it is required either to establish acffpeallowance for losses equal to 100% of thattipa of the asset so classified or to chaoffe-
such amount. An institution's determination athtclassification of its assets and the amouitsofaluation allowances is subject to rev
by the regulatory authorities, which may require ¢istablishment of additional general or speclfaances.
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In connection with the filing of our periodic regtbry reports and in accordance with our clasgificaof assets policy, we continuou
assess the quality of our loan portfolio and weutady review the problem loans in our loan poiitidio determine whether any loans req
classification in accordance with applicable regatess. Loans are listed on the "watch list" iflltidbecause of emerging financial weakne
even though the loan is currently performing inaxdance with its terms, or delinquency statusf tiié loan possesses weaknesses altt
currently performing. Management reviews the stattiour loan portfolio delinquencies, by loan typwith the full board of directors o1
monthly basis. Individual classified loan relasbips are discussed as warranted. If a loan destg®in asset quality, the classificatio
changed to "special mention," "substandard,” Idioli' or "loss" depending on the circumstances #ral evaluation. Generally, loans
days or more past due are placed on nonaccruaksiad classified "substandard."

We also employ a risk grading system for our Ia@nkelp assure that we are not taking unnecessapraunmanageable risk. The prirr
objective of the loan risk grading system is toabBsh a method of assessing credit risk to furthreable management to measure
portfolio quality and the adequacy of the allowafmeloan losses. Further, we contract with aremdl loan review firm to complete a cre
risk assessment of the loan portfolio on a regbideis to help determine the current level and tloef our credit risk. The external Ic
review firm communicates the results of their fimgh to the Executive Loan Committee in writing dydperiodically attending the Execut
Loan Committee meetings. Any material issues disga in an external loan review are also commuaitanmediately to the Presiden
Pathfinder Bank. See Note 5 to the consolidateanttial statements for further details on the Camijgacredit quality indicators that def
our risk grading system.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents manag&esitmate of losses inherent in the loan podfal of the date of the statemen
condition and it is recorded as a reduction of $oaihe allowance for loan losses is maintainea lavvel considered adequate to provide
losses that can be reasonably anticipated. Maregeperforms a quarterly evaluation of the adequaEde allowance. The allowance
increased by the provision for loan losses, andedsed by chargeffs, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uactitile are charge
against the allowance for loan losses, and subsegeeoveries, if any, are credited to the alloveanéll or part of the principal balance
loans receivable are charged off to the allowarsc®an as it is determined that the repayment adrgtlart of the principal balance is hig
unlikely. Nonfesidential consumer loans are generally chargedmfater than 120 days past due on a contratiasik, unless producti
collection efforts are providing results. Consuroans may be charged off earlier in the eventasfildouptcy, or if there is an amount the
deemed uncollectible. No portion of the allowafareloan losses is restricted to any individualidgpe and the entire allowance is avail
to absorb any and all loan losses.

The allowance is based on three major componenishvare: (i) specific components for larger loa(iiy,recent historical losses and sev
qualitative factors applied to a general pool @frls, and (iii) an unallocated component.

The first component is the specific allowance tieddtes to loans that are classified as impaifeat. these loans, an allowance is establi
when the discounted cash flows or collateral valfithe impaired loan are lower than the carryintugeof the loan. A loan is conside
impaired when, based on current information andesyet is probable that we will be unable to collthe scheduled payments of principe
interest when due according to the contractual 4esfrthe loan agreement. Impairment is measureglthgr the present value of the expe
future cash flows discounted at the loan's effectnterest rate or the fair value of the underlyiodjateral if the loan is collateral depende
The majority of our loans utilize the fair value thie underlying collateral. Factors consideredntgnagement in determining impairm
include payment status, collateral value and ttebaiility of collecting scheduled principal anderdgst payments when due. Loans
experience insignificant payment delays and paynsdrtfalls generally are not classified as imghirdManagement determines

significance of payment delays and shortfalls araseby case basis, taking into consideration all of clmfeumstances surrounding the |
and the borrower, including the length and reasonte delay, the borrower's prior payment record thhe amount of shortfall in relation
what is owed.
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The second component is the general allowance wbisters pools of loans, by loan class, not consitldmpaired, smaller balar
homogenous loans, such as residential real ebiatee equity and other consumer loans. These pbddans are evaluated for loss expo
first based on historical loss rates for each ebéhcategories of loans. The ratio of net chaffgeto loans outstanding within each loan ¢
over the most recent eight quarters, lagged byqoiagter, is used to generate the historical logsraln addition, qualitative factors are ac
to the historical loss rates in arriving at theatatllowance for loan losses needed for this gémperal of loans. The qualitative factors incli
changes in national and local economic trendsrateof growth in the portfolio, trends of delingqueées and nonaccrual balances, chang
loan policy, and changes in lending managementresqme and related staffing. Each factor is agsigm value to reflect improving, stable
declining conditions based on management's begtijadt using relevant information available at iheetof the evaluation. These qualita
factors, applied to each product class, make tladuation inherently subjective, as it requires mateestimates that may be susceptibl
significant revision as more information becomeailable.

The third component is the unallocated allowancéckvlis maintained to cover uncertainties that coaffitct management's estimate
probable losses. The unallocated component daditbeance reflects the margin of imprecision inimtii@ the underlying assumptions use
the methodologies for estimating specific and galnesses in the portfolio, and generally comprigss than 10% of the total allowance
loan losses.

When a loan is determined to be impaired, we w#valuate the collateral which secures the loanréal estate loans, we will obtain a r
appraisal or broker's opinion, whichever is consddo provide the most accurate value in the evksale. An evaluation of equipment t
as collateral will be obtained from a firm ablept@vide such an evaluation. Collateral will be iasigd not less than annually for all impa
loans and will be reevaluated not less than ewsny ytears. Appraised values are discounted to emivthe estimated selling price of
collateral, which is considered to be the estimda@dvalue. The discounts also include estimatests to sell the property. For commet
and industrial loans secured by n@al estate collateral, such as accounts receivablentory and equipment, estimated fair values
determined based on the borrower's financial steesn inventory reports, accounts receivable agargsquipment appraisals or invoic
Indications of value from these sources are gelyededcounted based on the age of the financiarinftion or the quality of the assets.
Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectiesigluated for impairment. Accordingly, we do nefparately identify individu;
residential mortgage loans of less than $300,00fhenequity and other consumer loans for impairnagstiosures, unless such loans
related to borrowers with impaired commercial loanghey are the subject to a troubled debt restring agreement and the loan h:
carrying value in excess of $300,000.

In addition, the FDIC and NYSDFS, as an integrat phtheir examination process, periodically revieur allowance for loan losses and 1
require us to recognize additions to the allowahased on their judgments about information avadlaiol them at the time of th
examination, which may not be currently availalbertanagement. Based on management's comprehamsilysis of the loan portfolio, \
believe the current level of the allowance for Ié@sses is adequate.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Our investment policy is established by the bodrdiectors. Our investment policy dictates thatestment decisions will be made base
the safety of the investment, liquidity requirensgmtotential returns, cash flow targets, and comsty with our interest rate risk managen
The Asset Liability Management Committee of the rdoaf directors acts in the capacity of an investtrmommittee and is responsible
overseeing our investment program and evaluatingaorongoing basis our investment policy and objesti Our President and Cf
Financial Officer have the authority to purchaseusities within specific guidelines establishedtbg investment policy. All transactions
reviewed by the board of directors at its regulaeting.
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All investment securities must meet regulatory glites and be permissible bank investments, inofudinited States Governm
obligations, securities of various federal ageneied of state and municipal governments, depositiseaFHLBNY, certificates of deposit
federally insured institutions, and federal fund¥ithin certain regulatory limits, we may also ist& portion of our assets in mutual fu
equity securities and investment grade corporalé siecurities. As part of our membership in theeBNY, we are required to maintain
investment in FHLBNY stock.

All securities purchased will be classified at timee of purchase as either held-to-maturity or ladé-forsale. We do not maintain a trad
account. Securities purchased with the intent drlityato hold until maturity will be classified aseld-tomaturity. Securities placed in 1
held-to-maturity category will be accounted foaatortized cost.

Securities that do not qualify or are not categmtizas held-to-maturity are classified as availdbtesale. This classification incluc
securities that may be sold in response to chaingederest rates, the security's prepayment tigkjdity needs, the availability of and f
yield on alternative investments, and funding sesrand terms. These securities are reported atdhie, which is determined on a mon
basis. Unrealized gains and losses are reportadsaparate component of capital, net of tax. Dueemate change in value of the portfoli
reported to the board of directors monthly.

The general objectives of the investment portfelie to assist in the overall interest rate risk ag@ment of Pathfinder Bank, genera
reasonable rate of return consistent with the gadétprincipal, provide a source of liquidity, mmize our tax liability, and mitigate c
interest rate and credit risk. We purchase seeartt provide necessary liquidity for dayelay operations and when investable funds e»
loan demand. The effect that the proposed seowntyld have on our credit and interest rate risk @sldbased equity is also considered.

Securities classified as held to maturity, othemtimortgagdsacked securities and collateralized mortgage atiigs consists primarily
state and political subdivision securities, and fesser extent, federal agency obligations anpocate securities. Our securities classifie
available-forsale consists primarily of corporate securities #adkral agency obligations, which include Fedé&am Credit Bank note
FHLBNY notes, Fannie Mae notes and Freddie Mac snoteéor a discussion on mortgage backed securiies, "—MortgagdBacke(
Securities and Collateralized Mortgage Obligations.

Included within the available for sale portfoliceahree mutual fund positions. The first is a mlfund backed by adjustable rate mortgage-
backed securities and cash equivalents. The sdsandutual fund consisting primarily of investmgnade dividengsaying common stoc

of large capitalization companies, i.e., compamiéh market capitalization in excess of $5.0 billio The third mutual fund, the Finan
Institutions Fund, LLC, invests primarily in equibgcurities issued by community banks and thrgtiintions and holding companies of s
banks and thrifts located principally in the Nodhtern United States. The fund invests in bankstaifts with less than $5.0 billion in ass
that are high performing or ones that represergniiatl acquisition targets or are strategicallyaled in a market where a major compe
was recently acquired by a larger institution.

We also have an investment in FHLBNY stock whiclelessified separately from securities due to #sdrictions on sale or transfer.
further information regarding our securities pditfpsee Note 4 to the consolidated financial stetsts.
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIESAND COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

We purchase mortgadeacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac andi&Mae. W
invest in mortgagdacked securities and collateralized mortgage atiigs to achieve positive interest rate spreadsh wminima
administrative expense, and to lower our credit N§e regularly monitor the credit quality of thusrtfolio.

Mortgagebacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs are created by pooling mortgages and issaliggcurity with an intere
rate which is less than the interest rate on traerying mortgages. These securities typically @spnt a participation interest in a poc
single-family or multi-family mortgages, althoughreocus our investments on mortgage related seubicked by one- to fofamily rea
estate loans. The issuers of such securities pubkesell the participation interests in the forfrsecurities to investors such as Pathfi
Bank, and in the case of government agency spothsssaes, guarantee the payment of principal aredest to investors. Mortgadmcket
securities and collateralized mortgage obligatigerserally yield less than the loans that undetl@hssecurities because of the cost of pay
guarantees, if any, and credit enhancements. Th&skrate securities are usually more liquid tiaividual mortgage loans.

Investments in collateralized mortgage obligation®lve a risk that actual prepayments may diffenf estimated prepayments over the
of the security, which may require adjustmentshi amortization of any premium or accretion of digcount relating to such instrume;
thereby changing the net yield on such securitiégere is also reinvestment risk associated wighctish flows from such securities or if s
securities are redeemed by the issuer. In addititom market value of such securities may be aéWemffected in a rising interest r
environment, particularly since all of our collatized mortgage obligations have a fixed rate @érigst. The relatively short weigh
average remaining life of our collateralized moggaobligation portfolio mitigates our potential ki®f loss in a rising interest r:
environment.

SOURCES OF FUNDS
General

Deposits have traditionally been our primary sowtéunds for use in lending and investment adtgit We also rely on advances from
FHLBNY and CDARS as a form of brokered depositsadidition to deposits and borrowings, we derivedfufrom scheduled loan payme
investment maturities, loan prepayments, retairsdiegs and income on interesdrning assets. While scheduled loan paymentsrexuani
on interestearning assets are relatively stable sources afsfuteposit inflows and outflows can vary widelylare influenced by prevaili
market interest rates, economic conditions and eitign from other financial institutions.

Deposits

A majority of our depositors are persons or busiseavho work or reside or operate in Oswego andh@aga Counties. We offer a variety
deposits, including checking, savings, money madegiosit accounts, and certificates of depositpd3g account terms vary, with |
principal differences being the minimum balanceuiss, the amount of time the funds must remaindeposit and the interest rate.
establish interest rates, maturity terms, senass fand withdrawal penalties on a periodic basenddement determines the rates and 1
based on rates paid by competitors, our need fatsfwr liquidity, overall growth goals and fedesial state regulations. The flow of depc
is influenced significantly by general economic dibions, changes in interest rates and competifitre variety of deposit accounts that
offer allows us to be competitive in generating ks and to respond with flexibility to changesour customers' demands. We believe
deposits are a stable source of funds, but ouityabdl attract and maintain deposits at favoralblies will be affected by market conditic
including competition and prevailing interest ratbs addition, Pathfinder Commercial Bank holds foipal deposits, which have bee
more volatile source of funds for Pathfinder Bank.
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The CDARS is a form of brokered deposit programwlrich we have been a participant since 2009. litiaddo offering depositors enhanc
FDIC insurance coverage, being a participant in &3Aallows us to fund our balance sheet through CEABheWay Buy program. Th
program uses a competitive bid process for avalalelposits at specified terms. These deposits wetkfor us because of their wee
availability, coupled with their short term, whiallows us to more closely mirror our funding needa/e believe this arrangement is a vii
source of funding provided that we maintain our I'veapitalized" status.

Borrowings

We may obtain advances primarily from the FHLBNYlizing the security of the common stock we owntlie FHLBNY and qualifyin
residential mortgage loans as collateral, providedain standards related to creditworthiness ae fhese advances are made pursui
several credit programs, each of which has its owerest rate and range of maturities. FHLBNY adwsnare generally available to
seasonal and other withdrawals of deposit accamdsto permit increased lending.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
General

Pathfinder Bank is a New Yorhartered stock savings bank and the Company isagy/ldhd corporation and a registered bank ho
company. Pathfinder Bank's deposits are insurei @gpplicable limits by the FDIC. Pathfinder Basksubject to extensive regulation by
New York State Department of Financial ServicesYSIDFS"), as its chartering agency, and by the FIXCprimary federal regulator a
deposit insurer. Pathfinder Bank is required te fiéports with, and is periodically examined by H#DIC and the NYSDFS concerning
activities and financial condition and must obteegulatory approvals prior to entering into certmansactions, including, but not limited
mergers with or acquisitions of other financialtingions. As a registered bank holding compang, @ompany is regulated by the Fed
Reserve Board.

The regulatory and supervisory structure estaldishecomprehensive framework of activities in whah institution can engage anc
intended primarily for the protection of depositaersd the deposit insurance funds, rather tharhfoiptotection of shareholders and credi
The regulatory structure also gives the regulatughorities extensive discretion in connection witieir supervisory and enforcem
activities and examination policies, including p@s concerning the establishment of deposit imagaassessment fees, classificatio
assets and establishment of adequate loan losvess®r regulatory purposes. Any change in sugjulegory requirements and polici
whether by the New York legislature, the NYSDFS® BEDIC, the Federal Reserve Board or the UniteteSt@aongress, could have a mat
adverse impact on the financial condition and tesof operations of the Company and Pathfinder Baskis further described below, -
Dodd+rank Act has significantly changed the bank regmastructure and may affect the lending, investtraand general operating activit
of depository institutions and their holding comiegn

Set forth below is a summary of certain materiatuigbry and regulatory requirements applicablehto @ompany and Pathfinder Bank.
summary is not intended to be a complete descriifesuch statutes and regulations and their effectthe Company and Pathfinder Bank.

The Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act significantly changed bank regulation arabs affected the lending, investment, trading epdrating activities «
depository institutions and their holding compani€ke DoddFrank Act also created a new Consumer FinancialeBtion Bureau wit
extensive powers to supervise and enforce consipmuection laws. The Consumer Financial ProtecBameau has broad ruhaaking
authority for a wide range of consumer protectiawd that apply to all banks and savings institijancluding the authority to prohi
"unfair, deceptive or abusive" acts and practicEse Consumer Financial Protection Bureau alsoetasiination and enforcement authc
over all banks and savings institutions with mdvent $10 billion in assets. Banks and savingstutgins with $10 billion or less in asst
such as Pathfinder Bank, will continue to be examity their applicable federal bank regulators.e Thoddfrank Act also gave st:
attorneys general the ability to enforce applicdbtieral consumer protection laws.
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The DoddFrank Act broadened the base for FDIC assessmentdeposit insurance and permanently increasednégnsémum amount ¢
deposit insurance to $250,000 per depositor. Té@dBrank Act also, among other things, requires odtirs of certain securitized loan:
retain a portion of the credit risk, stipulatesulagory ratesetting for certain debit card interchange feegeaded restrictions on the paym
of interest on commercial demand deposits and amtanumber of reforms related to mortgage oriipna. The Dodd-rank Act increase
the ability of shareholders to influence boardsdivectors by requiring companies to give sharehslde nonbinding vote on executi
compensation and so-called "golden parachute" patsn&he Dodd-rank Act also directed the Federal Reserve Boamgrdamulgate rule
prohibiting excessive compensation paid to compagcutives, regardless of whether the companyb$ighyitraded or not.

Many of the provisions of the Dodekrank Act are subject to delayed effective datesequire the implementing regulations and, theee
their impact on our operations cannot be fully dateed at this time. However, it is likely thatettboddFrank Act will increase tt
regulatory burden, compliance costs and intergs¢mse for Pathfinder Bank and the Company.

SBLF Participation

On September 1, 2011, we entered into a SecuBtieshase Agreement with the U.S. Treasury pursioamhich we sold to the U.S. Treas
13,000 shares of our Series B Preferred Stockngaailiquidation amount of $1,000 per share forregate proceeds of $13.0 million. T
transaction was entered into as part of the "SBuadiness Lending Fund" "SBLF").

The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to recaivecumulative dividends payable quarterly, on eacludanl, April 1, July 1 and Octok
1, beginning October 1, 2011. The dividend rateictvis calculated on the aggregate liquidation amtowas initially set at 4.2% per ann
based upon the level of "Qualified Small Businessding,” or "QSBL" (as defined in the Securitiegdhase Agreement) by Pathfin
Bank. The dividend rate for dividend periods sgjpsmt to the initial period is set based upon tRertentage Change in Qualif
Lending" (as defined in the Securities Purchasee@igrent) between each dividend period and the "B&SdDSBL level. Such dividend r:
may vary from 1% per annum to 5% per annum forseeond through tenth dividend periods, and frompE¥oannum to 7% per annum
the eleventh through the first half of the ninetbedividend periods. If the Series B PreferredcBteemains outstanding for more than four-
and-onehalf years, or March 2016, the dividend rate wélfixed at 9.0% annually. Prior to that time, Engral, the dividend rate decree
as the level of Pathfinder Bank's QSBL increagesr dividend rate as of December 31, 2014 was 1986h dividends are not cumulati
but we may only declare and pay dividends on ounroon stock (or any other equity securities jun@thte Series B Preferred Stock) if
have declared and paid dividends for the curreritdeind period on the Series B Preferred Stock. e are subject to other restrictions
our ability to repurchase or redeem other secaritie

We may redeem the shares of Series B Preferredt,Stowhole or in part, at any time at a redemptioice equal to the sum of the liquidal
amount per share and the per-share amount of gmgididividends for the thecurrent period, subject to any required prior apprdy the
FDIC.

The SBLF requires us to file quarterly reports dBQR lending. We must also make outreach efforts avertise the availability of QSBL
organizations and individuals who represent mirgsjtwomen and veterans. We must annually cettidy no business loans are mad
principals of businesses who have been convictea s#x crime against a minor. Finally, the SBL&uiees us to file quarterly, annual ¢
other reports provided to shareholders concurramitly the U.S. Treasury.

Simultaneously with the closing of the SBLF trarnigat on September 1, 2011, we exited TARP. Puistmrour exit, we redeem
(repurchased) from the Treasury, largely using @eds received from the issuance of the Series ®rPed Stock, all 6,771 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock, having a liquidation antquer share equal to $1,000. On February 1, 28&2%edeemed (repurchased) a wa
to purchase 154,354 shares of our common stockigbae $0.01 per share. The total redemption prfaeur TARP Series A Preferred St
and the warrant to purchase 154,354 shares ofasomon stock, including all dividends paid to thedsury, was approximately $7.3 milli
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New York Bank Regulation

Pathfinder Bank derives its lending, investmengnlehing and other authority primarily from the apgble provisions of New York Ste
Banking Law and the regulations of the NYSDFS,im#téd by federal laws and regulations. Under ¢hesvs and regulations, savings ba
including Pathfinder Bank, may invest in real estatortgages, consumer and commercial loans, cestpes of debt securities, includ
certain corporate debt securities and obligatiohdederal, state and local governments and agencieain types of corporate eqt
securities and certain other assets. Under thetata authority for investing in equity securiti@éssavings bank may invest up to 7.5% c
assets in corporate stock, with an overall limi6&8 of its assets invested in common stock. Imwest in the stock of a single corporatio
limited to the lesser of 2% of the outstanding ktot such corporation or 1% of the savings banksets, except as set forth below. ¢
equity securities must meet certain earnings ratiasother tests of financial performance. A sgsibank's lending powers are not subje
percentage of assets limitations, although thezdianits applicable to single borrowers. A savilgsk may also, pursuant to the "leew
power, make investments not otherwise permitteceunide New York State Banking Law. This power pé&nnvestments in otherwi
impermissible investments of up to 1% of assetany single investment, subject to certain restitiand to an aggregate limit for all s
investments of up to 5% of assets. Additionaliy lieu of investing in such securities in accordamdth and reliance upon the spec
investment authority set forth in the New York St&anking Law, savings banks are authorized tot étemvest under a "prudent pers
standard in a wider range of investment securidiescompared to the types of investments permissibtier such specific investm
authority. However, in the event a savings bamctsl to utilize the "prudent person" standard, iit i unable to avail itself of the ott
provisions of the New York State Banking Law andulations which set forth specific investment auitiyo Pathfinder Bank has not elec
to conduct its investment activities under the emt person” standard. A savings bank may alscceeetrust powers upon approval of
NYSDFS. Pathfinder Bank does not presently havet frowers

New York State chartered savings banks may alsesinm subsidiaries under their service corporaitimestment authority. A savings b:
may use this power to invest in corporations thegage in various activities authorized for savibgsks, plus any additional activities 1
may be authorized by the NYSDFS. Investment bywangs bank in the stock, capital notes and debestaf its service corporations
limited to 3% of the bank's assets, and such invests, together with the bank's loans to its seremrporations, may not exceed 10% o
savings bank's assets.

Furthermore, New York banking regulations imposgunements on loans which a bank may make to is@tkve officers and directors ¢
to certain corporations or partnerships in whicbhspersons have equity interests. These requinsnieciude that (i) certain loans musit
approved in advance by a majority of the entirertdad directors and the interested party must ab$tam participating directly or indirect
in voting on such loan, (ii) the loan must be omm that are not more favorable than those offésedhaffiliated third parties, and (iii) t
loan must not involve more than a normal risk @fagment or present other unfavorable features.

Under the New York State Banking Law, the Superidént may issue an order to a New York State dteattbanking institution to app¢
and explain an apparent violation of law, to digoure unauthorized or unsafe practices and to eegcribed books and accounts. Up
finding by the NYSDFS that any director, trusteefiicer of any banking organization has violatey éaw, or has continued unauthorize
unsafe practices in conducting the business ob#mking organization after having been notifiedthy Superintendent to discontinue <
practices, such director, trustee or officer maydraoved from office after notice and an opportunit be heard. Pathfinder Bank does
know of any past or current practice, conditionvimation that may lead to any proceeding by th@e3intendent or the NYSDFS aga
Pathfinder Bank or any of its directors or officers
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New York State Community Reinvestment Regulation

Pathfinder Bank is also subject to provisions &f Mew York State Banking Law which imposes contiguand affirmative obligations up
banking institutions organized in New York Statestwve the credit needs of its local community (QRA") which are substantially simil
to those imposed by the Federal Community ReinvestrAct. Pursuant to the NYCRA, a bank must fiteamnual NYCRA report al
copies of all federal CRA reports with the NYSDH®%ie NYCRA requires the NYSDFS to make a bienniattem assessment of a bai
compliance with the NYCRA, utilizing a foutered rating system and make such assessmentldleatio the public. The NYCRA al
requires the Superintendent to consider a bank'€R¥ rating when reviewing a bank's application tgg&ge in certain transactio
including mergers, asset purchases and the estadgig of branch offices or automated teller madchirend provides that such assess
may serve as a basis for the denial of any suclicaipn. Pathfinder Bank's NYCRA most recent rgfinlated December 31, 2012, 1
"satisfactory."

Federal Regulations

Capital Requirements. Under the FDIC's regulations, federally insuredestaartered banks that are not members of the Fetasdry
System ("state nomember banks"), such as Pathfinder Bank, are reduo comply with minimum leverage capital requiesits. For a
institution not anticipating or experiencing sigoént growth and deemed by the FDIC to be, in ggnerstrong banking organization re
composite 1 under Uniform Financial InstitutionsnRiag System, the minimum capital leverage requéetrin 2014 was a ratio of Tie
capital to total assets of 3.0%. For all otheriingbns, the minimum leverage capital ratio was less than 4.0%. Tier 1 capital is the sul
common shareholder's equity, noncumulative perpgtteferred stock (including any related surplusyl aninority investments in cert:
subsidiaries, less intangible assets (except fdaiceservicing rights and credit card relationshignd certain other specified items.

FDIC regulations also require state non-member $dakmaintain certain ratios of regulatory capttalregulatory riskweighted assets,
"risk-based capital ratios." Risk-based capitalosmare determined by allocating assets and spdcdff-balance sheet items to four risk-
weighted categories ranging from 0.0% to 200.0%irau2014, state nomember banks were required to maintain a minimutio o tota
capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0PAytdch at least on&alf must have been Tier 1 capital. Total capitaisists of Tier 1 capit
plus Tier 2 or supplementary capital items, whigblude allowances for loan losses in an amountpofoul.25% of riskweighted asse!
cumulative preferred stock, subordinated debentanekcertain other capital instruments, and a @ortif the net unrealized gain on eq
securities.

In July, 2013, the FDIC and the other federal badfulatory agencies issued a final rule to revisartriskbased and leverage cag
requirements and their method for calculating rskghted assets, to make them consistent with gineeanents that were reached by
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and ceppaavisions of the Doddrrank Act. The final rule applies to all deposjtanstitutions
top-tier bank holding companies with total consatetl assets of $500 million or more, and tiep-savings and loan holding compa
("banking organizations"). Among other things, thée establishes a new common equity Tier 1 mimmuapital requirement (4.5% of risk-
weighted assets), sets a uniform minimum Tier &dage ratio of 4.0%, increases the minimum Tieadital to riskbased assets requirem
(from 4% to 6% of riskweighted assets) and assigns a higher risk weldti%) to exposures that are more than 90 daysdpasor are ¢
nonaccrual status and to certain commercial raatefacilities that finance the acquisition, deyghent or construction of real property.
final rule also limits a banking organization's italpdistributions and certain discretionary bompayments if the banking organization d
not hold a "capital conservation buffer" consistimfg2.5% of common equity Tier 1 capital to riglkeighted assets. The final rule bec:
effective for us on January 1, 2015. The capitaiseovation buffer requirement is being phased igireng January 1, 2016 and enc
January 1, 2019, when the full capital conservalioffier requirement will be effective.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. As required by statute, the federal banking agenbeve adopted final regulations and Interag
Guidelines Establishing Standards for Safety angh8pess to implement safety and soundness standdregyuidelines set forth the sal
and soundness standards that the federal bankergigg use to identify and address problems atedsdepository institutions before cag
becomes impaired. The guidelines address interoatrals and information systems, internal auditteys, credit underwriting, lo:
documentation, interest rate exposure, asset grastet quality, earnings, compensation, fees andfils and, more recently, safeguar
customer information. If the appropriate federahbiag agency determines that an institution fallanieet any standard prescribed by
guidelines, the agency may require the institutiaubmit to the agency an acceptable plan to aeliempliance with the standard.
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Business and I nvestment Activities. Under federal law, all state-chartered FOiSured banks, including savings banks, have hiedtet! in
their activities as principal and in their equitwéstments to the type and the amount authorizeddiional banks, notwithstanding state |
Federal law permits exceptions to these limitatidrer example, certain statdartered savings banks may, with FDIC approvaitinae tc
exercise state authority to invest in common offgered stocks listed on a national securities emghaand in the shares of an investr
company registered under the Investment CompanyfAt940, as amended. The maximum permissible tmears is the lesser of 100.0%
Tier 1 capital or the maximum amount permitted l®nNyork law.

The FDIC is also authorized to permit state bawkerigage in state authorized activities or investmaot permissible for national bal
(other than norsubsidiary equity investments) if they meet all laggble capital requirements and it is determinkeat tsuch activities
investments do not pose a significant risk to tfEJ= insurance fund. The FDIC has adopted regulatigaverning the procedures
institutions seeking approval to engage in suclvities or investments. The Gramm-LeaBliley Act of 1999 specified that a state bank |
control a subsidiary that engages in activitiespeacipal that would only be permitted for a natrbank to conduct in a "financ
subsidiary," if a bank meets specified conditiond deducts its investment in the subsidiary foulairy capital purposes.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. Federal law requires, among other things, thatréddeank regulatory authorities take "prol
corrective action" with respect to banks that db meet minimum capital requirements. For these @agp, the law establishes five ca|
categories: well capitalized, adequately capitalizendercapitalized, significantly undercapitalizedi critically undercapitalized.

The FDIC has adopted regulations to implement tteempt corrective action legislation. In 2014, astitution was deemed to be "w
capitalized" if it had a total risk-based capitatio of 10.0% or greater, a Tier 1 ribksed capital ratio of 6.0% or greater and a |geeratic
of 5.0% or greater. An institution was "adequatedypitalized" if it had a total risk-based capitafio of 8.0% or greater, a Tier 1 riblase!
capital ratio of 4.0% or greater, and generallgwetage ratio of 4.0% or greater. An institutionswandercapitalized" if it had a total risk-
based capital ratio of less than 8.0%, a Tier K-bimsed capital ratio of less than 4.0%, or genemllgverage ratio of less than 4.0%.
institution was deemed to be "significantly undeitaized" if it had a total risk-based capitalivabf less than 6.0%, a Tier 1 rilase:
capital ratio of less than 3.0%, or a leverageratiless than 3.0%. An institution was considdrede "critically undercapitalized" if it hac
ratio of tangible equity (as defined in the regiolas) to total assets that is equal to or less th@go.

"Undercapitalized" banks must adhere to growthjtabgistribution (including dividend) and othemlitations and are required to subrmr
capital restoration plan. A bank's compliance witlsh a plan must be guaranteed by any compangah#&bls the undercapitalized institut
in an amount equal to the lesser of 5% of thetut#in's total assets when deemed undercapitabzee amount necessary to achieve
status of adequately capitalized. If an "underedigied" bank fails to submit an acceptable planisitreated as if it is "significant
undercapitalized." "Significantly undercapitalizdzfinks must comply with one or more of a numbeadufitional measures, including, but
limited to, a required sale of sufficient votingait to become adequately capitalized, a requirerteereduce total assets, cessation of te
deposits from correspondent banks, the dismissdirettors or officers and restrictions on inteneges paid on deposits, compensatic
executive officers and capital distributions by fferent holding company. "Critically undercapiteli? institutions are subject to additio
measures including, subject to a narrow exceptiba,appointment of a receiver or conservator withit) days after being designe
“critically undercapitalized."
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The previously mentioned final regulatory capitalerthat increases regulatory capital requiremenisisted the prompt corrective act
categories accordingly effective January 1, 20Ukder the revised requirements, an institution mmuset the following in order to
classified as "well capitalized": (1) a common iggiTier 1 risk-based ratio of 6.5% (new standa(@);a Tier 1 riskhased capital ratio of 8
(increased from 6%); (3) a total risk-based rafi@@%o (unchanged) and (4) a Tier 1 leverage rdtie?6 (unchanged).

At December 31, 2014, Pathfinder Bank was well-tzdigied.

Transactions with Related Parties. Transactions between a bank (and, generally, iisidiaries) and its related parties or affiliates lemitec
by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Actaffiliate of a bank is any company or entitatttontrols, is controlled by or is un
common control with the bank. In a holding compaontext, the parent bank holding company and amypemies which are controlled
such parent holding company are affiliates of thek Generally, Sections 23A and 23B of the FedRealerve Act limit the extent to whi
the bank or its subsidiaries may engage in "covéatsactions" with any one affiliate to 10% of lsunstitution's capital stock and surf
and contain an aggregate limit on all such tramsastwith all affiliates to an amount equal to 2@¥%such institution's capital stock &
surplus. The term "covered transaction” includesrttaking of loans, purchase of assets, issuanaegaBrantee and similar transaction:
addition, loans or other extensions of credit by ihstitution to the affiliate are required to balateralized in accordance with speci
requirements. The law also requires that affilisd@sactions be on terms and conditions that dystantially the same, or at least as favol
to the institution, as those provided to non-adiiis.

Pathfinder Bank's authority to extend credit todit®ctors, executive officers and 10% shareho|dessvell as to entities controlled by s
persons, is currently governed by the requiremehSections 22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reséiteand Regulation O of the Fede
Reserve Board. Among other things, these provisganerally require that extensions of credit siders:

. be made on terms that are substantially the sapanddollow credit underwriting procedures that aot less stringent th:
those prevailing for comparable transactions withffiliated persons and that do not involve morantthe normal risk
repayment or present other unfavorable featurets

. not exceed certain limitations on the amount oflitrextended to such persons, individually andhie aggregate, whi
limits are based, in part, on the amount of PatlgirBank's capita

In addition, extensions of credit in excess of @iartimits must be approved by Pathfinder Bank'ardmf directors. Extensions of credi
executive officers are subject to additional lintitssed on the type of extension involved.

Enforcement. The FDIC has extensive enforcement authority onsuried state savings banks, including PathfindelkB&hat enforceme
authority includes, among other things, the abitdyassess civil money penalties, issue cease asidtdrders and remove directors
officers. In general, enforcement actions may lit&abed in response to violations of laws and ragahs and unsafe or unsound practices
FDIC also has authority under federal law to appaiconservator or receiver for an insured bankeumeértain circumstances. The FDI(
required, with certain exceptions, to appoint aeieer or conservator for an insured state mmmber bank if the bank was "critice
undercapitalized" on average during the calendartqu beginning 270 days after the date on whieh itfstitution became "critical
undercapitalized."

Federal Insurance of Deposit Accounts. The DoddFrank Act permanently increased the maximum amotideposit insurance for ban
savings institutions and credit unions to $250,p80depositor.

Under the FDIC's riskased assessment system, insured institutions ssignad to one of four risk categories based orersigory

evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certdirer risk factors. Rates are based on eachutistits risk category and certain specified
adjustments. Stronger institutions pay lower rathie riskier institutions pay higher rates.
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In February 2011, the FDIC published a final rufeler the Dodd-rank Act to reform the deposit insurance assesssyatem. The ru
redefined the assessment base used for calculd¢ipgsit insurance assessments effective April 1120Jnder the rule, assessments
based on an institution's average consolidated &stsets minus average tangible equity, insteatbtal deposits. The rule revised
assessment rate schedule to establish assessamggitgyrfrom 2.5 to 45 basis points.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the Finan€Ciogporation ("FICO") is authorized to impose andlest, with the approval of the FDI
assessments for anticipated payments, issuance aodtcustodial fees on bonds issued by the FICDeir1980s to recapitalize the forr
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation.bbmels issued by the FICO are due to mature in 20bugh 2019. For the quai
ended December 31, 2014, the annualized Financargdtation assessment was equal to 0.62 of a pagis of total assets less tangi
capital.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target Deposit lasce Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated insurepodis to 1.35% ¢
estimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seedclieve the 1.35% ratio by June 30, 2020. It fenided that insured institutions w
assets of $10 billion or more will fund the increasThe Dodd-rank Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratitstead leaving it to tl
discretion of the FDIC, and the FDIC has exerctbed discretion by establishing a long-term funiibraf 2%.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assa#s. Any significant increases would have areesty effect on the operating expel
and results of operations of Pathfinder Bank. Mg@naent cannot predict what assessment rates wiifl thee future.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the RId@n a finding that an institution has engagedrieafe or unsound practices, is ir
unsafe or unsound condition to continue operatimmbas violated any applicable law, regulationgyrurder or condition imposed by
FDIC. We do not currently know of any practicendition or violation that may lead to terminatiohoair deposit insurance.

Community Reinvestment Act. Under the CRA, a bank has a continuing and affiwveabbligation, consistent with its safe and sc
operation, to help meet the credit needs of itsremommunity, including low and moderate incomeghborhoods. The CRA does
establish specific lending requirements or progréandinancial institutions nor does it limit ansititution's discretion to develop the type
products and services that it believes are bestdsuo its particular community. The CRA does reguhe FDIC, in connection with
examination of a bank, to assess the instituti@terd of meeting the credit needs of its commuaityg to take such record into account i
evaluation of certain applications by such insittof including applications to establish or acquiranches and merger with other depos
institutions. The CRA requires the FDIC to provalevritten evaluation of an institution's CRA perf@ance utilizing a foutiered descriptiv
rating system. Pathfinder Bank's latest FDIC CRifnga dated October 9, 2012, was "satisfactory."”

Federal Reserve System. The Federal Reserve Board regulations require deppsnstitutions to maintain non-interesérning reservi
against their transaction accounts (primarily nigpd¢ order of withdrawal (NOW) and regular checkaccounts). The regulations genel
provide that reserves be maintained against aggrégasaction accounts as follows: a 3% resemi® isaassessed on net transaction acci
up to and including $89.0 million; a 10% reserviorés applied above $89.0 million. The first $33nillion of otherwise reservable balan
are exempted from the reserve requirements. Tioeiais are adjusted annually. Pathfinder Bank c@splith the foregoing requirements.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Pathfinder Bank is a member of the Federal HomenlBa@nk System, which consists of twelve regi
Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loatk Bgstem provides a central credit facility prinhafor member institutions as well
other entities involved in home mortgage lendidg a member of the FHLBNY, Pathfinder Bank is regdito acquire and hold a speci
amount of shares of capital stock in the FHLBNYs & December 31, 2014, Pathfinder Bank was in diamqe with this requirement.
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Other Regulations

Interest and other charges collected or contraitieddy Pathfinder Bank are subject to state usawsland federal laws concerning inte
rates. Pathfinder Bank's operations are also sutgdederal laws applicable to credit transactjsuch as the:

. Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of digdrms to consumer borrowers;

o Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, requiriag hlbrrowers for mortgage loans for one- to ftamily residential re:
estate receive various disclosures, including gadtth estimates of settlement costs, lender sergicind escrow accol
practices, and prohibiting certain practices thatéase the cost of settlement servi

. Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, requiring financiaktitutions to provide information to enable theblmi and publi
officials to determine whether a financial institut is fulfilling its obligation to help meet theotising needs of tl
community it serves

. Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discringition on the basis of race, creed or other pratdbiactors in extendit
credit;

. Fair Credit Reporting Act, governing the use armuvgion of information to credit reporting agengies

. Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner inieh consumer debts may be collected by collecigencies;

. Truth in Savings Act; and

. Rules and regulations of the various federal aganciarged with the responsibility of implementiugh federal laws.

The operations of Pathfinder Bank also are sulbjettte:

. Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes aydib maintain confidentiality of consumer financiacords an
prescribes procedures for complying with admintsteasubpoenas of financial recori

. Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E priyated thereunder, which govern automatic depdsitsanc
withdrawals from deposit accounts and customeghtsiand liabilities arising from the use of auttedateller machines a
other electronic banking service

. Check Clearing for the 21Century Act (also known as "Check 21"), which giVesbstitute checks," such as digital ct
images and copies made from that image, the sagaédtanding as the original paper che

. USA PATRIOT Act, which requires savings banks ofietcpto, among other things, establish broadeneitraoney
laundering compliance programs, due diligence pedicand controls to ensure the detection and riegodf mone
laundering. Such required compliance programs atended to supplement existing compliance requirgsneals
applicable to financial institutions, under the B&ecrecy Act and the Office of Foreign Assets @dnmegulations; an

. Gramm-LeaclBliley Act, which places limitations on the shariafjconsumer financial information by financial tigtions
with unaffiliated third parties. Specifically, tli@ramm-LeackBliley Act requires all financial institutions offiag financia
products or services to retail customers to prosigieh customers with the financial institution's/@cy policy and provid
such customers the opportunity to "opt out" of sharing of certain personal financial informatioithaunaffiliated thirc
parties.
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Holding Company Regulation

The Company, as a bank holding company, is subjegkamination, regulation, and periodic reportimgler the Bank Holding Company ,
of 1956, as amended, as administered by the FeBesdrve Board. The Company is required to obtanprior approval of the Fede
Reserve Board to acquire all, or substantially afllithe assets of any bank or bank holding compBnipr Federal Reserve Board appri
would be required for the Company to acquire diacindirect ownership or control of any voting ggties of any bank or bank holdi
company if it would, directly or indirectly, own aontrol more than 5% of any class of voting shafdbe bank or bank holding company.

A bank holding company is generally prohibited fremgaging in, or acquiring, direct or indirect gohtof more than 5% of the voti
securities of any company engaged in bamking activities. One of the principal exceptitaghis prohibition is for activities found by f
Federal Reserve Board to be so closely relatecankibg or managing or controlling banks as to l@aper incident thereto. Some of
principal activities that the Federal Reserve Bdaad determined by regulation to be closely reléwedanking are: (i) making or servic
loans; (ii) performing certain data processing m&w, (iii) providing securities brokerage servicés) acting as fiduciary, investment
financial advisor; (v) leasing personal or realgey under certain conditions; (vi) making investrts in corporations or projects desig
primarily to promote community welfare; and (vigauiring a savings association.

The Gramme-LeaclBliley Act of 1999 authorizes a bank holding comydhat meets specified conditions, including defoogi institution:
subsidiaries that are "well capitalized" and "waktinaged," to opt to become a "financial holding pany." A "financial holding compan
may engage in a broader array of financial acésitihan permitted a typical bank holding companychSactivities can include insurai
underwriting and investment banking. The Compaay ¢lected to be a "financial holding company."

The DoddFrank Act required the Federal Reserve Board tanptgate consolidated capital requirements for banké savings and lo
holding companies that are no less stringent, Qa#ntitatively and in terms of components of cdpitean those applicable to their subsid
depository institutions. Instruments such as cativg preferred stock and truysteferred securities, which are currently inclugaias Tier
capital, by bank holding companies within certamitls are no longer includable as Tier 1 capitabjsct to certain grandfathering. 1
previously discussed final rule regarding regulatoaipital requirements implements the Ddeldnk Act's directives as to holding comp
capital requirements.

In December 2014, legislation was passed by Conadlet requires the Federal Reserve to reviseSitsall Bank Holding Company Poli
Statement" to exempt bank and savings and loanifwpltbmpanies of less than $1.0 billion of consatidl assets from the consolid:
capital requirements, provided that such compamiest certain other conditions such as not engaigirgignificant nonbanking activitie
Currently, the small bank exemption applies onlybtmk holding companies (not savings and loan hgldiompanies) of less than $!
million in consolidated assets. The Federal Resargintains authority to apply the consolidatedtahpequirements to any bank or savi
and loan holding company as warranted for supenyiparposes. This legislation, when implementedthey Federal Reserve Board, r
exempt the Company from the consolidated capitplirements until its consolidated assets reach Killion.

A bank holding company is generally required toegikie Federal Reserve Board prior written noticarmf purchase or redemption of t
outstanding equity securities if the gross consitien for the purchase or redemption, when combimitld the net consideration paid for
such purchases or redemptions during the precddingonths, is equal to 10% or more of the comparysolidated net worth. The Fed:
Reserve Board may disapprove such a purchase emmbn if it determines that the proposal woulchstdute an unsafe and unso
practice, or would violate any law, regulation, Bed Reserve Board order or directive, or any dioriimposed by, or written agreem
with, the Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Red®oard has adopted an exception to that appregalinement for weltapitalized ban
holding companies that meet certain other conditiohhe Federal Reserve Board has issued guidahiohd wequires consultation with 1
Federal Reserve Board prior to a redemption orredfase in certain circumstances.
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The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policynstateregarding the payment of dividends by bankdihgl companies. In general,
Federal Reserve Board's policies provide that divit should be paid only out of current earningsaniy if the prospective rate of earni
retention by the bank holding company appears sterdi with the organization's capital needs, agsality and overall financial conditic
The Federal Reserve Board's policies also reqiéea bank holding company serve as a source afi¢ial strength to its subsidiary bank:
using available resources to provide capital fushd$ng periods of financial stress or adversity Bgdnaintaining the financial flexibility ai
capital-raising capacity to obtain additional rases for assisting its subsidiary banks where rsgegs The Dodd-rank Act codified th
source of strength policy. Under the prompt cdivecaction laws, the ability of a bank holding quamy to pay dividends may be restricte
a subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. Thetpdatory policies could affect the ability of t@®mpany to pay dividends or otherw
engage in capital distributions.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Act makes deposit@titutions liable to the FDIC for losses suffer@danticipated by the insurance fun
connection with the default of a commonly contrdligepository institution or any assistance providgdhe FDIC to such an institution
danger of default. This law could potentially apfayPathfinder Commercial Bank.

The Company and Pathfinder Bank will be affectedh®y monetary and fiscal policies of various agenaf the United States Governm
including the Federal Reserve System. In view @ngfing conditions in the national economy and e rtioney markets, it is impossible
management to accurately predict future changesoinetary policy or the effect of such changes enhtihisiness or financial condition of
Company or Pathfinder Bank.

The Company's status as a registered bank holdimpany under the Bank Holding Company Act will esempt it from certain federal a
state laws and regulations applicable to corpanatigenerally, including, without limitation, cemaprovisions of the federal securities laws.

Federal Securities Laws

The Company's common stock is registered with #muBties and Exchange Commission under the Sexsifitxchange Act of 1934. We
subject to the information, proxy solicitation, imhsr trading restrictions and other requiremenidenrthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

The registration under the Securities Act of 198%he Company's shares of common stock issuederCtbmpany's stock offering does
cover the resale of those shares. Shares of corstook purchased by persons who are not our affianay be resold without registrati
Shares purchased by our affiliates are subjedtdarésale restrictions of Rule 144 under the SeéesirAct of 1933. If we meet the curr
public information requirements of Rule 144 under Securities Act of 1933, each affiliate of ourattcomplies with the other conditions
Rule 144, including those that require the affdlatsale to be aggregated with those of other psrseould be able to sell in the public mar
without registration, a number of shares not toeexl; in any threaionth period, the greater of 1% of our outstandihgres, or the avere
weekly volume of trading in the shares during thecpding four calendar weeks. In the future, wg permit affiliates to have their sha
registered for sale under the Securities Act 03193
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Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbane®xley Act of 2002 addresses, among other issugpptate governance, auditing and accounting, ekecabmpensation, a
enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate inféionaWe have prepared policies, procedures anttmgsdesigned to ensure complie
with these regulations.

FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION
Federal Taxation

General . The Bank and the Company is subject to federalnmedaxation in the same general manner as oth@owions, with sorr
exceptions discussed below. The following disaussif federal taxation is intended only to summadertain pertinent federal income
matters and is not a comprehensive descriptiohefdx rules applicable to the Company or the Bank.

Method of Accounting . For federal income tax purposes, the Company ctiyregports its income and expenses on the acenatdhod o
accounting and uses a tax year ending Decembar3ilifig its federal and state income tax returns.

Bad Debt Reserves . Prior to 1996, Pathfinder Bank was permitted t@lelish a reserve for bad debts and to make annigiti@ns to th
reserve. These additions could, within specifietnida limits, be deducted in arriving at our taxalsicome. As a result of tax law change
1996, Pathfinder Bank was required to use the ipatiargeeff method in computing its bad debt deduction hegig with its 1996 feder
tax return. Savings institutions were required ¢oapture any excess reserves over those establishetl December 31, 1987 (base
reserve). At December 31, 2014, Pathfinder Bankrftakeserves subject to recapture in excess bé#e year reserves.

Pathfinder-Federal is required to use the specifarge-off method to account for tax bad debt diclus.

Taxable Distributions and Recapture . Prior to 1996, bad debt reserves created prio®88 vere subject to recapture into taxable incdi
Pathfinder Bank failed to meet certain thrift assetl definitional tests or made certain distribogio Tax law changes in 1996 elimine
thrift-related recapture rules. However, undereutlaw, pret988 tax bad debt reserves remain subject to re@jitPathfinder Bank mak
certain nondividend distributions, repurchases any of its camratock, pays dividends in excess of earningspaofits, or fails to qualify ¢
a "bank" for tax purposes. At December 31, 2014 total federal pre-base year bad debt reserveapoximately $1.3 million.

Alternative Minimum Tax . The Internal Revenue Code imposes an alternativénmim tax at a rate of 20% on a base of regulaatiia
income plus certain tax preferences, less anyablailexemption. The alternative minimum tax is asgd to the extent it exceeds the re¢
income tax. Net operating losses can offset noentloain 90% of alternative taxable income. Centgipments of alternative minimum -
may be used as credits against regular tax lisgslin future years. At December 31, 2014, the @amy had no such amounts availabl
credits for carryover.

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. A financial institution may carry back net opéngtlosses to the preceding two taxable years arvdaird tc
the succeeding 20 taxable years. As of Decemhe2(®BH4, the Company does not have a federal neatipg loss carryforward.

Corporate Dividends-Received Deduction . The Company may exclude from its federal taxabtmime 100% of dividends received fr
Pathfinder Bank as a whollywned subsidiary by filing consolidated tax returfi$e corporate dividends received deduction % 8then th
corporation receiving the dividend owns at leas26f the stock of the distributing corporation. eTividendseceived deduction is 7(
when the corporation receiving the dividend owrss ldhan 20% of the distributing corporation.
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State Taxation

For 2014, we are subject to the New York State ¢hisme Tax on Banking Corporations in an annual arhequal to the greater of (i) 7.1%
Pathfinder Bank's "entire net income" allocabl&ltw York State during the taxable year, or (ii) #mplicable alternative minimum tax. 1
alternative minimum tax is generally the greate(a)f0.01% of the value of Pathfinder Bank's asalitgable to New York State with cert
modifications, (b) 3% of our "alternative entiret mcome" allocable to New York State, or (¢) $1)2%ntire net income is similar to fede
taxable income, subject to certain modificationd atiernative entire net income is equal to enteeincome without certain modificatior
Net operating losses arising in the current pecinl be carried forward to the succeeding 20 taxgdrdes.

Effective January 1, 2015, banking corporationd wé taxed under the New York State General Busir@srporation Franchise T
provisions. The New York State tax rate on "entie¢ income" will be reduced from 7.1% to 6.5% efifee January 1, 2016, and vari
modifications will be available to community barkkefined as banks with less than $8 billion in ltatssets) regarding deductions assoc
with interest income.

Our state tax returns have not been audited folatdive years.

As a Maryland business corporation, New Pathfinsleequired to file an annual report with, and fraychise taxes to, the state of Maryland.
ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS

Not required of a smaller reporting compa

ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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2) The building is owned; the underlying landdéaded with an annual rent of $33,0
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ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various claims and lawsuits to whichGloenpany is periodically involved that are incidéritathe Company's business. In
opinion of management, such claims and lawsuitth@aggregate are not expected to have a matelvarse impact on the Compar
consolidated financial condition and results ofragiens.

ITEM 4: MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

PART I

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company's common stock commenced trading oNA®DAQ Capital Market on October 17, 2014 under shmbol "PBHC" followin
the completion of the Conversion and Offering.oPto that date, the common stock of Pathfingederal, the Company's predecessor
traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

There were 774 shareholders of record as of Marct215. The following table sets forth the high and losing bid prices and divider
paid per share of common stock for the periodscetéd. The stock prices prior to October 17, 2tdve been adjusted by the exchange
of 1.6472 used in the Conversion and Offering. d@élends paid have not been adjusted by the exgheatio.

Price per shar Dividenc
Quarter Ended: High Low Paic
December 31, 201 $ 10.2C $ 9.4t $ 0.0z
September 30, 201 $ 9.2z % 857 $ 0.0
June 30, 201 $ 9.2¢ $ 8.7t $ 0.0z
March 31, 2014 $ 8.7¢ $ 8.2( $ 0.0
December 31, 201 $ 852 $ 7.7¢ $ 0.0z
September 30, 201 $ 9.71 % 757 $ 0.0:
June 30, 201 $ 9.5¢ $ 6.92 $ 0.0z
March 31, 2013 $ 792 $ 6.2 $ 0.0:
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Dedger 31, 2014 with respect to shares of commonkstieat may be issued under
Company's existing equity compensation plans.

Number o
securitie
remaining

available fo

future

Number o issuanc

securities t Weighted-  under equit

be issue averag compensatia

upon exercis  exercise pric plans

of outstandin  of outstandin (excluding

options options securitie

warrants an  warrants an reflected ir

Plan Category rights rights column (a
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsld 170,000 $ 5.7t 64,00(
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechatgers - - -
Total 170,000 $ 5.7 64,00(

Dividends and Dividend History

The Company (and its predecessor) has historigaig regular quarterly cash dividends on its comratotk. The Board of Directc
presently intends to continue the payment of ragglerterly cash dividends, subject to the needHose funds for debt service and o
purposes. Payment of dividends on the common stoslbject to determination and declaration byBbard of Directors and will depe
upon a number of factors, including capital requieats, regulatory limitations on the payment ofidkwnds, Pathfinder Bank and
subsidiaries' results of operations and financ@idition, tax considerations, and general econaroitditions. More details are incluc
within the section titled Regulation and Supervisio

There were no stock repurchases in the three npmrtbd ended December 31, 2014.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial deegs forth certain financial highlights of the Canpg and should be read in conjunction
the consolidated financial statements and relateelsn and the "Management's Discussion and Anadydtnancial Condition and Results
Operations" included elsewhere in this annual rtepo Form 10-K.

For the years ended December 3.
201« 201: 2012 2011 201(C

Year End (In thousands

Investment securities available for s 88,07: 80,95¢ 108,33¢ 100,39! 85,321

Loans receivable, ni 382,18¢ 336,59: 329,24’ 300,77( 281,64¢

Advances or borrowin 66,10( 40,85: 34,96¢ 26,07 41,00(

Total interest incom $ 19,69¢ $ 18,88: $ 18,76 $ 18,60¢ $ 18,13¢

Net interest incom 17,08t 15,61¢ 14,857 14,26: 13,33:

Net interest income after provision for loan los 15,88( 14,587 14,03: 13,32: 12,28:

Total noninterest expense 15,68¢ 14,75! 13,51¢ 13,14¢ 11,78¢

Income tax eXienE 1,15: 847 92¢ 1,04« 1,007
Net income $ 2,74t $ 2,40¢ $ 2,648 $ 2,32 $ 2,50¢
|
Per Share

Tangible book value per common sh 11.7¢ 10.1¢ 9.1: 8.0z 8.2¢

Performance Ratios

Return on average equi 5.5C 5.8¢ 6 6.7 8.07

(o]
a1
o0

Shareholders' Equity to total assets at end obg 12.2¢ 8.5¢F 8.54 7.4¢

Net interest margil 3.4C 3.34 4 3.6¢€ 3.61

w
_

Noninterest expense to average as 2.9z 2.9¢ 3.14 3.0C

I:
o]
o

Dividend payout ratio (c 13.8¢ 12.47 11.37 12.87 11.9C
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Asset Quality Ratios

Nonierformmi assets as a iercent of total a 1.2

Allowance for loan losses as a percent of nonperifog
loans 85.5( 94.2: 81.1: 84.1¢ 61.5¢

Regulatory Capital Ratios (Bank Onl

Tier 1 capital (to ris-weighted asset:

Numberof:
Bankini offices 9 8 8 8 7

(a) Adjusted to reflect the 1.6472 exchange ratio usebe conversior

(b) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noniagtrexpense, including regulatory assessmentsiedily the sum of net interest income
and noninterest income excluding net gains on seddemptions and impairment of investment se@siéind net gains (losses) on
sales of loans and foreclosed real es

(c) The dividend payout ratio is calculated ugiingdends declared and not waived by PathfindercBgm MHC for periods prior to the
Conversion and Offering that occurred on October2Dd4, divided by net incom
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ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

Throughout Management's Discussion and AnalysisD&A") the term, "the Company", refers to the condated entity of Pathfind
Bancorp, Inc. Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder $tajuTrust Il are wholly owned subsidiaries of Hattler Bancorp, Inc., howewvi
Pathfinder Statutory Trust Il is not consolidated feporting purposes (see Note 11 of the congeliifinancial statements). Pathfin
Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, Inc., Pathfinéksk Management Company, Inc., and Whispering @akgelopment Corp. are who
owned subsidiaries of Pathfinder Bank. At Decenfifer2013, Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C, the Compamysual holding company pare
whose activities are not included in the consoédafinancial statements or the MD&A, held 60.4%tltg Company's outstanding comr
stock and the public held 39.6% of the outstandmmmon stock.

On October 16, 2014, Pathfinder Bancorp, MHC catecefrom the mutual to stock form of organizatidn.connection with the Conversi
the 60.4% of outstanding shares of Pathfireederal, Company's predecessor, owned by Pathfdaterorp, MHC were sold to depositor:
the Bank (the "Offering"). Upon completion of tienversion and Offering, the Company sold 2,636,8580mmon stock to depositors
$10.00 per share. Shareholders of the Companywezté.6472 shares of the Company's common stackdoh share of PathfindEedere
common stock they owned immediately prior to cortipteof the transaction. Cash in lieu of fractibslhares was paid based on the offe
price of $10.00 per share. Common shares held éyPtthfindei~ederal ESOP prior to the Conversion were also anged using tt
Conversion ratio of 1.6472. Following the compatof the Conversion and Offering, the PathfinBederal was succeeded by the Comg
a new, fully public Maryland corporation with tharse name. Accordingly, Pathfinder Bancorp, MHCse€ato exist. As a result of
offering and the exchange of shares, the Compasy/#2,203 shares outstanding.

Our business strategy has been to transition froraditional savings bank primarily focused on oréging one- to foufamily residential re:
estate loans to a more diversified loan composisiomilar to a commercial bank, while at the sameeti maintaining our high standard
customer service and convenience. We have empladiesloping our business banking by offering potsluhat are attractive to srr
businesses in our market area. Notwithstandirgigrificant portion of our lending activity has lme@nd will continue to be, the originat
of one- to four-family residential real estate IsaHighlights of our business strategy are as Valo
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« Expanding our business banking . We have increased our emphasis on servicing éedanof small businesses in our market
We intend to use our branch office network and grpeed commercial deposit specialists to providevenient commercial lo
and deposit products and services to businessmastp including merchant and remote deposit cagergces. We believe that
developing our commercial relationships with snbaisinesses we will be able to offer a variety ofises and deposit products t
will provide a growing source of fee income to Riaither Bank. We have introduced new products amdiees in order to attract ne
business customers, and we will continue to expamgroducts to help meet the needs of our busitiestemers

« Continuing our emphasis on commercial business and commercial real estate lending . In recent years, we have sough
significantly increase our commercial business aathmercial real estate lending, consistent witle said sound underwriti
practices. In this regard, we have added persowhel are experienced in originating and servicinghewercial real estate a
commercial business loans. We view the growth af cammercial business and commercial real estaaslas a means
diversifying and increasing our interest income astlablishing relationships with local businessesich offer a recurring ar
potentially broader source of fee income and depdisan traditional one- to fodiamily residential real estate lending. We antt
that our emphasis on commercial business and coomheeal estate lending will complement our trewtil one- to foufamily
residential real estate lending.

« Diversifying our products and services with a goal of increasing non-interest income over time. We have sought to reduce
dependence on net interest income by increasindethnéncome for services we provide. We offer progpand casualty, life ai
health insurance through our subsidiary, Pathfirdesk Management Company, Inc., and its insurargeney subsidiary, t
FitzGibbons Agency, LLC. Additionally, PathfindBank's investment services provides brokerage ses\ior purchasing stoc
bonds, mutual funds, annuities, and ldagn care products. We intend to gradually groeséhbusinesses in the years ahead
have already added personnel for Pathfinder Bamkéstment services. We believe that there wilbpportunities to crossell thes
products to our deposit and borrower customerslwinay increase our n-interest income

« Continuing to grow our customer relationships and deposit base by expanding our branch network . As conditions permit, we w
expand our branch network through a combinatiomlefovo branching and acquisitions of branchestloerdfinancial service
companies. We believe that as we expand our brmaettork, our customer relationships and deposébwll continue to grow. £
we continue to grow our lending operations in Oragal County, we anticipate opening additional breaan Onondaga Cour
based on customer demand. As we expand our bratelork, we expect our deposit base in Onondaga §@dorincrease. We «
not currently have any agreements or understandiegarding specific de novo branches or acquistioAdditionally, we hav
committed significant resources to establish a anlplatform to accommodate future growth by upgrgdour informatiol
technology, maintaining a robust risk managemedtampliance staff, hiring additional commerciaiders and credit analysts, i
upgrading our physical infrastructure. We beliehattthese investments will enable us to achieveabipaal efficiencies wit
minimal additional investments, while providing ieased convenience for our custom

« Utilizing the net proceeds from the conversion to continue the controlled growth of Pathfinder Bank . In 2009, we sold $6.7 millic
of Series A Preferred Stock to the U.S. Treasurypaxs of the Troubled Asset Relief Program ("“TARRAY) September 2011, \
replaced the Series A Preferred Stock with $13.liamiin gross proceeds from the sale of Seriesr&fdfred Stock to the U.
Treasury as part of the Small Business Lending RUBBLF"). At December 31, 2014, the Series B &mefd Stock had an ann
dividend rate of 1.0% which will increase to 9.0B6NMarch 2016. We have used the proceeds fromaleeds preferred stock
provide capital for asset growth and increased itendWe believe that we can successfully utilize tiet proceeds from t
conversion to continue our asset growth and craabanking platform that will improve our profitalbjl and create operatior
efficiencies for Pathfinder Ban

« Providing quality customer service. Our strategy emphasizes providing quality custosmwice delivered through our bral
network and meeting the financial needs of ouramst base by offering a full complement of loanpakt and online bankit
solutions (i.e., internet banking). Our compeétadvantage is our ability to make decisions, saechpproving loans, more quic
than our larger competitors. Customers enjoy, aildcantinue to enjoy, access to senior executiard local decision makers
Pathfinder Bank and the flexibility it brings toeih businesse:

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statementpiagared in accordance with accounting princigkserally accepted in the United St
and follow practices within the banking industrxpplication of these principles requires managentennake estimates, assumptions
judgments that affect the amounts reported in tmsalidated financial statements and accompanyitesn These estimates, assumption:
judgments are based on information available aheflate of the financial statements; accordinggythis information changes, the finan
statements could reflect different estimates, agsioms and judgments. Certain policies inherehtiye a greater reliance on the us
estimates, assumptions and judgments and as swehehgreater possibility of producing results thatld be materially different th
originally reported. Estimates, assumptions awnigjoents are necessary when assets and liabiliéesquired to be recorded at fair valu
when an asset or liability needs to be recordedimgent upon a future event. Carrying assets mfulities at fair value inherently results
more financial statement volatility. The fair vafj and information used to record valuation adjasts for certain assets and liabilities,
based on quoted market prices or are provided bgrdhirdparty sources, when available. When third parfgrmation is not availabl
valuation adjustments are estimated in good faitmbhnagement.
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The most significant accounting policies followeyl the Company are presented in Note 1 to the cwlael financial statements. Th
policies, along with the disclosures presentedhm other financial statement notes and in thisudision, provide information on hi
significant assets and liabilities are valued ie ttonsolidated financial statements and how th@dees are determined. Based on
valuation techniques used and the sensitivity wérftial statement amounts to the methods, assumsptamd estimates underlying th
amounts, management has identified the allowancéoém losses, deferred income taxes, pension atidigs, the evaluation of investm
securities for other than temporary impairment,ahaual evaluation of the Company's goodwill fosgible impairment, and the estimatiol
fair values for accounting and disclosure purpdedse the accounting areas that require the mdgéstive and complex judgments. Th
areas could be the most subject to revision asim@mmation becomes available.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan lossesepresents management's estimate of probable éssed inherent in the Ic
portfolio. Determining the amount of the allowarfoe loan losses is considered a critical accognéatimate because it requires signifi
judgment on the use of estimates related to theuatrand timing of expected future cash flows onaimgd loans, estimated losses on poc
homogeneous loans based on historical loss experi@md environmental factors, all of which maysheceptible to significant change. -
Company establishes a specific allowance for athroercial loans in excess of the total related trédieshold of $100,000 and sin
borrower residential mortgage loans in excess eftthal related credit threshold of $300,000 ideadi as being impaired which are
nonaccrual and have been risk rated under the Quytgpaisk rating system as substandard, doubtfulloss. In addition, an accrui
substandard loan could be identified as being irepgai The measurement of impaired loans is geydvaed upon the present value of fu
cash flows discounted at the historical effectmteiiest rate, except that all collatedapendent loans are measured for impairment bai
the fair value of the collateral, less costs td. sEhe majority of the Company's impaired loans eollateraldependent. For all other loa
the Company uses the general allocation methoddluafyestablishes an allowance to estimate theaptetincurred loss for each risting
category. The loan portfolio also represents Hrgdst asset type on the consolidated statemecorafition. Note 1 to the consolida
financial statements describes the methodology tseétermine the allowance for loan losses anid@udsion of the factors driving chan
in the amount of the allowance for loan lossegadtuided in this report.

Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and liabilitieare determined using the liability method. Ut
this method, the net deferred tax asset or lighiitrecognized for the future tax consequencess iE attributable to the differences betw
the financial statement carrying amounts of existissets and liabilities and their respective &seb as well as net operating and capita
carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabdliiee measured using enacted tax rates appliekable income in the years in which th
temporary differences are expected to be recovereskettled. The affect on deferred tax assetsliahdities of a change in tax rates
recognized in income tax expense in the perioditfdtides the enactment date. If current availavielence about the future raises di
about the likelihood of a deferred tax asset be#adized, a valuation allowance is establishede jlkdgment about the level of future tax:
income, including that which is considered capitalinherently subjective and is reviewed on a iowal basis as regulatory and busit
factors change. A valuation allowance of $458,08% maintained at December 31, 2014, as managedmediates it may not gener:
sufficient capital gains to offset its capital lasary forward. The Company's effective tax raféets from the statutory rate due primarily
non-taxable interest income and bank owned lifarsusce.

Pension Obligations. Pension and postretirement benefit plan liabilitiesbenefits and expenseare based upon actuarial assumptior

future events, including fair value of plan assétterest rates, and the length of time the Compaifiyhave to provide those benefits. ~
assumptions used by management are discussedenlRab the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statésneontained herein.
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Evaluation of Investment Securities for Other-Than-Temporary-Impairment (" OTTI"). The Company carries all of its available-&ak
investments at fair value with any unrealized gaindosses reported net of tax as an adjustmesh&weholders' equity and includec
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),peXoe the credit-related portion of debt secuiitypairment losseand OTTI of equit
securities which are charged to earnings. The Gaoiylp ability to fully realize the value of its istments in various securities, incluc
corporate debt securities, is dependent on therlymug creditworthiness of the issuing organizatioim evaluating the debt security (b
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity) portfolar other-thantemporary impairment losses, management considgiswe intend to sell tr
security before recovery of its amortized cost;if2) is "more likely than not" we will be requideto sell the security before recovery o
amortized cost basis; or (3) if the present valuexpected cash flows is not sufficient to recower entire amortized cost basis. When the
value of a held-to-maturity or available-feale security is less than its amortized cost basisassessment is made as to whether O°
present. The Company considers numerous factoen wlletermining whether a potential OTTI exists #ma period over which the de
security is expected to recover. The principatdesconsidered are (1) the length of time andetitent to which the fair value has been
than the amortized cost basis, (2) the financiadd®mn of the issuer and (guarantor, if any) addexse conditions specifically related to
security, industry or geographic area, (3) failaf¢he issuer of the security to make schedulegré@st or principal payments, (4) any chau
to the rating of the security by a rating agencyd &) the presence of credit enhancements, if emtjuding the guarantee of the fed
government or any of its agencies.

Evaluation of Goodwill . Management performs an annual evaluation ofGbmpany's goodwill for possible impairment. Basedthe
results of the 2014 evaluation, management hasrdieted that the carrying value of goodwill is notgaired as of December 31, 2014.
evaluation approach is described in Note 9 of tiresolidated financial statements.

Estimation of Fair Value. The estimation of fair valueis significant to several of our assets; includimgestment securities available-for-
sale, interest rate derivative (discussed in détalote 19 to the Notes to Consolidated FinanSi@tements contained herein), intang
assets, foreclosed real estate, and the valuapfdollateral when valuing loans. These are abhmded at either fair value, or the lower of «
or fair value. Fair values are determined basethind party sources, when available. Furthermacepunting principles generally accepte
the United States require disclosure of the faiu@®f financial instruments as a part of the nébethe consolidated financial statements.
values on our available-fmale securities may be influenced by a number cibofa; including market interest rates, prepaynsgaed:
discount rates, and the shape of yield curves.

Fair values for securities available-feate are obtained from an independent third paityng service. Where available, fair values aasdi
on quoted prices on a nationally recognized seeariéxchange. If quoted prices are not availdilie,values are measured using qu
market prices for similar benchmark securities. nstgement made no adjustments to the fair valueegqubtt were provided by the pric
source. The fair values of foreclosed real estaug the underlying collateral value of impairednisare typically determined based
evaluations by third parties, less estimated dossell. When necessary, appraisals are updatediéat changes in market conditions.

RECENT EVENTS

On December 18, 2014, the Company announced th&oiard of Directors declared a quarterly dividefids.03 per common share.
dividend is payable on February 2, 2015 to shadshelof record on January 15, 2014.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS?

Earnings performance metrics generally improved2f@t4 as compared to 2013 as the Company repatedd net income of $2.7 milli
for 2014 as compared to $2.4 million for 2013. iBamnd diluted earnings per share, return on aeeesgets, and net interest margil
improved for 2014 as compared to 2013. The magstifstant metric that decreased between these weosywas return on average equit
the $24.9 million in net proceeds as a result ef @onversion significantly increased average eqtlity denominator in the return on eq
metric, in the fourth quarter of 2014.

LAll historical measures relating to shares andiagmper share have been adjusted by the exchatigef 1.6472 used in the Conversion
and Offering that occurred on October 16, 2014.
The following comments refer to the table of Avex&plances and Rates and the Rate/Volume Anabyails,of which follow below.
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For 2014, return on average assets was 0.51% apatethto 0.48% for the prior year and driven by itte¥ease in net interest inco
between the full year 2014 and the full year 20T8e increase in average balances of loans anleakavestment securities as well as
decrease in average rates paid on time depositsdh&8NY borrowings primarily drive the increase met interest income. Additional
noninterest income increased to $3.8 million in2&bm $3.4 million in 2013 due principally to tivcrease in other charges, commissi
and fees stemming from the commissions recordetidyritzGibbons Agency, LLC and the increase imlsarvicing fees. Partially offsetti
these increases to net income was the increaseninterest expense to $15.7 million in 2014 frord 81million in 2013, due largely to t
increase in salaries and employee benefits. Thsores for these changes are provided in the sectitbed "Noninterest Income" a
"Noninterest Expense". Additionally, the provisifam income taxes increased $306,000 between 20d2@14 due to the increase in inct
before taxes and a higher effective tax rate iM201

Total assets were $561.0 million at December 31428s compared to $503.8 million at December 31320The increase in total as:
between these two dates was the result of thedeera loans, largely commercial real estate asdieatial mortgages, and the increas
securities. The loan portfolio increased $45.9imilland the investment securities portfolio incesh$13.6 million between these two da
The increase in total assets was funded largelthey$26.1 million increase in borrowings from thdUBNY, the increase in sharehold:
equity driven by the net proceeds of $24.9 millfoom the Conversion and Offering, and the $2.3imillincrease in retained earnings fi
net income less common and preferred stock divisleledlared during 2014.

Certain asset quality metrics recorded an improverirethe areas of delinquencies and the ratiollofvance to loan losses to period
loans, and the ratio of nonperforming assets @l &dsetsOverall delinquency trends recorded an improvenbettween December 31, 2(
and December 31, 2014 as total past due loanspascant of total loans decreased from 5.1% to 3a20%hese two dates. All major Ic
product segments contributed to this improvemdrite ratio of the allowance for loan losses to mbeod loans decreased from 1.48¢
December 31, 2013 to 1.38% at December 31, 20IMamgement's estimate of the probable losses mhierehe current loan portfol
slightly decreased.

Asset quality metrics that deteriorated were th raf net chargesffs to average loans and the ratio of nonperfogrigans to period el
loans. The ratio of net chargéfs to average loans was 0.25% for 2014 as cordpar®.15% for 2013, reflecting management's astio
2014 to chargeff those accounts deemed uncollectible but reskefue previously through the provision for loandes. Additionally, th
ratio of nonperforming loans to period end loanBetember 31, 2014 was 1.61% as compared to 1.5Déce@mber 31, 2013 as the leve
nonperforming commercial real estate loans inciet&de6 million between these two dates.

The Company's shareholders' equity increased $2#lian, or 61.1%, to $68.8 million at December 2014 from $42.7 million at Deceml
31, 2013. This increase was principally due to$B4.9 million of net proceeds from the Converséom Offering and $2.7 million in r
income offset by common and preferred stock divitdetieclared.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the Company's primary soofagperating income for payment of operating exggsnand providing for possible lc
losses. It is the amount by which interest earoednterestearning deposits, loans and investment securitiesegls the interest paid
deposits and borrowed money. Changes in net Bttareome and the net interest margin ratio résoith the interaction between the volu

and composition of earning assets, interest-bediabdities, and their respective yields and furglcosts.
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Net interest income increased $1.5 million to $1million for 2014 as compared to the same priorrygeariod. This increase was d
primarily to the increase in interest income omkband investment securities stemming from theeeme in average balances on these et
asset products and the decrease in interest exmensiene deposits and FHLBNY borrowings. Signifitaeductions were recorded
average rates paid on time deposits and FHLBNYdwings of 35 basis points and 55 basis points,eesgely, between these same
periods. Interest expense on borrowings, the ntgjof which is from FHLBNY, decreased $127,000,ths 14.8% increase in aver:
balances, to $40.3 million, was more than offseth®ydecrease in rates paid on these borrowings 138% in 2013 to 1.23% in 2014. A
result, our net interest margin for the twelve nienénded December 31, 2014 increased to S64fildm 3.34% for the comparable prior y
period .

Average Balances and Rates

The following table sets forth information concemmiaverage interest-earning assets and intbessing liabilities and the yields and r:
thereon. Interest income and resultant yield infatian in the table has not been adjusted for taxvedency. Averages are computed on
daily average balance for each month in the petiodied by the number of days in the period. Yiedasl amounts earned include loan 1
Nonaccrual loans have been included in int-earning assets for purposes of these calculations.

For the twelve months Ended December 3:
2014 2013 2012

Average Average Average
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost

Interest-earning assets

Taxable investment securiti 106,97¢ 1,97¢ 1.85%% 94,597 1,74¢ 1.85%% 93,35: 1,927 2.06%

Interes-earning time depos 452 7 1.55% 1,612 19 1.1&% 1,99 24 1.2(%

Total interest-earning assets  502,53: 19,69¢ 3.92% 467,81« 18,88: 4.04% 436,29( 18,76° 4.3(%

Other asset 39,76¢ 33,80¢ 32,59¢

Net unrealized gain

Total assets $537,88t $497,84t $467,25:.
NOW account: $3896( $ 76 0.2(% $ 37,73t $ 8C 0.21% $ 31,81¢ 82 0.2¢%
MMDA accounts 94,94 401 0.42% 81,73¢ 364 0.4%5%  77,40: 427 0.55%
Time depositt 160,04:  1,39¢ 0.87% 160,820 1,95/ 1.22% 159,28!  2,29( 1.44%

Borrowings 40,33¢ 497 1.22%  35,12¢ 624 1.76%  31,07¢ 84< 2.71%

Noninteresi-bearing liabilities:

Other liabilities 4,35¢ 4,18¢ 3,76¢

Shareholders' equity

Net interest incom

Net interest margi

to average interest-bearing

liabilities 117.88% 115.81% 113.8{%
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Interest Income

Changes in interest income result from changedhénaverage balances of loans, securities, andegiarning deposits and the rele
average yields on those balances.

Interest income increased 4.3% to $19.7 millionMeein 2013 and 2014 due principally to the $34.7ianilor 7.4% increase in aver:
interest-earning assets between these two timedgweriThe increase in average inteesstiing assets was due to the increase in a\
balances of loans and taxable investment secyntieieh increased 6.8% and 13.1%, respectively betwthese two periods. The increas
the average balance of loans was driven princigaflgommercial real estate loans. The averagéyiearned on loans, however, decre
by 15 basis points from 4.83% in 2013 to 4.68% @14 as maturing higher rate loans were replacelbdnys at current lower market ra
Yields on taxable investment securities remainechanged at 1.85% between 2013 and 2014 and re#ectithe prolonged lower inter
rate environment for shorter duration securitiesafghout 2013 and 2014.

Interest Expense

Changes in interest expense result from chang#seimverage balances of deposits and borrowingstentklated average interest cost
those balances.

The increase in average balances of interest epassets was funded, in part, by the $22.5 milllamease in interegiearing liabilitie:
between 2013 and 2014. Interest expense decr&8&J000 between these two time periods drivencirdly the $560,000 reduction
interest expense on time deposits and the $12#@fdction in interest expense on borrowings. Téwiction in interest expense on t
deposits was the result of maturing long term aigthdr rate certificates of deposit being replacgdihorter term certificates of deposit
lower current market rates as customers optedténrehorter term investments given the uncertafaréest rate environment. As a re:
rates paid on average time deposits decreased 229 in 2013 to 0.87% in 2014. The reductionniteliest expense on borrowings '
result of the significant drop in average rates paid on boirrgs; the majority of this component being FHLBN#riowings. This drop wi
the result of matured long term and higher rate BNY advances replaced in 2014 by much shorter athsat current lower market rat
The other, much smaller, component of average angs was the ESOP loan that was refinanced ont@ctbs, 2014 in connection with -
Conversion and Offering.

Average rates paid on all interdstaring liability accounts, with the exception afviigs and club accounts, decreased between 2@
2014.
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Rate/VVolume Analysis

Net interest income can also be analyzed in terimthe impact of changing interest rates on int-earning assets and interésaring
liabilities, and changes in the volume or amountheise assets and liabilities. The following tat@presents the extent to which change
interest rates and changes in the volume of inte@ming assets and interégaring liabilities have affected the Company'snest incom
and interest expense during the periods indicdtddrmation is provided in each category with regpe: (i) changes attributable to char
in volume (change in volume multiplied by priora@gt(ii) changes attributable to changes in rateifges in rate multiplied by prior volumr
and (iii) total increase or decrease. Changeibat#tble to both rate and volume have been alldcestably. Taxexempt securities have |
been adjusted for tax equivalency.

Years Ended December 31

2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Increase/(Decrease) Due t Increase/(Decrease) Due t
Total Total
Increase Increase
(In thousands Volume Rate (Decrease Volume Rate (Decrease
Interest Income:

Loans $ 1,09: $ (512) $ 581 $ 1,22 $ (960) $ 265
Taxable investment securiti 22¢ (2) 227 25 (204) (179
Tax-exempt investment securiti 54 (34 20 67 (33 34
Interes-earning time deposi 17 5 (12 (5) - (5)
Interest-earning deposits (2) 2 - 3 - 3
Total interest income 1,357 (5417) 81€ 1,31t (1,199 11¢€

Interest Expense:
NOW account: 3 (7) (4) 14 (16) (2
Money management accoul @ (3 4) (@) (16) a7
MMDA accounts 57 (20 37 23 (86) (63)
Savings and club accour 4 5 9 4 4 -
Time deposit: (9) (557) (560 22 (35¢) (33€)
Junior subordinated debentu - Q) Q) - @) @)
Borrowings 83 (210) (127) 99 (31¢) (219)
Total interest expense 137 (787) (650) 161 (80%) (644)
Net change in net interest incol $ 1,22( $ 24€  $ 1,466 $ 1,15/ $ (392 $ 762

Provision for Loan Losses

We established a provision for loan losses, whichharged to operations, at a level managemerevesliis appropriate to absorb prob
incurred credit losses in the loan portfolio. Walkating the level of the allowance for loan Iassmanagement considers historical
experience, the types of loans and the amountasfsion the loan portfolio, adverse situations thay affect the borrower's ability to rep
estimated value of any underlying collateral, amdvpiling economic conditions. This evaluationiriderently subjective as it requi
estimates that are susceptible to significant rewias more information becomes available or asréuévents change. The provision for |
losses represents management's estimate of thenamexessary to maintain the allowance for loasdest an adequate level.
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The Company recorded $1.2 million in provision foan losses as compared to $1.0 million recordethénprior year. This year over y
increase reflects higher levels of net charge-off2014 as the Company recorded $897,000 in netgekudfs in 2014 as compared
$492,000 in net charge-offs in 2013. The increimseet chargesffs resided in commercial real estate, commeriaigs of credit an
commercial and industrial loans. As a result, ido of net chargeffs to average loans increased from 0.15% in 2013.25% in 2014
Also supporting the need for the increase in agldéti provision was the 13.4% increase in grossddagtween December 31, 2013
December 31, 2014, driving the need to reflectttiditional inherent losses in the loan portfolio.

Noninterest Income

The Company's noninterest income is primarily cdegat of fees on deposit account balances and ttmss, loan servicing, commissic
and net gains or losses on sales of securitiess]@and foreclosed real estate.

The following table sets forth certain information noninterest income for the years indicated.

Year Ended December 3

(Dollars in thousands) 201 201z Change

Service charges on deposit accol $ 1,20C $ 1,178 $ 25 2.1%
Earnings and gain on bank owned life insure 30¢ 224 84 37.5%
Loan servicing fee 271 14€ 12t 85.6%
Debit card interchange fe 49¢€ 46¢ 27 5.8%
Other charges, commissions and fees 1,14( 567 573 101.1%
Noninterest income before gai 3,41¢ 2,581 834 32.2%
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentisies 31C 36& (55 -15.1%
Net gains on sales of loans and foreclosed reale 34 47C (43€) -92.8%
Total noninterest income $ 3,75¢ $ 3,41¢ $ 343 10.(%

As indicated in the above table, noninterest incéon¢he year ended December 31, 2014 increase8,®3d, or 10.0%, to $3.8 million as
compared to the same prior year period. This am@evas driven by the increase in other chargesmissions and fees of $573,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared yednended December 31, 2013. The commissiottedhsurance Agency were
responsible for $533,000 of this increase. Addiity, loan servicing fees increased $125,000 dube recognition of income from
guarantee fees of the Federal National Mortgagedaton ("FNMA"). Earnings on bank owned life imance also increased $84,000,
during the year ended December 31, 2014 as compated comparable prior year period. Partialfigetting this increase was a reductiol
$436,000 in net gains on sales of loans and fosedoeal estate between the full year 2014 anfiithgear 2013. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, we recorded $395,000 in nesdem the sale of residential loans as a meanstafating interest rate risk.

A positive impact on commissions in 2015 and beyen@xpected as a result of the Company's acauisitif an Insurance Agency

Onondaga County in January 2015 in support of the@any's strategy to increase recurring commissitisre details can be found in N
25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Noninterest Expense
The following table sets forth certain information noninterest expense for the years indicated.

Year Ended December 3

(Dollars in thousands) 201« 201z Change

Salaries and employee bene $ 8,79t $ 8,081 $ 714 8.8%
Building occupancy 1,607 1,47¢ 131 8.€%
Data processin 1,54¢ 1,444 104 7.2%
Professional and other servic 623 65¢ (36) -5.5%
Advertising 537 537 - 0.C%
FDIC assessmen 39¢ 41F a7 -4.1%
Audits and exam 24¢ 21¢ 30 13.7%
Other expenses 1,92¢ 1,92( 8 0.4%
Total noninterest expenses $ 15,688 $ 14,75. $ 934 6.3%

As indicated above, total noninterest expense HerYear ended December 31, 2014 increased dudylamé¢he increase in salaries
employee benefits, building occupancy and datagssinog expenses. Included in the increase in pees@xpense was $286,000 relate
the Insurance Agency which was not acquired uréit@nber of 2013 and a $265,000 increase in defemegpensation costs. The incre
in building occupancy expenses was due to the Coypacquisition of three properties in Decembet320The year over year increas
data processing expenses was due to the deprecétibamortization related to the addition of gatacessing hardware and online ban
platform software and the increase of $40,000 itMAdrocessing charges and $36,000 in other thirtd/gaocessing charges.

Income Tax Expense

In 2014, the Company reported income tax expen$d & million compared with $847,000 in 2013. Timsrease was due to a higher I¢
of income before tax and an increase in the effedax rate from 26.0% in 2013 to 29.6% in 2014e Thcrease in the effective tax rate
due to a higher proportion of taxable items, ngtdthns and taxable investment securities, inimiab nontaxable items. See Note 15 tc
consolidated financial statements for the recoatdin of the statutory tax rate to the effective rate.

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the Yeaod ended December 31, 2014 were $0.64 and $e8pectively, as compared to bi
and diluted earnings per share of $0.58 for ther'Yesiod ended December 31, 2013. The increa®asic and diluted earnings per sl
comparing year over year periods was due to the&se in net income available to common sharetoluktween these two periods.

CHANGESIN FINANCIAL CONDITION
Investment Securities

The investment portfolio represents 27% of the Camyfs average earning assets and is designed tvagera favorable rate of ret
consistent with safety of principal while assistitige Company in meeting its liquidity needs anceriest rate risk strategies. All of
Company's investments are classified as eithetablaifor-sale or held-toaaturity. The Company does not hold any tradingustes. Th
Company invests primarily in securities issued hyitéd States Government agencies and sponsorepeses ("GSEs"), mortgadaacket
securities, collateralized mortgage obligationatesand municipal obligations, mutual funds, egséygurities, investment grade corporate
instruments, and common stock issued by the Fednale Loan Bank of New York (FHLBNY). By investing these types of assets,
Company reduces the credit risk of its asset basertust accept lower yields than would typically deailable on loan products. (
mortgage backed securities and collateralized ragegbligations portfolio is comprised predominaietl passthrough securities guarante
by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae and aatsnclude any securities backed by sub-primetioerohigh-risk mortgages.
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At December 31, 2014, available-for-sale and heldiaturity investment securities increased 11.8% 1@88® million. There were |

securities that exceeded 10% of consolidated shitefs' equity. See Note 4 to the consolidatednfoial statements for further discussiol
securities.

Our available-for-sale investment securities arei@a at fair value and our held-toaturity investment securities are carried at ainedtcost

The following table sets forth the carrying valdghe Company's investment portfolio at December 31

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity

(In Thousands) 201< 2012 201< 2012
Investment Securities:

State and political subdivisiol 8,44: 6,581 22,61( 21,37:
Residential mortgacr-backed- US agency 30,57¢ 22,13¢ 8,04: 5,55¢€

Mutual funds 1,67¢ 1,64¢

Total investment securities 88,07: $ 80,95¢ $ 40,878 $ 34,41
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The following table sets forth the scheduled méiksj amortized cost, fair values and average yidd the Company's investment secur
at December 31, 2014. Average yield is calculatethe amortized cost to maturity. Adjustable mratertgagebacked securities are incluc
in the period in which interest rates are next daked to be reset.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

One Year or Less One to Five Years Five to Ten Years
Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted
(Dollars in thousands) Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield

Debt investment securities
State and political subdivisiol 841 0.8€% 5,83¢ 1.65% 1,67( 1.7°%

Total 5,81¢ 1.4(% $ 29,04: 1.3t% $ 5,14¢ 1.7/%

Residential mortgage-backed -US

AienCi $ - - $ 137 3.56% $ 10,75¢ 2.0%%

Total $ - $ - % 137 3.5¢% $ 12,20¢ 2.0€%
Mutual funds $ 1,282 5.55% $ - - $

Total $ 1,552 5.01% $

More Than Ten Years Total Investment Securities

Amortized Weiihted Amortized Fair Weiihted

Debt investment securities
State and political subdivisiol 8,34¢ 8,44: 1.5¢%

Total 40,00t $ 40,05: 1.42%

Residential mortgage-backed -US
Agenc $ 19,42¢ 2.12% $ 30,32. $ 30,57¢ 2.1(%

Total 33,41] 2.17% $ 45,75: $ 46,05! 2.15%

Mutual funds - $ 1,28. $ 1,67¢ 5.55%

Total 0.0(% $ 1,55 $ 1,96¢ 5.0%

45




Table of Contents

HELD -TO-MATURITY
One Year or Less One to Five Years Five to Ten Years

Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted
(Dollars in thousands) Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield

Debt investment securities

State and political subdivisiol 19¢ 0.7%% 3,84¢ 1.8%% 11,61:

Total 19€ 0.7t% $ 6,13¢ 1.9¢% $ 14,99:

Residential mortgage-backed -US
Agenc

Total $ - - $ - - $ 3,73¢

More Than Ten Years Total Investment Securities
Amortized Weighted Amortized Fair Weighted
(Dollars in thousands) Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Value Avg Yield

Debt investment securities

State and political subdivisiol

6,957 3.5% 22,61( 23,42¢ 3.06%

Total 8,607 3.3t% $ 29,93 $ 30,82( 2.95%

Residential mortgar-backed-US Agenc 7,20¢ 2.94% $ 8,04 % 8,28¢ 2.82%

Total

7,20¢€ 2.94% $ 10,94: $ 11,31¢ 2.91%

The above noted yield information does not giveafto changes in fair value that are reflecteddoumulated other comprehensive los
consolidated shareholders' equity.

Loans Receivable

Average loans receivable represent 72% of the Cagpaverage earning assets and account for tlaegteportion of total interest incon
The Company currently has the largest portionsfaan portfolio in the commercial product segm@eonimmercial real estate and comme!
loans) that represents 48% of total loans. ThiEleesal mortgage loans product segment repressis of the total loans. The Comp.
has seen the proportion of the commercial procharease to reflect a diversified balance betweernrdgbidential and commercial loan proc
segments. The Company anticipates a continued cionami to financing the purchase or improvementesfdential real estate in its mat
area. The Company also extends credit to busisesikin its marketplace secured by commercial esstate, equipment, inventories,
accounts receivable.
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The following table sets forth the composition of éoan portfolio in dollar amounts. There wereloans classified as loans held for sa
the dates indicated.

December 31
(In thousands) 201< 201z 2012 2011 201(

Commercial real esta 125,88 95,51( 82,351 73,62¢ 69,06(

Home equity and junior lier 22,90¢ 21,22 22,14 24,25 25,27

Total loans receivable $ 387,53t $ 341,63 $ 333,74t $ 304,75( $ 285,29¢

The following table shows the amount of loans autding, including net deferred costs, as of DeceBhe 2014 which, based on remair
scheduled repayments of principal, are due in theogds indicated. Demand loans having no statéedide of repayments, no ste
maturity, and overdrafts are reported as one ye&ss. Adjustable and floating rate loans aréuiied in the period on which interest r:
are next scheduled to adjust, rather than the goémiavhich they contractually mature. Fixed ratarls are included in the period in which
final contractual repayment is due.

Due Unde Due 15 Due Ove
(In thousands) One Yea Year: Five Year Total

Real estate

Residential real estate 60 5,33( 169,93: 175,32.

Commercial and te-exempt loan: 25,64 15,87¢ 17,74¢ 59,26¢

Consumer 494 2,59¢€ 1,07( 4,16(

Due Aftel
Interest rates One Yea

Variable 182,73«

Total loans receivable increased $45.9 million 4% when compared to the prior year, primarily thuthe growth in commercial real es
and residential mortgage loans. The Company do¢soriginate sub-prime, Al&, negative amortizing or other higher risk struet
residential mortgages. Commercial real estate loapsrted significant growth as this product clessorted a $30.4 million or 31.8% y
over year increase. The Company maintained itstcseghdards, but benefitted from the new Busirgssking office in downtown Syract
and participation with area lenders on several realestate transactions.

Home equity and junior liens loans recorded a mthegrovement as loans outstandings increased 709%$22.9 million at December
2014 as compared to December 31, 2013.
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Nonperforming Loans and Assets

The following table represents information concegiihe aggregate amount of nonperforming assets:

December
31,
(Dollars In thousands) 201/ 201z 201z 2011 201(
Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial loan $ 4,03 $ 2,70¢ $ 2,72¢  $ 259 $ 4,22¢
Consume 324 447 77€ 70€ 36&
Residential mortgage loans 1,902 2,19¢ 2,04¢ 1,42¢ 1,33t
Total nonaccrual loans 6,25¢ 5,35( 5,54¢ 4,72¢ 5,92¢
Total nonperforming loans 6,25¢ 5,35( 5,54¢ 4,72¢ 5,92¢
Foreclosed real estate 261 61¢ 42€ 53€ 37t
Total nonperforming assets $ 65171 $ 596¢ $ 597/ $ 526/ $ 6,29¢
Troubled debt restructurings not included ab $ 2,21¢ % 245¢ % 1937 $ 59t $ 1,587
Nonperforming loans to total loa 1.61% 1.5% 1.66% 1.55% 2.08%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 1.16% 1.18% 1.25% 1.1% 1.54%

Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans, cwnal troubled debt restructurings ("TDR"), andefdosed real estate. Loans
considered modified in a TDR when, due to a borrsanancial difficulties, the Company makes a @gssion(s) to the borrower that it
would not otherwise consider. These modificatioras/rimclude an extension of the term of the loam granting a period when interest-
only payments can be made, with the principal paymmade over the remaining term of the loan onaturity. TDRs are included in the
above table within the categories of nonaccruaidaar TDRs not included above (the latter also kmaw accruing TDRS).

As indicated in the above table, total nonperfogrimans increased $906,000 between December 34, &t December 31, 2013, driven
by a $1.6 million increase in commercial real estatnperforming loans across several large rekstips. Partially offsetting this increase
was a modest decrease in residential mortgage@arsimer nonperforming loans. Management contitaesonitor and react to national
and local economic trends as well as general dartfmnditions which may impact the quality of tpertfolio, and considers these
environmental factors in support of the allowanoelban loss reserve. Management believes thatuhent level of the allowance for
loan losses, at $5.3 million, adequately addretiseurrent level of risk within the loan portfalifhe Company maintains strict loan
underwriting standards and carefully monitors tegqgrmance of the loan portfolio.

Foreclosed real estate ("FRE") balances decredad@ecamber 31, 2014, from the prior year as thesstiiroughout 2014 allowed the FRE
properties to be reduced from 8 to 4 between thwesalates.

The Company generally places a loan on nonaccmaflissand ceases accruing interest when loan pdypegformance is deemed
unsatisfactory and the loan is past due 90 daysare. There are no loans that are past due 90atay®re and still accruing interest.
The Company considers a loan impaired when, basedigent information and events, it is probablat the Company will be unable to
collect the scheduled payments of principal anergdt when due according to the contractual tefrttsedoan.

Had the loans in nonaccrual status performed iora@ance with their original terms, additional irstrincome of $162,000 and $117,000
would have been recorded for the years ended Dezredih 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The measurement of impaired loans is based upofaithealue of the collateral or the present vadfiéuture cash flows discounted at the
historical effective interest rate for impairedrgavhen the receipt of contractual principal artdrigst is probable. At December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, the Company had $7.4 mifliwh $5.7 million in loans, which were deemed toirbpaired, having specific
reserves of $917,000 and $1.0 million, respectivdlie $1.7 million year over year increase in iimgmhloans was principally due to the
$1.5 million increase in impaired commercial restb¢e loans across three relationships. The masédienortgage loan and consumer loan
(which includes home equity loans, junior liens atider consumer loans) product segments both egphanbdest year over year decreases
in impaired loans. The threshold for individualiyeasuring impairment on commercial real estate anngercial loans remains at
$100,000 and for residential mortgage loans remati$$800,000 at December 31, 2014.
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Appraisals are obtained at the time a real esetared loan is originated. For commercial retdtesheld as collateral, the property is
inspected every two years.

Management has identified potential problem loastaling $8.4 million as of December 31, 2014, corefato $10.6 million as of
December 31, 2013. These loans have been interolsified as special mention, substandard, arbtol, yet are not currently
considered impaired. This definition has been gkdnfrom that utilized at December 31, 2013 anduded in the 2013 audited
consolidated financial statements filed on FormK1l®n March 17, 2014 as amended March 25, 2014t Décember 31, 2013, the
definition of potential problem loans was the sameahe definition at December 31, 2014 with theepon that it did not include those
loans internally classified as doubtful. Managentesst identified potential credit problems which miegult in the borrowers not being
able to comply with the current loan repayment teand which may result in possible future impai@h reporting. The $2.2 million
decrease in potential problem loans is due to dsesein potential problem loans within each loadpct segment. Contributing to this
decrease were three large commercial real estateviers newly identified as impaired in 2014 aneé floreclosure of residential
mortgages subsequently removed from potential prodban status. The largest decrease, $664,0@@témtial problem loans occurred
within the residential mortgage loan product segmen

As a result, the ratio of the allowance to loarséssto period-end loans at December 31, 2014 v@®84las compared to December 31,
2013 of 1.48%. The decrease was driven by thehmage-offs previously reserved for and the deeré@ashe specific allowance required
when comparing impaired loans at December 31, 20i#paired loans at December 31, 2013.

In the normal course of business, Pathfinder Baak from time to time, sold residential mortgagenk® and participation interests in
commercial loans. As is typical in the industryttifiader Bank makes certain representations andamnties to the buyer. Pathfinder Bank
maintains a quality control program for closed ®and considers the risks and uncertainties agedciaith potential repurchase
requirements to be minimal.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established througvision for loan losses and reduced by loarrgaraffs net of recoveries. The
allowance for loan losses represents the amountable for probable credit losses in the Compangan portfolio as estimated by
management. In its assessment of the qualitatie®oils used in arriving at the required allowarareldan losses, management considers
changes in national and local economic trendstatesof the portfolio growth, trends in delinquesscand nonaccrual balances, changes in
loan policy, and changes in management experiendestaffing. These factors, coupled with the rédgstorical loss experience within
the loan portfolio by product segment support tténeable and probable losses within the loan plotfo

The Company establishes a specific allocation llaccaanmercial loans identified as being impairedhaa balance in excess of $100,000.
These loans are on nonaccrual or have been riskl iatder the Company's risk rating system as suitestd, doubtful, or loss. The
measurement of impaired loans is based upon dltegrresent value of future cash flows discountdtie@historical effective interest rate
or the fair value of the collateral, less costssédl for collateral dependent loans. The majodfythe Company's impaired loans are
collateral-dependent. The Company uses the fdinevaf collateral, less costs to sell to measurgaimment on commercial and
commercial real estate loans. Residential reatedbans in excess of $300,000 will also be inetuéh this individual loan review.
Residential real estate loans less than this amwilinbe included in impaired loans if it is part the total related credit to a previously
identified impaired commercial loan.
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The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 20142013 was $5.3 million and $5.0 million, or 28&nd 1.48% of total year end
loans, respectively. Net loan charge-offs were788%0 during 2014, as compared to $492,000 in 2018 increase in net charge-offs
were reported in all loan portfolio classes with #xception of consumer loans which remained urgdthbetween 2013 and 2014.

For further discussion of our allowance for loassles procedures, please see "Business-Allowant¢®&or Losses" in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

The following table sets forth the allocation ofoatance for loan losses by loan category for théops indicated. The allocation of the
allowance by category is not necessarily indicat’éuture losses and does not restrict the ushefllowance to absorb losses in any
category.

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Percer Percer Percer Percer Percer
Allocation of Allocation of Allocation of Allocation of Allocation of
of the Loans t« of the Loans t« of the Loans t¢ of the Loans t« of the Loans t«
Total Total Total Total Total

(Dollars in thousands)  Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loan:¢ Allowance Loan:

Commercial real esta 2,801 32.5% 2,30z 28.(% 1,74¢ 24.€% 1,34¢ 24.2% 1,20¢ 24.2%

Home equity and junior
liens 38¢ 5.9% 433 6.2% 494 6.€% 501 8.C% 424 8.9%

Unallocated 56 28¢€ 88 19z 98

The following table sets forth the allowance faadosses for the periods indicated and relatédstat

(Dollars In thousands) 201¢ 201z 2012 2011 201(

Provisions charged to operating expenses 1,20t 1,032 82E 94C 1,05(

Commercial real estate and lo¢ 23 41 64 1 55

N
N
~
~
al

Residential real estate

Loans charged off:

Consume! 18¢ 17¢ 16¢ 16¢€ 157

Total charged-off (974) (6517) (50€) (707) (590)

Balance at end of yea 534¢ § 5041 $ 4,501 $ 3,98( $ 3,64¢

Allowance for loan losses to year-end loans 1.38% 1.4% 1.35% 1.31% 1.28%
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Deposits

The Company's deposit base is drawn from eighisievice offices and a business banking officesnritirket area. The deposit base cor
of demand deposits, money management and moneyetrdgRosit accounts, savings, and time depositsn®2014, 63% of the Compan
average deposit base of $438.2 million consistexbré deposits. Core deposits, which exclude teposits, are considered to be more s
and provide the Company with a lower cost sourciindls than time deposits. The Company will camdino emphasize retail and busir
core deposits by providing depositors with a falhige of deposit product offerings. With the operofgur Syracuse business banking of
in 2014, we anticipate increasing our business siegathering capability. In addition, Pathfindeor@mercial Bank, our commercial be
subsidiary, seeks business growth by focusinglodal identification and service excellence witthe municipal deposit marketplace.

Average deposits increased $25.8 million, or 6.@8¥gn compared to 2013. The increase in averagesdeprimarily related to increase:
demand accounts, NOW accounts, money market degmsitints and savings accounts.

At December 31, 2014, commercial deposits and npedideposits increased $12.7 million and $9.3iarill respectively while retail depos
decreased $14.4 million, all when compared to Déxar81, 2013. The increase in commercial and aipali deposits was the result of
Company's strategy to expand products and servicesir relationships within our existing markefBhe decrease in retail deposits -
principally the result of the decrease due to targe retail customers and the unanticipated outfibfunds from matured time deposits.

At December 31, 2014, time deposits in excess 6DFDO0 totaled $91.0 million, or 60.0% of time dsit®and 22.0% of total deposits.
December 31, 2013, these deposits totaled $88libmibr 60.0% of time deposits and 22.0% of tal&posits.

The following table indicates the amount of the @amy's certificates of deposit of $100,000 or muoydime remaining until maturity as
December 31, 2014:

(In thousands)
Remaining Maturity:

Three months or les $ 41,48¢
Three through six montt 21,86
Six through twelve montt 8,61¢
Over twelve months 19,07¢

Total $ 91,04¢
Borrowings

Shortterm borrowings are comprised primarily of advaneesl overnight borrowing at the Federal Home LoamiBof New Yorl
("FHLBNY"). At December 31, 2014 and December 2013 there were $55.1 million and $24.0 millionspectively, in shorterm
borrowings outstanding.

The following table represents information regagdéimort-term borrowings during 2014 and 2013.

(Dollars in thousands) 2014 201z
Maximum outstanding at any month € $ 55,10 $ 27,86(
Average amount outstanding during the 24,68: 14,87¢
Balance at the end of the peri 55,10( 24,00(
Weighted average interest rate during the 0.41% 0.4(%
Weighted average interest rate at the end of thege 0.41% 0.42%
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Long-+term borrowed funds consist of advances and repsechgreements from the FHLBNY and junior subotdohaebentures associe
with our outstanding Trust Preferred Securitiegndterm borrowed funds, which include the junior suthated debentures, totaled $1
million at December 31, 2014 as compared to $22liibmat December 31, 2013.

Capital

The Company's shareholders' equity increased $2#lian, or 61.1%, to $68.8 million at December 2014 from $42.7 million at Deceml
31, 2013. This increase was principally due to$B4.9 million of net proceeds from the Conversaom Offering and $2.7 million in r
income offset by common and preferred stock divitdedeclared. Offsetting these increases to shatersdlequity was an increase
$374,000 in accumulated other comprehensive losspdimcipally to a year end pension adjustment arD28,000 increase in unear
ESOP reflecting new shares purchased by the ES@ iGonversion and Offering.

Risk-based capital provides the basis for which all saare evaluated in terms of capital adequacy. t@lagdequacy is evaluated prima
by the use of ratios which measure capital agdioistt assets, as well as against total assetsatt@atveighted based on defined
characteristics. The Company's goal is to supgatvth and expansion activities, while maintainagtrong capital position and exceel
regulatory standards. At December 31, 2014, thekBaxceeded all regulatory required minimum capitdios and met the regulat
definition of a "well-capitalized" institution, i.ea leverage capital ratio exceeding 5%, a Tieisk-iased capital ratio exceeding 6% ai
total risk-based capital ratio exceeding 10%.

As a result of the Dod#rank Act, the Company's ability to raise new capibrough the use of trust preferred securitiey tma limitec
because these securities will no longer be includedier 1 capital. In addition, our ability to merate or originate additional revel
producing assets may be constrained in the futuoeder to comply with the new capital standardgined by federal regulation to take ef
January 1, 2015. See Note 18 to the consolidateshdial statements and the regulation and supenviséction within Part | of this Annt
Report on Form 10-K for further discussion on raeguty capital requirements.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves the Company's abildygenerate cash or otherwise obtain funds abnedre rates to support asset gro
meet deposit withdrawals, maintain reserve requér@s) and otherwise operate the Company on an ogdpaisis. The Company's prim
sources of funds are deposits, borrowed funds, @maton and prepayment of loans and maturitiemeéstment securities and other short-
term investments, and earnings and funds providedh foperations. While scheduled principal repayisern loans are a relativi
predictable source of funds, deposit flows and lpegpayments are greatly influenced by generardsterates, economic conditions
competition. The Company manages the pricing pbdits to maintain a desired deposit balance. dtiitian, the Company invests exc
funds in short-term interest-earning and othertassénich provide liquidity to meet lending requirents.

The Company's liquidity has been enhanced by iiigyaln borrow from the FHLBNY, whose competitivadvance programs and lines
credit provide the Company with a safe, reliabfe] aonvenient source of funds. A significant daseein deposits in the future could rest
the Company having to seek other sources of funddiduidity purposes. Such sources could includat, are not limited to, additior
borrowings, brokered deposits, negotiated time siégpathe sale of "available-f@ale" investment securities, the sale of loanshersale ¢
whole loans. Such actions could result in highégrest expense costs and/or losses on the ssdewifities or loans.

For the year ended 2014, as indicated in the Cmtadetl Statement of Cash Flows, the Company regarét cash flows from financi
activities of $54.2 million generated principally $24.9 million from the Conversion and Offerin@1$1 million from short term borrowinc
and $12.6 million from time and brokered deposislditionally, $5.0 million was provided through enating activities and $5.2 million w
provided from cash and equivalents. This was i@ees a net increase in loan outstandings of $Milllon and available-fosale investmel
securities of $6.8 million. As a recurring souafeliquidity, the Company's investment securitigsyided $18.0 million in proceeds fr
maturities and principal reductions for the yeatazh2014.
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The Company has a number of existing credit faedifvailable to it. Total credit available untlee existing lines is approximately $15
million. At December 31, 2014, the Company had.$6#illion outstanding under existing credit fatds.

The Asset Liability Management Committee of the @amy is responsible for implementing the policiad guidelines for the maintenai
of prudent levels of liquidity. As of December 2014, management reported to the Board of Diredtoat the Company is in complial
with its liquidity policy guidelines.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is also a party to financial instruraevith off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busittes®et the financing needs
its customers. These financial instruments inclademmitments to extend credit and standby lettérsredit. At December 31, 2014, -
Company had $61.0 million in outstanding commitrset extend credit and standby letters of creBie Note 16 to Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements contained herein.

ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Not required of a smaller reporting compa
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ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANIBL REPORTING

The Company's management is responsible for estidtd and maintaining adequate internal controt éimancial reporting, as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the B#ies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Becafifis mmherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, projections of anyuaten of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may becoradénuate because of changes in conditions, othitbategree of compliance with policies or
procedures may deteriorate. The Company's intezoatrol over financial reporting is a process desi under the supervision of the
Company's principal executive officer and princifiakncial officer to provide reasonable assuraregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of the Company'sifired statements for external reporting purposexctordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatiom@nagement, including the Company's principal etkee officer and principal financial
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation ofefiectiveness of its internal control over finalaieporting based on the framework in
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairthe Treadway Commission. Based on its
evaluation under that framework, management coecutiat the Company's internal control over finahceporting was effective as of
December 31, 2014. In addition, based on our assggs management has determined that there wemmaterial weaknesses in the
Company's internal controls over financial repatin

This annual report does not include an attestaggort of the Company's independent registeredipalscounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting pursuant to thiesuof the Dodd-Frank Act that exempts the Comdamy such attestation and requires only
management's report.

/ sl Thomas W. Schneider [s/ James A. Dowd
Thomas W. Schneidkt James A. Dow(
President & Chief Executive Offic Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Oswego, New York
March 18, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféinm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. autbsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related coaseticstatements of income, comprehensive inconaages in shareholders' equity
cash flows for each of the years then ended. Th@paay's management is responsible for these cdased financial statements. (
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesobidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheottsolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. The Company is not reguio have, nor were we engaged to perform, an atids internal control over financ
reporting. Our audit included consideration of int# control over financial reporting as a basis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thepse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverméghe company's internal control ¢
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no fswapinion. An audit also includes examining, oneat tbasis, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fimdrstatements, assessing the accounting princigled and significant estimates mad:
management, as well as evaluating the overall dimladed financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reason
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Pathfir
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 314 2nd 2013 and the results of their operatioustheir cash flows for each of the ye
then ended in conformity with accounting principieserally accepted in the United States of America

/sl BONADIO & CO.,

LL

Bonadio & Co., LLP
Syracuse, New York
March 18, 2015
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

December 3: December 3:
(In thousands, except share and per share data) 201< 201z

ASSETS:

Interest earning deposits 4,534 10,04(

Interest earning time depos 50C

Helo-to-maturity securities, at amortized cost (fair vabfi&42,139 and $34,222, respective 40,87¢ 34,41:

Loans 387,53 341,63

Loans receivable, net 382,18¢ 336,59:

Accrued interest receivab 1,84¢ 1,71¢

Intangible assets, n 17E 187

Bank owned life insuranc 10,35¢ 8,26¢

Total assets $ 561,02: $ 503,79:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Interes-bearin $ 360,90t $ 361,96¢

Total deposits 415,56¢ 410,14(

Long-term borrowings 11,00( 16,85:¢

Accrued interest payab 63 86

Total liabilities 491,82( 460,72:

Preferred stoc- SBLF, par value $0.01 per share; $1,000 liquisagiceference

Common stock, par value $0.01; 25,000,000 and D000 authorized share

Additional paid in capita

Accumulated other comprehensive |

Treasury stock, at cost; 0 and 356,787 sharesateply

Noncontrolling interest 414 35¢€

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 561,02: $ 503,79:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statemer
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the For the

year ende year ende

December 3: December 3:

(In thousands, except per share data) 201< 201

Interest and dividend income:

Debt securities
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1,95¢ 2,47¢

=1
—
[¢)
=
(9]
2]
—
o
>S5
Q.
[¢)
o
@,

55€ 72€

=}
—
)
=
[0}
(2]
—
o
)
=)
>
«Q
—
)
=
3
o
o
3
Qo
S
>
«Q
[0

Net interest incomr 17,08¢ 15,61¢

Net interest income after provision foam losses 15,88( 14,587
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Other expenses 1,92¢ 1,92(

Income before income tax 3,954 3,252

Net income attributable to nor-controlling interest and Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc . 2,801 2,40¢

Net income attributable to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. $ 2,748 $ 2,40¢

Net income available to common shareholdel $ 2650 $ 2,40¢

Earnings per common share- basic $ 064 $ 0.5¢

Dividends per common share $ 012 $ 0.12

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statement.
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Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incon

Years endel
December 3: December 3:
(In thousands 201« 201z

Retirement plan net losses recognized in plan

f
@
w
[o¢]
—_

Net unrealized (loss) gain on retirement pl (1,359 2,971

Unrealized holding gains on financial derivati

[©2]
N
[©2]
N

Reclassification adjustment for interest expenskuded in net income

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising duri kriod 907 2,07¢

Reclassification adjustment for net gains inclugtedet income (139) (365)

Tax effect 24¢ 284

&+

Comprehensive income 2427 $ 1,97¢

*»

Comprehensive income attributable to PathfindercBgm Inc. 2,371 $ 1,97¢

Retirement plan net losses recognized in plan esgwen $ an $ (152)
Plan gains (losses) not recognized in plan expenses 85 (1,039
Change in unrealized holding losses on finanaaivative 4 1
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising durirgpkriod 363 83C
Accretion of net unrealized loss on securitiesgfarred to held-to-maturity 33 521

(1) The accretion of the unrealized holding lossesccumulated other comprehensive income at the ofatransfer partially offsets t
amortization of the difference between the par @and the fair value of the investment securitieth@ date of transfer, and is an adjustr
of yield.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013

Accumulate:
Additional Other Con- Non-
Preferrer  Commot Paid ir Retaine: prehensiv  Unearne  Treasur controlling
(In thousands, except share
and per share data) Stock Stoclk Capita Earning: Loss ESOF Stock Interes Total

of existing shares, net of
expense!

Cancel 354,787 Treasur
Shares

3 4,731 -

- 4,73¢

Common stock dividends
declared

Balance, December 31,
2013 $ 13,000 $ 3C $ 8,22¢ $ 28,78¢ $ (1,74 $  (826¢) $ (4.76) $ 35¢ $43,07(

The accompanying notes are an integral parteottmsolidated financial statements.
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended Decemt
31,
(In thousands) 2014 201z
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casidlérom operating activitie:

Deferred income tax expen 3

I
N

Originations of loans he-for-sale -
Real estate acquired through foreclos 31
Available-for-sale investment securiti 13¢

Premise and equipme -

Amortization of mortgage servicing rigt 14 10

Earnings on bank owned life insurar 30 222

~

Net amortization of premiums and discounts on itmesit securitie 665 722

Stock based compensation and ESOP ex 27¢ 242

Net change in other assets and liabilities 393 28¢

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities Fto-maturi 8,767 10,43:
Net purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank s 1,01« 511

investment securities availa-for-sale 16,89¢ 21,83

investment securities he-to-maturit 1,10¢ 35¢&

Available-for-sale investment securiti 4,94( 7,151

Real estate acquired through foreclos 924 37¢

interest in Fitzgibbordgyency, net of cash acquired of $ - 35€
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2,36 2,26°

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

money management deposit accounts, MMDA account&acrow deposit 7,21 21,76¢

Net change in shc-term borrowings 31,10( 15,00(

Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 18 45

Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehc- SBLF 62 83
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Change in noncontrolling interest, 1 56 35¢€
Purchase of shares by ESOP (1,059 -

Net cash flows from financing activities 54,23( 24,24
Change in cash and cash equivalents (5,219 7,91(

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 16,57¢

CASH PAID DURING THE PERIOD FOR:

Income taxe:

Real estate acquired in exchange for Ic

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statemer
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statemierctade the accounts of Pathfinder Bancorp, Infee (ICompany") and its wholly own
subsidiary, Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). The Compés a Maryland corporation headquartered in Oswétew York. On October 1
2014, the Company completed its conversion fromntléual holding company structure and the relatglolip offering and is now a sto
holding company that is fully owned by the publigs a result of the conversion, the mutual holdognpany and former mitler holdinc
company were merged into Pathfinder Bancorp, Ife primary business of the Company is its investimreRathfinder Bank (the "Bank
which is 100% owned by the Company and the Compsirip0% owned by public Shareholders. The Comsahg a total of 2,636,0!
shares of common stock, par value of $0.01 pereshiarthe offering, including 105,442 shares soldite Pathfinder Bank employee st
ownership plan ("ESOP"). All shares were sold ptiee of $10.00 per share raising $26.4 milliorginss proceeds. Additionally, $197,
in cash was received from the merger of MHC in® ¢bmpany; and after accounting for conversiontedlaxpenses of $1.5 million, wh
offset gross proceeds, the Company received $24l@mmin net proceeds. Concurrent with the contiple of the offering, publicly owne
shares of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., a federal aatmm, were exchanged for 1.6472 shares of thegamyls common stock. At December
2014, the public and the ESOP, collectively, he852,203 shares. The Bank has four wholly ownedaijpg subsidiaries, Pathfinc
Commercial Bank, Pathfinder Risk Management Comparg: ("PRMC"), Pathfinder REIT, Inc. and WhispwyiOaks Development Co
All significant intercompany accounts and activity have been eliminatedonsolidation. Although the Company owns, thylouits
subsidiary PRMC, 51% of the membership interesEitnGibbons Agency, LLC ("FitzGibbons"), the Compais required to consolide
100% of FitzGibbons within the consolidated finat@tatements. The 49% of which the Company doéswn is accounted for separa
as noncontrolling interests within the consoliddiadncial statements.

The Company has seven offices located in Oswegmi@pane office in Onondaga County, and a busihbessing office in Syracuse, N
York which opened in the fourth quarter of 2014eTCompany is primarily engaged in the businesattoficting deposits from the gent
public in the Company's market area, and investingh deposits, together with other sources of fuimd®ans secured by one-tour family
residential real estate, commercial real estatginkss assets and in investment securities.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of ConsolidateBinancial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntconformity with accounting principles geneya#iccepted in the United States
America requires management to make estimates ssudmptions that affect the reported amounts oftesse liabilities and disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efftliancial statements and the reported amountsveinues and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those msttes. Management has identified the allowancddan losses, deferred income ta
pension obligations, the annual evaluation of tlen@any's goodwill for possible impairment and thaleation of investment securities
other than temporary impairment and the estimatibfair values for accounting and disclosure pugsoto be the accounting areas
require the most subjective and complex judgmemtd,as such, could be the most subject to revasamew information becomes available.

The Company is subject to the regulations of varigopvernmental agencies. The Company also undengeegodic examinations by 1

regulatory agencies which may subject it to furttleainges with respect to asset valuations, amafinégjuired loss allowances, and opere
restrictions resulting from the regulators' judgmsdmased on information available to them at timetof their examinations.
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Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company's activities are with customecated primarily in Oswego and Onondaga courdgfddew York State. A large porti
of the Company's portfolio is centered in residdriind commercial real estate. The Company claselgitors real estate collateral val
and requires additional reviews of commercial esthte appraisals by a qualified third party fomowercial real estate loans in exces
$400,000. All residential loan appraisals are reviewed byiratividual or third party who is independent of tlean origination or approv
process and was not involved in the approval ofapers or selection of the appraiser for the tatign, and has no direct or indirect intel
financial or otherwise in the property or the t@et®n. Note 4 discusses the types of securities that tregany invests in. Note 5 discus
the types of lending that the Company engaged3ire Company does not have any significant concotiato any one industry or custorr

Advertising
The Company follows the policy of charging the sasftadvertising to expense as incurred.
Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest represents the portion whership and profit or loss that is attributablethe minority owners of the FitzGibbc
Agency.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handjrasdue from banks and interéstaring deposits (with original maturity of threemth:
or less).

Investment Securities

The Company classifies investment securities dseeiavailable-for-sale or held-toaturity. The Company does not hold any secu
considered to be trading. Available-feate securities are reported at fair value, withurgealized gains and losses reflected as a ge
component of shareholders' equity, net of the apple income tax effect. Held-toaturity securities are those that the Companythe
ability and intent to hold until maturity and aeported at amortized cost. These securities iecthdse that were transferred from available-
for-sale to held-to-maturity in the third quartér2013, and more fully explained in Note 4 to thafcial statements.

Gains or losses on investment security transactioadased on the amortized cost of the specifiorigies sold. Premiums and discount:
securities are amortized and accreted into incaosirgythe interest method over the period to maturit

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statementtudes additional information about the Company'soaating policies with respect to
impairment of investment securities.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of thddfal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") system to hold stadkts district FHLB according to
predetermined formula. The stock is carried at.cos

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets, including salesoahk and loan participations, are accounted faabes when control over the assets has
surrendered. Control over transferred assetsamdd to be surrendered when (1) the assets hawveidmated from the Company, (2)
transferee obtains the right (free of conditiorat ttonstrain it from taking advantage of that rjgbtpledge or exchange the transferred a:
and (3) the Company does not maintain effectivetrobover the transferred assets through an agreetoerepurchase them before tl
maturity.
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Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial, municgral, consumer loans to customers. Loans that reamag has the intent and ability
hold for the foreseeable future or until maturitypay-off are stated at their outstanding unpaid prinlciizdances, less the allowance for |
losses plus net deferred loan origination coste dthlity of the Company's debtors to honor theintcacts is dependent upon the real e
and general economic conditions in the market ahegerest income is generally recognized whennmeds earned using the interest met
Nonrefundable loan fees received and related doggtnation costs incurred are deferred and amexdtiover the life of the loan using
interest method, resulting in a constant effectiiedd over the loan term. Deferred fees are recahinto income and deferred costs
charged to income immediately upon prepayment®fdhated loan.

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented insidential mortgage, commercial and consumer loaltse residential mortgage segn
consists of one-to-four family firdien residential mortgages and construction loaiemmercial loans consist of the following classes:
estate, lines of credit, other commercial and itriis and taxexempt loans. Consumer loans include both homéyelijpes of credit an
loans with junior liens and other consumer loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents manag&mesitimate of losses inherent in the loan podfal$ of the date of the statemen

condition and it is recorded as a reduction of $oaiihe allowance is increased by the provisioridan losses, and decreased by charffe-
net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uncollecibé charged against the allowance for loan lpss@ssubsequent recoveries, if any

credited to the allowance. All, or part, of thénpipal balance of loans receivable are chargedooffie allowance as soon as it is determr

that the repayment of all, or part, of the printipalance is highly unlikely. Noresidential consumer loans are generally chargedoolfate

than 120 days past due on a contractual basissaipl®ductive collection efforts are providing lesuConsumer loans may be chargec

earlier in the event of bankruptcy, or if theraisamount that is deemed uncollectible. No portibthe allowance for loan losses is restri

to any individual loan product and the entire abowe is available to absorb any and all loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atwelleonsidered adequate to provide for losses that be reasonably anticipat
Management performs a quarterly evaluation of thegaacy of the allowance. The allowance is basetth@e major components which i
specific components for larger loans, recent histbrlosses and several qualitative factors apptieda general pool of loans, and
unallocated component.

The first component is the specific component tkktes to loans that are classified as impaifeat. these loans, an allowance is establi
when the discounted cash flows or collateral valiughe impaired loan is lower than the carryingueadf that loan.

The second or general component covers pools aE|day loan class, not considered impaired, smbidance homogeneous loans, suc
residential real estate, home equity and otherwoes loans. These pools of loans are evaluateld$srexposure first based on historical
rates for each of these categories of loans. Tie afinet chargesffs to loan outstandings within each product ¢lassr the most recent eig
quarters, lagged by one quarter, is used to gendrathistorical loss rates. In addition, qualrafactors are added to the historical loss
in arriving at the total allowance for loan losddor this general pool of loans. The qualitafaetors include changes in national and |
economic trends, the rate of growth in the portfotrends of delinquencies and nonaccrual balartes)ges in loan policy, and change
lending management experience and related staffiagh factor is assigned a value to reflect imimgvstable or declining conditions ba
on management's best judgment using relevant irstiom available at the time of the evaluation. Sehqualitative factors, applied to e
product class, make the evaluation inherently sitivge, as it requires material estimates that magusceptible to significant revision as n
information becomes available. Adjustments to fihetors are supported through documentation of ghsiin conditions in a narrat
accompanying the allowance for loan loss analysiscalculation.
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The third or unallocated component is maintainec¢doer uncertainties that could affect managemesstgnate of probable losses. -
unallocated component of the allowance reflectsntlaegin of imprecision inherent in the underlyirggamptions used in the methodolo
for estimating specific and general losses in ihgfplio and generally comprises less than 10%heftbtal allowance for loan loss.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuirdarmation and events, it is probable that trempany will be unable to collect 1
scheduled payments of principal or interest whee dacording to the contractual terms of the loareegent. Factors considered
management in determining impairment include payns¢atus, collateral value and the probability oflecting scheduled principal a
interest payments when due. Loans that experiégmgignificant payment delays and payment shortfgiserally are not classified
impaired. Management determines the significariggagment delays and shortfalls on a chgezase basis, taking into consideration a
the circumstances surrounding the loan and theotver, including the length and reason for the dethg borrower's prior payment rec
and the amount of shortfall in relation to whabwged. Impairment is measured by either the pregsioe of the expected future cash fli
discounted at the loan's effective interest rattherfair value of the underlying collateral if thean is collateral dependent. The majorit
the Company's loans utilize the fair value of theerlying collateral.

An allowance for loan loss is established for apaimed loan if its carrying value exceeds its eatid fair value. The estimated fair value
substantially all of the Company's impaired loaresraeasured based on the estimated fair valueedb#n's collateral. For loans secure:
real estate, estimated fair values are determiniedhgly through thirdparty appraisals, less costs to sell. Appraisddegaare discounted
arrive at the estimated selling price of the ceffat, which is considered to be the estimatedvalue. The discounts also include estim
costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by m@h-estate collateral, such as accounts receivaivientory and equipment, estimated
values are determined based on the borrower'sdialastatements, inventory reports, accounts reddévagings or equipment appraisal
invoices. Indications of value from these souraesgenerally discounted based on the age of tlaadial information or the quality of t
assets.

Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectiesigluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Compaiges not separately ident
individual residential mortgage loans less than0$300, home equity and other consumer loans foaimgent disclosures, unless such Ic
are related to borrowers with impaired commeraalnls or they are the subject to a troubled deltuataring agreement for those wit
carrying value in excess of $300,000.

Commercial loans whose terms are modified are ifladsas troubled debt restructurings if the Compgrnants such borrowers concess
and it is deemed that those borrowers are expenigrimancial difficulty. Concessions granted undetroubled debt restructuring gener
include but are not limited to a temporary reduttio the interest rate or an extension of a loatased maturity date. Commercial lo
classified as troubled debt restructurings withaerying value in excess of $100,000 are designateiinpaired and evaluated as discu
above.

The allowance calculation methodology includeshfertsegregation of loan classes into risk ratirtggrries. The borrower's overall finan
condition, repayment sources, guarantors and \@ltiee collateral, if appropriate, are evaluatetllass than annually for commercial loan
when credit deficiencies arise on all loans. Qregiality risk ratings include regulatory classifiions of special mention, substand
doubtful and loss. See Note 5 for a descriptiothe$e regulatory classifications.

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as agiatl part of their examination process, periodijcaview the Company's allowance for It
losses and may require the Company to recognizii@usito the allowance based on their judgmentaaimformation available to them
the time of their examination, which may not berently available to management. Based on managésremprehensive analysis of
loan portfolio, management believes the currengllef the allowance for loan losses is adequate.
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Income Recognition on Impaired and Nonaccrual Loans

For all classes of loans receivable, the accruatefest is discontinued when the contractual paytnof principal or interest has become
days past due or management has serious doubts faliner collectability of principal or interestven though the loan may be curre
performing. A loan may remain on accrual statuis i6 either well secured or guaranteed and inptuecess of collection. When a loal
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest isrsed and charged to interest income. Interegived on nonaccrual loans, includ
impaired loans, generally is either applied agaprsicipal or reported as interest income, acc@ydim management's judgment as to
collectability of principal. Generally, loans amestored to accrual status when the obligatiorrasight current, has performed in accord:
with the contractual terms for a reasonable peoictime, generally six months, and the ultimatdesthbility of the total contractual princij
and interest is no longer in doubt. Nonaccrualltted debt restructurings are restored to accradls if principal and interest payme
under the modified terms, are current for six confige months after modification.

For nonaccrual loans, when future collectabilityttegf recorded loan balance is expected, intereshie may be recognized on a cash bas
the case where a nonaccrual loan had been pactadisged off, recognition of interest on a cashsbhiadimited to that which would have be
recognized on the recorded loan balance at theramingl interest rate. Cash interest receipts itegx of that amount are recordes
recoveries to the allowance for loan losses umidrgharge-offs have been fully recovered.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instrumats

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyehgared into commitments to extend credit, ingigdiommitments under standby let
of credit. Such financial instruments are recordden they are funded.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation is compute@ atraightine basis over the estima
useful lives of the related assets, ranging upQodars for premises and 10 years for equipmenintgl@ance and repairs are charge
operating expenses as incurred. The asset cosic@udhulated depreciation are removed from thewatsdor assets sold or retired and
resulting gain or loss is included in the deterrtioraof income.

Foreclosed Real Estate

Properties acquired through foreclosure, or by ded@u of foreclosure, are recorded at their failue less estimated costs to sell. Fair\
is typically determined based on evaluations bydthgarties. Costs incurred in connection with prepy the foreclosed real estate
disposition are capitalized to the extent that theliance the overall fair value of the propertyy Arrite-downs on the asset's fair value
costs to sell at the date of acquisition are ctitgethe allowance for loan losses. Subsequeriewowns and expenses of foreclosed
estate are included as a valuation allowance asatded in noninterest expense.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisdver the fair value of the net assets acquif@dodwill is not amortized, but is evalua
annually for impairment. Intangible assets, suchkstomer relationships, are amortized over tresful lives, generally 15 years.
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Mortgage Servicing Rights

Originated mortgage servicing rights are recordettheir fair value at the time of transfer of tletated loans and are amortized in propo
to, and over the period of, estimated net servigiegme or loss. The carrying value of the origgdamortgage servicing rights is periodic
evaluated for impairment or between annual evalnatunder certain circumstances.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs related to share-based paymamgattions are recognized based on the grantfdatevalue of the stockase:
compensation issued. Compensation costs are remuhioiver the period that an employee provides aerii exchange for the awa
Compensation costs related to the Employee Stocke@ship Plan are dependent upon the average stimekgnd the shares committed tc
released to plan participants through the periagihith income is reported.

Retirement Benefits

The Company has a naentributory defined benefit pension plan that cedesubstantially all employees. On May 14, 20h2, Compan
informed its employees of its decision to freezgipi@ation and benefit accruals under the plammarily to reduce some of the volatility
earnings that can accompany the maintenance dirsedeenefit plan. The freeze became effectivee80, 2012. Compensation earne
employees up to June 30, 2012 is used for purpafsesculating benefits under the plan but therk lné no future benefit accruals after -
date. Participants as of June 30, 2012 will cargito earn vesting credit with respect to theizémaccrued benefits as they continue to v
Pension expense under these plans is chargedrentwperations and consists of several compor@ngt pension cost based on var
actuarial assumptions regarding future experiemcieuthe plans.

Gains and losses, prior service costs and cretitb any remaining transition amounts that haveyabbeen recognized through net peri
benefit cost are recognized in accumulated othempeehensive loss, net of tax effects, until they@mnortized as a component of net peri
cost. Plan assets and obligations are measumfdias Company's statement of condition date.

The Company has unfunded deferred compensatiorsa@mplemental executive retirement plans for setectarent and former employse
and officers that provide benefits that cannot aig from a qualified retirement plan due to IntéiRavenue Code restrictions. These p
are nonqualified under the Internal Revenue Codd, @ssets used to fund benefit payments are noegated from other assets of
Company, therefore, in general, a participantsemreficiary's claim to benefits under these plarasia general creditor.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownership(FESOP") covering substantially all full time ployees. The cost of shares iss
to the ESOP but not committed to be released tgo#ricipants is presented in the consolidatecestant of condition as a reductior
shareholders' equity. ESOP shares are releasédet@articipants proportionately as the loan isamp The Company records ES
compensation expense based on the shares cominitbedreleased and allocated to the participanteumts multiplied by the average st
price of the Company's stock over the period. dEwnds related to unallocated shares are recordemhgsensation expense.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are recorded on the statement of cimmdds assets and liabilities measured at thairviue. The accounting for increases
decreases in the value of derivatives depends tip®ruse of derivatives and whether the derivatiyealify for hedge accounting. T
Company currently has one interest rate swap, whah been determined to be a cash flow hedge. faih@alue of castitow hedging
instruments ("Cash Flow Hedge") is recorded inegitbther assets or other liabilities. On an ongdiagis, the statement of conditiol
adjusted to reflect the then current fair valuéhaf Cash Flow Hedge. The related gains or losseseaorted in other comprehensive inc
(loss) and are subsequently reclassified into agsias a yield adjustment in the same period ictwiine related interest on the hedged
(primarily a variablerate debt obligation) affect earnings. To the eixteat the Cash Flow Hedge is not effective, theffactive portion of th
Cash Flow Hedge is immediately recognized as istengpense.
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Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxeemtlyrpayable or refundable and deferred incomedan temporary differences betw
the tax basis of assets and liabilities and thegiorted amounts in the consolidated financial statds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
reported in the consolidated financial statemehtuuerently enacted income tax rates applicabléa¢operiod in which the deferred tax as
and liabilities are expected to be realized oflesbtt

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed liirtivnet income, after preferred stock dividendd preferred stock discount accret
by the weighted average number of common sharegamaling throughout each year. Diluted earningsspare gives effect to weigh
average shares that would be outstanding assurhingeercise of issued stock options and warrantsyube treasury stock methc
Unallocated shares of the Company's ESOP planadri@ciuded when computing earnings per share theif are committed to be released.

Segment Reporting

The Company has evaluated the activities relatngts strategic business units. The controllinteriest in the FitzGibbons Agency
dissimilar in nature and management when comparedet Company's other strategic business unitshwduie judged to be similar in nat
and management. The Company has determined thefithGibbons Agency is below the reporting thrédhio size in accordance w
Accounting Standards Codification 280. Accordinghe Company has determined it has no reportaigments.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accounting principles generally require that redagd revenue, expenses, gains and losses be idclndeet income. Although cert:
changes in assets and liabilities are reportedsaparate component of the equity section of thgeistent of condition, such items, along \
net income, are components of comprehensive income.

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) represhatsum of these items, with the exception of netiime, as of the balance sheet date ¢
represented in the table below.

As of December 31

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss By Componen 2014 201z
Unrealized loss for pension and other postretirdrabhgations $ (2,99) $ (1,637)
Tax effect 1,197 655
Net unrealized loss for pension and other poséneignt obligation (1,799 (982)
Unrealized loss on financial derivative instrumemed in cash flow hedging relationsh (82 (13%)
Tax effect g 54
Net unrealized loss on financial derivative instamns used in cash flow hedging relationsl (49) (81)
Unrealized gains on availal-for-sale securitie 763 16€
Tax effect (30€) (67)
Net unrealized gains on availa-for-sale securities 457 99
Unrealized loss on securities transferred to-to-maturity (1,227 (1,302
Tax effect 48€ 521
Net unrealized loss on securities transferred td-to-maturity (733 (7817)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (2,119 $ (1,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statemer
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2013 consolidated finansiatements have been reclassified to conform toctimeent year presentation. Th
reclassifications had no effect on net income asipusly reported.

NOTE 2: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2015, the Financial Accounting Stand&aisrd ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Upd&&sU™) ASU 2015-01 -income
Statement — Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtp520). This ASU addressed the simplification of im=statement presentation
eliminating the concept of extraordinary items. eTdbjective of the Simplification Initiative is fdentify, evaluate, and improve area:
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAPMibich cost and complexity can be reduced whilenta@ing or improving the usefulne
of the information provided to the users of finat@tatements. The amendments in this Update fegetiee for fiscal years, and inter
periods within those fiscal years, beginning aecember 15, 2015. A reporting entity may applyahendments prospectively. A repor
entity also may apply the amendments retrospegtiielall prior periods presented in the financi@tements. Early adoption is permi
provided that the guidance is applied from the ieigig of the fiscal year of adoption. The Compdogs not expect a material impact ol
consolidated statements of condition, results efations, or cash flows.

NOTE 3: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividatgncome available to common shareholders byvtighted average number of comr
shares outstanding during the period. Net inconaélable to common shareholders is net income thffhg@er Bancorp, Inc. less the tota
preferred dividends declared. Diluted earnings gf&re include the potential dilutive effect thatlldooccur upon the assumed exercis
issued stock options using the Treasury Stock ngeti#mti-dilutive stock options, not included in the compigta below, were 16,472 for t
years ended 2014 and 2013. Unallocated commoresheald by the ESOP are not included in the wed-average number of comm
shares outstanding for purposes of calculatingiegsmer common share until they are committecetoeleased to plan participants.

The following table sets forth the calculation efskc and diluted earnings per share. Historicaftesland per share data have been adjust
the exchange ratio of 1.6472 used in the ConvemmhOffering.

Years endel
December 31
(In thousands, except per share data) 2014 201z
Basic Earnings Per Common Sh
Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,65( $ 2,40¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding 4,15¢ 4,14¢
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.64 $ 0.5¢
Diluted Earnings Per Common Shi
Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,65( $ 2,40¢
Weighted average common shares outstar 4,15¢ 4,14¢
Effect of assumed exercise of stock opti 44 23
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 4,20( 4,16¢
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.6 $ 0.5¢
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NOTE 4: INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofstment securities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 201

Gros: Gros: Estimate:
Amortizec Unrealize( Unrealize( Fair
(In thousands) Cos Gain: Losse Value

Available-for-Sale Portfolio
Debt investment securitie

State and political subdivisiol
Residential mortgacr-backed- US agency

Total 85, 75¢ 80C (454) 86,10+

Mutual funds:

Large cap equity fun 45 64¢

Common stock - financial services industry 27C 23 292

Total available-for-sale 87,31( $ 1,217 $ (459 $ 88,07

Debt investment securitie

©

State and political subdivisiol 22,61( 23,42¢

Residential mortgar-backec- US agenc 8,04: 242 8,28¢

: : : !

Total held-to-maturity 40,87F $ 1,290 $ (26) $ 42,13¢

December 31, 201

Amortizec Unrealize( Unrealize(

Available-for-Sale Portfolio

US Treasury, agencies and G¢ 16,93t $ 340 $ 16,597

Corporate 13,49¢ 13,69¢

Collateralized mortgage obligations - agency 20,14% (30¢) 20,00:
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Ultra short mortgage fun 642 64¢

=
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Other mutual fund

Total
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=
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US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 1,87 % - % 25 $ 1,847
Corporate 3,74¢ 16 44 3,71¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - agency 1,867 - - 1,867

71






Table of Contents

The Company's investments in mortgage-backed sissuinclude pastirough securities and collateralized mortgagegatbions issued al
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and GNMA.ofADecember 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, imatptlabel mortgagéacker
securities or collateralized mortgage obligationsravheld in the securities portfolio. The Compargvestments in state and polit
obligation securities generally are municipal obligns that are general obligations supported bygdneral taxing authority of the issuer,
in some cases are insured. The obligations isbyesthool districts are supported by state aidmdily, these investments are issuet
municipalities within New York State.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of deestments at December 31, 2014 by contractualinbaare shown below. Expect
maturities may differ from contractual maturitieschuse borrowers may have the right to call orgyrebligations with or without penalties.

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity

Amortizec Estimate: Amortizec Estimate:
Cos Fair Value Cos Fair Value

(In thousands
Due in one year or let $ 581¢ $ 583 $ 19 $ 197
Due after one year through five ye. 29,04 29,12: 6,13¢ 6,14¢
Due after five years through ten ye 5,14¢ 5,094 14,99: 15,44
Due after ten years - - 8,607 9,037
Suk-total 40,00t 40,05t 29,93 30,82(
Residential mortga¢-backec- US agency 30,32 30,57¢ 8,04: 8,28¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - US agency 15,43: 15,47¢ 2,901 3,034
Totals $ 85,75¢ $ 86,10¢ $ 40,87 $ 42,13¢
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The Company's investment securities' gross uneghlinsses and fair value, aggregated by investroatgigory and length of time tl
individual securities have been in a continuousalized loss position, is as follows:

December 31, 201

Less than Twelve Montt Twelve Months or Mort Total
Numbe Numbe Numbe
of of of
Individual Unrealizet Fair Individual Unrealizet Fair Individual Unrealizet Fair
Securitie: Losse Value Securitie Losse: Value Securitie: Losse Value

(Dollars in thousands
Available-for-Sale

State and political subdivisiol 13 3,047 90 13 3,137

Residential mortgage-backec

US agenc 1,42¢ 141 6,25¢ 14¢ 7,68(

Totals (80) $ 19,67 1¢ $ (374 $ 18,16 57 $ (454 $ 37,83¢

US Treasury, agencies and
GSE's - $ - $ - - $ - $ - - $ - $ -

Corporate 17

Collateralized mortgage
obligations - US agency - - - -

December 31, 201

Number Number Number
of of of

Available-for-Sale Securitiet  Losses Value  Securitie: Losses Value  Securitiet Losses Value

US Treasury, agencies and
SE's

Corporate

Collateralized mortgage
obligations - US agency

14 30€) 10,51¢ 14 30€) 10,51¢

US Treasury, agencies and

GSE's 25 $ 1,84i 25 $ 1,84%

N
&
1
L2
&
N
&

S
1
1
1
S

Corporate 44 3,171 44 3,171

Collateralized mortgage
obligations - US agency
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The Company conducts a formal review of investneaturities on a quarterly basis for the presencetlodr-thantemporary impairme
("OTTI"). The Company assesses whether OTTI isgmewhen the fair value of a debt security is tbs® its amortized cost basis at
statement of condition date. Under these circuncgts, OTTI is considered to have occurred (1) ifimtend to sell the security; (2) if it
"more likely than not" we will be required to sélle security before recovery of its amortized duis; or (3) the present value of expe
cash flows is not anticipated to be sufficient ézaver the entire amortized cost basis. The geelaaquires that credielated OTTI i
recognized in earnings while non-creditated OTTI on securities not expected to be $®ldecognized in other comprehensive inc
("OCI"). Non-creditrelated OTTI is based on other factors, includitiguidity and changes in the general interest ratwironment
Presentation of OTTI is made in the consolidatetiestent of income on a gross basis, including bathportion recognized in earnings
well as the portion recorded in OCI. The gross OWduld then be offset by the amount of non-crediated OTTI, showing the net as
impact on earnings.

Management does not believe any individual unredlipss in other securities within the portfoliooddecember 31, 2014 represents O
All securities which have been in an unrealized Ipssition for 12 months or more are comprised itedl States Agency issued mortgage-
backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligetiand Agency and Government Sponsored enteipoisé holdings. These positions
US Government Agency and Government Sponsoredeises are deemed to have no credit impairmens, the disclosed unrealized los
relate directly to changes in interest rates sulsseigto the acquisition of the individual secustieThe Company does not intend to sell t
securities, nor is it more likely than not that empany will be required to sell these securigsr to the recovery of the amortized cost.

In determining whether OTTI has occurred for eqsigurities, the Company considers the applicaitofs described above and the le
of time the equity security's fair value has beelow the carrying amount. Management has deterntim&twe have the intent and ability
retain the equity securities for a sufficient pdrif time to allow for recovery. All of the Compasyequity securities had a fair value gre
than the book value at December 31, 2014.

Gross realized gains (losses) on sales and redemspif securities for the years ended Decembereiletailed below:

(In thousands) 2014 201z
Realized gain $ 312 $ 37C
Realized losses (2) (5)

$ 31C $ 365

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013rieswvith a fair value of $66.7 million and $5816llion, respectively, were pledged
collateralize certain municipal deposit relatiomshi As of the same dates, securities with a faues of $19.9 million and $21.6 million we
pledged against certain borrowing arrangements.

Management has reviewed its loan and mortdsgsked securities portfolios and determined tlaathée best of its knowledge, little or

exposure exists to sub-prime or other high-residential mortgages. The Company is ndhépractice of investing in, or originating, th
types of investments or loans.
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NOTE 5: LOANS
Major classifications of loans are as follows:

December 3: December 3:
(In thousands) 201< 201z
Residential mortgage loar

Construction 3,20¢ 1,98

Real estat 125,95: 95,53¢

Other commercial and industri 34,66( 32,67¢

Total commercial loans 185,22( 147,77

Consumer loans

Other consumer 4,16( 4,16¢

Net deferred loan cos 77 30C

Loans receivable, net $ 382,18¢ $ 336,59:

The Company originates residential mortgage, corommleand consumer loans largely to customers throug Oswego, Onondaga ¢
surrounding counties. Although the Company hasvardified loan portfolio, a substantial portion itsf borrowers' abilities to honor th
contracts is dependent upon the counties' employer&heconomic conditions.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013jemsal mortgage loans with a carrying value of $12million and $114.8 milliol
respectively, have been pledged by the CompanydoFederal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLBNY")der a blanket collatel
agreement to secure the Company's line of creditemm borrowings.

Loan Origination / Risk Manageme

The Company has lending policies and procedurgdace that are designed to maximize loan incomaimian acceptable level of ris
Management and the Board of Directors reviews gmgraves these policies and procedures on a redpalsis. A reporting syste
supplements the review process by frequently pingidhanagement with reports related to loan pradoctoan quality, loan delinquenci
nonperforming and potential problem loans. Divigation in the loan portfolio is a means of mamagiisk associated with fluctuations
economic conditions.

Risk Characteristics of Portfolio Segments

Each portfolio segment generally carries its owigue risk characteristics.
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The residential mortgage loan segment is impacyegelneral economic conditions, unemployment ratdheé Bank's service area, real et
values and the forward expectation of improvememtsderioration in economic conditions.

The commercial loan segment is impacted by geme@homic conditions but, more specifically, theusilly segment in which each borro
participates. Unique competitive changes withimoarower's specific industry, or geographic locatamuld cause significant changes in
borrower's revenue stream, and therefore, impaethility to repay its obligations. Commerciallrestate is also subject to general econ:
conditions but changes within this segment typyctdly changes seen within the consumer and comatesegment. Included within tl
portfolio are both owner occupied real estate, hiclw the borrower occupies the majority of the resiate property and upon which
majority of the sources of repayment of the oblwatis dependent upon, and nowner occupied real estate, in which several te
comprise the repayment source for this portfolignsent. The composition and competitive positiothef tenant structure may cause ad\
changes in the repayment of debt obligations femibn-owner occupied class within this segment.

The consumer loan segment is impacted by geneoalogaic conditions, unemployment rates in the Coryijsagervice area, and the forw
expectation of improvement or deterioration in egoit conditions.

Real estate loans, including residential mortgagesimercial real estate loans and home equity, demi84% of the portfolio in 201
identical to the composition in 2013. Loans sedubg real estate provide the best collateral ptmtecand thus significantly reduce
inherent risk in the portfolio.

Management has reviewed its loan portfolio andrdateed that, to the best of its knowledge, littteno exposure exists to syioime or othe
high-risk residential mortgages. The Company isimt¢he practice of originating these types ofnea

Description of Credit Quality Indicators

The Company utilizes an eight tier risk rating eystto evaluate the quality of its loan portfoliboans that are risk rated "1" through "4"
considered "Pass" loans. In accordance with régylguidelines, loans rated "5" through "8" anerted "criticized" loans and loans rated
through "8" are termed "classified" loans. A des@n of the Company's credit quality indicatoofidws.

For Commercial Loans

1. Prime: Aloan thatis fully secured by properly margirfeathfinder Bank deposit account(s) or an obligatif the US Governmer
It may also be unsecured if it is supported by gy \strong financial condition and, in the case ofanmercial loan, excelle
management. There exists an unquestioned alglitygay the loan in accordance with its ter

2. Strong: Desirable relationship of somewhat less stathes Prime grade. Possesses a sound documentsdnet source, a
back up, which will allow repayment within the tesrof the loan. Individual loans backed by solidets, character and integri
Ability of individual or company management is gcamtd well established. Probability of serious fficial deterioration is unlikely

3. Satisfactory Stable financial condition with cash flow suféint for debt service coverage. Satisfactory loahaverage streng
having some deficiency or vulnerability to changiegonomic or industry conditions but performingaageed with document
evidence of repayment capacity. May be unsecwedsl to borrowers with satisfactory credit andriial strength. Satisfactc
provisions for management succession and a segoadarce of repayment exis

76




Table of Contents

4. Satisfactory Watch:A four is not a criticized or classified credithese credits do not display the characteristics dfiticized ass
as defined by the regulatory definitions. A cradigiven a Satisfactory Watch designation if thare matters or trends obser
deserving attention somewhat beyond normal monigoriBorrowing obligations may be handled accordmg@greement but cot
be adversely impacted by developing factors sudhdasstry conditions, operating problems, litigatipending of a significant natt
or declining collateral quality and adequacy.

5. Special Mention A warning risk grade that portrays one or moeaknesses that may be tolerated in the short té&ssets in thi
category are currently protected but are potegtiaitak. This loan would not normally be bookedaasew credit, but may ha
redeeming characteristics persuading the Bank tdirage working with the borrower. Loans accordéé tclassification hay
potential weaknesses which may, if not checkedarected, weaken the company's assets, inadequutgct the Bank's position
effect the orderly, scheduled reduction of the @etstome future time

6. Substandard The relationship is inadequately protected bg thurrent net worth and cash flow capacity of tlwrdower
guarantor/endorser, or of the collateral pledgédsets have a wetlefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardizerthezly
liquidation of the debt. The relationship showsederating trends or other deficient areas. Téwnlmay be nonperforming &
expected to remain so for the foreseeable futiRelationship balances may be adequately securedsbgt value; howevel
deteriorated financial condition may necessitatéataral liquidation to effect repayment. This vdwalso include any relationst
with an unacceptable financial condition requirexgcessive attention of the officer due to the reatnfr the credit risk or lack
borrower cooperatior

7. Doubtful: The relationship has all the weaknesses inhereatcredit graded 5 with the added characteribi@t the weakness
make collection on the basis of currently existiagts, conditions and value, highly questionabléngprobable. The possibility
some loss is extremely high, however its clasdificaas an anticipated loss is deferred until agretact determination of the ext
of loss is determined. Loans in this category rgsbn nonaccrug

8. Loss: Loans are considered uncollectible and of sittle alue that continuance as bankable asset®tisvarranted. It is n
practicable or desirable to defer writing off thasically worthless asset even though partial regomay be possible in the futu

For Residential Mortgage and Consumer Loz

Residential mortgage and consumer loans are ass@ifeass" rating unless the loan has demonstsagad of weakness as indicated by the
ratings below.

5. _Special Mention All loans sixty days past due are classified $gédention. The loan is not upgraded until it lie®en current for
Six consecutive month

6. SubstandardAll loans 90 days past due are classified Suldstah The loan is not upgraded until it has beereo for six
consecutive month:

7. Doubtful: The relationship has all the weaknesses inheéreatcredit graded 5 with the added characteribi@t the weakness
make collection on the basis of currently existiagts, conditions and value, highly questionablénggrobable. The possibility
some loss is extremely hig

The risk ratings for classified loans are evaluatettast quarterly for commercial loans or whesditrdeficiencies arise, such as deling
loan payments, for commercial, residential mortgaigeonsumer loans. See further discussion ofratkgs in Note 1.
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As of December 31, 201
Specia
(In thousands) Pas Mentior Substandai Doubtful Total
Residential mortgage loar

Construction 3,20¢ - - - 3,20¢

Commercial loans

Lines of credi 16,31( 451 64¢€ 17,40%

Tax exempt loans 7,201 - - 7,201

Consumer loans

Other consumer 4,11z 10 37 - 4,16(

Total loans 371,68t $ 3,76¢ $ 10,70 $ 1,30¢€ $ 387,46

Specia

Residential mortgage loar

Construction 1,98: 1,98:

O

ommercial loans

Lines of credi 12,94 56C 942

14,44

Tax exempt loans 5,127 - -

Consumer loans

Other consumer 4,04( 30 74 22 4,16¢

Total loans $ 324,98t $ 411: $ 11,97C $ 265 $ 341,33:
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Nonaccrual and Past Due Loa

Loans are considered past due if the required ipahand interest payments have not been receividirvthirty days of the payment due di
An age analysis of past due loans, exclusive ddrded costs, segregated by class of loans wedlaw$:

As of December 31, 201

3C-59 Day: 6C-89 Day: 90 Day:!
Past Du Past Du and Ove Total Total Loan:
(In thousands) And Accruing  And Accruing Past Du Curren Receivabl

Residential mortgage loar

Construction - - R

Commercial loans

Lines of credit

Tax exempt loans

Consumer loans

Other consumer 6 17 11 34 4,12¢ 4,16(

Total loans $ 3,49¢ $ 1,73t $ 6,25¢ $ 11,48¢ $ 37597. $ 387,46:

As of December 31, 201

30-59 Day: 60-89 Day:! 90 Day: Total Total Loan:
(In thousands) Past Du Past Du and Ove Past Du Curren Receivabl

Residential mortgage loar

Construction

Commercial loans

Lines of credi 341 11z 381 13,60¢

Tax exempt loans - - - 5,122

Consumer loans

Other consumer 46 51 45 142 4,02¢ 4,16¢

Total loans $ 7,006 $ 5107 $ 535( $ 17,461 $ 323,87 $ 341,33
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Year-end nonaccrual loans, segregated by clagmnof ivere as follows:

December 3: December 3:

(In thousands) 2014 2012
Residential mortgage loar
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgages $ 1,90 $ 2,194
1,90z 2,19¢
Commercial loans
Real estat 3,547 1,93¢
Lines of credi 27¢ 381
Other commercial and industrial 20E 394
4,03( 2,70¢
Consumer loans
Home equity and junior lier 313 402
Other consume 11 45
324 447
Total nonaccrual loans $ 6,25¢ $ 5,35(

There were no loans past due ninety days or matetihaccruing interest at December 31, 2014G%3

The Company is required to disclose certain a@tiwvitelated to Troubled Debt Restructurings ("TDRsaccordance with accounting

guidance. Certain loans have been modified in & Tilere economic concessions have been granteda@ver who is experiencing,

or expected to experience, financial difficultieBhese economic concessions could include a remuatithe loan interest rate, extension
of payment terms, reduction of principal amortiaatior other actions that it would not otherwisasider for a new loan with similar risk

characteristics.

The Company is required to disclose new TDRs feheaporting period for which an income statemeriiging presented. The recorded
investment for each TDR is determined by the loalarice less the reserve associated with the loan.

The Company has determined that there were twoTeRs in the year ended December 31, 2014.

« The modification made within the commercial realats loan class resulted in a pre-modification podtmodification recorde
investment of $74,000 and $96,000, respectivellie Postmodification recorded investment included the fungdof escrow ar
closing costs as a result of the restructuringonBmic concessions granted included extended stterdy payment terms and
additional $100,000 for working capital without associated increase in collateral. The TDR reduitea loan balance of $565,(
with a specific reserve of $469,000, resulting leeorded investment of $96,000. The Company eqsired to increase the spec
reserve against this loan by an additional $108@hzh was a component of the provision for loassks in the third quarter
2014.

« The modification made within the other commerciadl andustrial loan class included a consolidatibthoee credit facilities into
single loan with a pre-modification and post-maghfion recorded investment of $86,000, and $31,088pectively. The post-
modification recorded investment included closimgts as a result of the restructuring. Economitessions granted included
advance of additional monies without an associatedkased in collateral. The TDR resulted in anlbalance of $268,000 witt
specific reserve of $237,000, resulting in a reedréhvestment of $31,000. The Company was requiehcrease the resel
against this loan by $122,000 which was a compoogtite provision for loan losses in the fourth qeaof 2014

The two TDR's executed in 2014 indicated above weten payment default at any time during 2014.
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The Company has determined that there was a newwibbRa recorded investment of $404,000 in the yemted December 31, 2013.

« The modification made within the residential restiage loan class resulted in a pre-modification postmodification recorde
investment of $400,000 and $407,000, respectiv@lye postmodification recorded investment included late glear accrue
interest, and closing costs as a result of theuestring. Economic concessions granted includeztlaction in loan interest ra
extended payment terms, and an advance of additiooies for closing costs without an associatedease in collateral. T
Company was required to establish a specific resagainst this loan of $61,000, which was a compbotthe provision fc
loan losses in the third quarter of 20

When the Company modifies a loan within a portfa@&ment, a potential impairment is analyzed eitlased on the present value of the
expected future cash flows discounted at the isteete of the original loan terms or the fair \&abf the collateral less costs to sell. Ifitis
determined that the value of the loan is less itsarecorded investment, then impairment is recoephias a component of the provision for
loan losses, an associated increase to the all@xfantoan losses or as a charge-off to the allmedor loan losses in the current period.
Impaired Loan:

The following table summarizes impaired loans infation by portfolio class:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Unpaic Unpaic
Recorde Principa Relatel Recorde Principa Relatet
(In thousands) Investmer Balanct Allowance Investmer Balanct Allowance

With no related allowance recorded:

Commercial real esta

w
w
bl

Other commercial and industri

Other consume

1-4 family first-lien residential

3
<}
=
[
®

Commercial lines of cred

Home equity and junior lier

Total:

(o]
a
(e}

Commercial real esta

i
1 |

=
o

Other commercial and industri

N

Other consumer 11 11 3 2 2
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The following table presents the average recordeedstment in impaired loans for the years endeceéer 31:

(In thousands)

Commercial real esta

Other commercial and industri

Other consumer 9 3

The following table presents the interest inconwgaized on impaired loans for the years ended mbee 31:

(In thousands) 201<

Commercial real esta 104 17¢€

Other commercial and industri

Other consumer 1 -
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NOTE 6: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tlegsyended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and informpédaining to the allocation of
the allowance for loan losses and balances of tlevance for loan losses and loans receivable basednhdividual and collective
impairment evaluation by loan portfolio class a thdicated dates are summarized in the tablesvbefn allocation of a portion of the
allowance to a given portfolio class does not lithé Company's ability to absorb losses in anqgtbetfolio class.

December 31, 201

1-4 family
first-lien Residentic Othel
residentic constructiol Commerciz Commerciz commercie
(In thousands) mortgag! mortgag: real estat lines of credi and industric

Allowance for loan losses

Charg-offs 157 30 17 15

JEny
(6)]
1
[e]
o
_
N
N
m

Provisions

nding balance: related to loa

m
=}
- =1
=}
o
<8
Q
=}
o
@
=
o
=1
)
o
—
o
>
@

172,15¢ $ 3,20¢ $ 125,95 $ 17,407 $ 34,66(

m
>
2
=]
Q
o
S
)
=]
o
®
&

evaluated for impairment $ 1,136 $ - $ 501 $ 27¢ % 602

evaluated for impairment $ 171,02. $ 3,20¢ $ 120,94. $ 17,12¢  $ 34,057

Tax exemg and junior lien consume Unallocatel Total

2 3 43 % 13¢ $ 28€ $ 5,041

vs)
@
2
3.
5
vy]
=
)
5
o
&

Recoverie! - 1 51 - 77

Ending balance $ 3 3 38 $ 98 $ 56 $ 5,34¢

©
w
e
©
w
©
©
©
H

individually evaluated for impairment $ -

&+

collectively evaluated for impairment $ 3 357 $ 95 $ 56 $ 4,43

-
TS
[} QO
553

o
8o
o L)
225
38z
. @
=} %2}
=3
<.

[}
c
=R

Ending balance: collectivel
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December 31, 201

1-4 family
first-lien Residentic Othel
residentic constructiol Commerciz Commerciz commercie
(In thousands) mortgag: mortgag: real estat lines of credi and industrie

>
o
=
QD
>
[w]
(¢}
—
o
=
o
QO
>
o
[%)]
(%]
[0
n

Charg-offs 152

N
(©))

124 14¢

Provisions 56 - 581

a
©

238

m m
> >
: 232
> >
oy jon
25
Q Q
> >
(@] (@)
® 20
= -
s ea
ST
@D (9]
o o
— —
o o
S50
Q Q

Ending balance $ 166,29¢ $ 1,98 $ 95,53t $ 14,44 $ 32,67t
evaluated for impairment $ 95z $ - $ 3,541 $ 381 $ 40E
evaluated for impairment $ 165,34t $ 1,98: $ 91,99 $ 14,060 $ 32,27(

Home equit Othel
and junio
Tax exemg liens CONsSUmMe Unallocatei Total

Allowance for loan losses

651

Charg-offs

1
(o]
—
©
(0]

1

1
o
[
I

Provisions 20C

Ending balance: related to loa

m
>
: =
=
o
S
QO
>
(e
@
=
©
=4
(1]
o
—
o
o
Q

m
S
2
=]
Q
o
<
)
=]
o
®

$ 512: $ 21,11 $ 4,16¢ $ 341,33

69 ‘
69 ‘

45¢  $ 2

&+

evaluated for impairment 5,74(

|

evaluated for impairment 512: $ 20,65. $ 4,164 $ 335,59
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NOTE 7: SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not included in tbeompanying consolidated statements of conditidhe unpaid principal balances
mortgage and other loans serviced for others w24¢780,000 and $28,597,000 at December 31, 2012@h8| respectively. The balanct
capitalized servicing rights included in other ass&¢ December 31, 2014 and 2013, was $66,000 &hOW0, respectively.

The following summarizes mortgage servicing rigtdpitalized and amortized:

(In thousands) 2014 201z
Mortgage servicing rights capitaliz: $ - % 88
Mortgage servicing rights amortized $ 14 3 10

NOTE 8: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment at Decembes 3, follows:

(In thousands) 201 201z
Land $ 2,17¢  $ 1,794
Buildings 11,43¢ 9,711
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 10,53: 9,82
Construction in progress 1,24¢ 1,71¢

25,39: 23,05(
Less: Accumulated depreciation 12,19: 11,40¢

$ 13,20( $ 11,64¢

NOTE 9: GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gooduwill represents the excess cost of an acquisdiver the fair value of the net assets acquiBeshdwill is not amortized, but is evalua
annually for impairment or between annual evaluegion certain circumstances. Management performsararual assessment of
Company's goodwill to determine whether or not immyairment of the carrying value may exist.

Of the $4.4 million of goodwill carried on the Coany's books as of December 31, 2014, $3.8 milliothis amount is due to prior perio
acquisitions of branches and $527,000 is due t®€i8 acquisition of the FitzGibbons Agency by Fatter Risk Management Compa
Inc.

The Company is permitted to assess qualitativefadb determine if it is more likely than not thié fair value of the reporting unit is |
than the carrying value. Based on the resultd®fassessment, management has determined tharthieg value of goodwill in the amot
of $4.4 million is not impaired as of December 2014.

The identifiable intangible asset of $175,000 aBefember 31, 2014 is due to the acquisition ofRiteGibbons Agency and represents
customer list intangible. The future weighted anzatton of this intangible asset is 7.0 years.
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The gross carrying amount and accumulated amddizér this identifiable intangible asset are alfofvs:

December 31
(In thousands) 201< 201z

12

>
5]
o
c
3
c
2
@
o
o
3
S
=
N
2
o
5

The estimated amortization expense for each ofitkesucceeding years ended December 31, is asnfsil

(In thousands)

2016

2018

Thereafter

NOTE 10: DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, is as follows

(In thousands) 2014 201z 201z

Time account: 126,31¢ 141,13: 146,19:

Money management accoul 13,24¢ 13,331 14,44

Demand deposit intere-bearin 33,66¢ 32,28 29,69:

4,26 3,66¢ 3,411

Mortgage escrow funds

At December 31, 2014, the scheduled maturitiegvod tleposits are as follows:

(In thousands)
Year of Maturity:

2016

2018

Thereafter
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NOTE 11: BORROWED FUNDS

The composition of borrowings (excluding junior sutiinated debentures) at December 31 is as follows:

(In thousands) 201 201z
Shor-term:
FHLB Advances $ 55,10C $ 24,00(
Long-term:
FHLB advance: $ 11,00 $ 16,00(
ESOP loan payable - 852
Total long-term borrowings $ 11,000 $ 16,85!

The ESOP loan payable, with an outstanding balah&853,000 at December 31, 2013 and payable hircé party lender, was paid off &
refinanced by the Company on October 16, 2014 imeoction with the Conversion and Offering. In ademce with ASC 718-40-294., the
refinanced loan, also termed an employer loantermally leveraged loan, does not appear on thenbalsheet of the Company.

The principal balances, interest rates and magsritf the remaining borrowings, all of which arexdixed rate, at December 31, 2014 ai
follows:

Term Principa Rates

(Dollars in thousands
Advances with FHLE

due within 1 yea 2,00( 2.7%%
due within 2 year 3,00(¢ 2.12%
due within 3 year 4,00( 1.36%-2.5€%
due within 10 years 2,00( 2.55%
Total advances with FHLB $ 11,00(
Total long-term fixed rate borrowings $ 11,00(

At December 31, 2014, scheduled repayments of termg-debt are as follows (in thousands):

2015 2,00(¢
2016 3,00(¢
2017 4,00(
Thereafter 2,00(

$ 11,00(

The Company has access to Federal Home Loan Bardnesls, under which it can borrow at various teamd interest rates. Resider
mortgage loans with a carrying value of $121.1 ionlland FHLB stock with a carrying value of $3.5llimh have been pledged by -
Company under a blanket collateral agreement toregbe Company's borrowings at December 31, 20h4 total outstanding indebtedn
under borrowing facilities with the FHLB cannot eed the total value of the assets pledged undebltrket collateral agreement. ~
Company has a $19.8 million line of credit avaitlabt December 31, 2014 with the Federal Reserv& BaNew York through its Discou
Window and has pledged various corporate and npadicgecurities against the line. The Company has4$illion in lines of cred
available with three other correspondent banks4 $8llion of that line of credit is available on amsecured basis and the remaining
million must be collateralized with marketable istraent securities. Interest on the lines is deteechiat the time of borrowing.
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The Company has a naonsolidated subsidiary trust, Pathfinder Statufionyst 11, of which the Company owns 100% of thenooon equity
The Trust issued $5,000,000 of 30 year floatinge r@bmpanyebligated pooled capital securities of Pathfindéat@ory Trust Il. Th
Company borrowed the proceeds of the capital siesifirom its subsidiary by issuing floating ratmipr subordinated deferrable inte
debentures having substantially similar terms. Thgital securities mature in 2037 and are treatedier 1 capital by the Federal Dep
Insurance Corporation and the Federal Reserve BBaRB"). The capital securities of the trust arpooled trust preferred fund of Prefe|
Term Securities VI, Ltd. and are tied to then®nth LIBOR (24 basis points) plus 1.65% for altofal.89% at December 31, 2014 wit
five-year call provision. The Company guarantdesfahese securities.

The Company's equity interest in the trust subsidid $155,000 is reported in "Other assets". fegulatory reporting purposes, the Fec
Reserve has indicated that the preferred securitiésontinue to qualify as Tier 1 Capital subjeot previously specified limitations, ur
further notice. If regulators make a determinativet Trust Preferred Securities can no longer bsidered in regulatory capital, the secur
become callable and the Company may redeem them.

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATI ON AND SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefitsppn plan covering substantially all employedse Pplan provides defined bene
based on years of service and final average safanyMay 14, 2012, the Company informed its emplsyeé its decision to free
participation and benefit accruals under the pteimarily to reduce some of the volatility in eargs that can accompany the maintenan
a defined benefit plan. The freeze became effeclivne 30, 2012. Compensation earned by emplayed¢s June 30, 2012 is used
purposes of calculating benefits under the plantterte will be no future benefit accruals aftesttiate. Participants as of June 30, 2012
continue to earn vesting credit with respect tartitezen accrued benefits as they continue to wbrladdition, the Company provides cer
health and life insurance benefits for a limitednimer of eligible retired employees. The healthqaes is contributory with participan
contributions adjusted annually; the life insuraptan is noncontributory. Employees with less thdryears of service as of January 1, 1
are not eligible for the health and life insuranerement benefits.

In October 2014, the Society of Actuaries releasaad mortality tables with future mortality improvent assumptions which are expecte
become the required standard for purposes of yedupension liability disclosures. As such, the @any has adopted the "White Coll
version of the new mortality tables which more elgsapproximates the Company's participants infttheen defined benefit pension plai
December 31, 2014. This adoption caused the pehspefit obligation at December 31, 2014 to insee®l.1 million when compared to
pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2013.
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The following tables set forth the changes in tlag benefit obligations, fair value of plan assetd the plans' funded status as of Dece
31:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
(In thousands) 201< 201z 201< 201z
Change in benefit obligation

Service cos - - - -

Actuarial loss (gain 1,16t 1,277 50 28

Benefits paid

hange in plan asse

Actual return on plan asse ¢ 2,13¢

I
al
4
1
1

1

1
-
w
w
(0]

Employer contributions

Funded Status - asset (liability) $ 3,44¢ $ 4,35¢ $ (356) $ (402)

The funded status of the pension was recordedmiitiier assets on the statement of condition. ufifiended status of the postretirement
is recorded as a liability on the statement of étioml

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekierisss as of December 31 are as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
(In thousands) 201< 201z 201< 201z

Tax Effect 1,18¢ 617 12 38

Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greatdredbenefit obligation or the fair value of assats amortized over the average remai
service period of active participants.

The Company elected to modify the method when iagiat the discount rate used to establish the ipensenefit obligation and tl
postretirement benefit obligation. This change walized the actual projected cash flows of thetipgpants in both plans and effective
December 31, 2014. The following points addressahproach taken.

1. An analysis of the defined benefit pension slaxpected future cash flows and highality fixed income investments currer
available and expected to be available during #réd to maturity of the pension benefits yieldesirggle discount rate of 4.90%
December 31, 201

2. An analysis of the postretirement health plaxXpected future cash flows and high-quality fixedeme investments curren
available and expected to be available during #méogd to maturity of the retiree medical benefitslged a single discount rate
4.98% at December 31, 201
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3. Each discount rate was developed by matching tpeatzd future cash flows of Pathfinder Bank to hgghlity bonds. Every bo
considered has earned ratings of at least AA hR#roup, AA by Standard & Poor's, or Aa2 by Moasdyvestor Service:

The discount rates used at December 31, 2013adilize Citigroup Pension Liability Index
The accumulated benefit obligation for the defilehefit pension plan was $9,679,000 and $8,333zDecember 31, 2014 and 2C
respectively. The postretirement plan had an actated benefit obligation of $356,000 and $402,@6@@®mecember 31, 2014 and 2(C

respectively.

The significant assumptions used in determiningomeefit obligations as of December 31, are as\idl

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201¢ 201z 201¢ 201:
Weighted average discount ri 4.9(% 4.95% 4.98% 4.95%

Rate of increase in future compensation levels - - - -

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signtfeffect on the amounts reported for the posgraent health care plan. The annual |
of increase in the per capita cost of covered na¢diad prescription drug benefits for future yearere assumed to be 6.5% for 2(
gradually decreasing to 5.00% in 2018 and remaihaitlevel thereafter.

The composition of the net periodic benefit plastdor the years ended December 31 is as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi

201/ 201: 201/ 201:
(In thousands
Service cos $ - % - % - % =
Interest cos 40€ 37¢ 19 18
Expected return on plan ass (942) (859) - -
Amortization of transition obligatio - - - -
Amortization of net losse 30 361 13 20
Amortization of unrecognized past service liability - - - -
Net periodic benefit plan (benefit) cc $ (506) $ (114 $ 32 $ 38

The significant assumptions used in determiningnisteperiodic benefit plan cost for years endedebdmer 31, were as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201¢ 201: 201¢ 201z
Weighted average discount ri 4.95% 4.05% 4.95% 4.05%
Expected long term rate of return on plan as 7.5(% 8.0(% - -

Rate of increase in future compensation le - - - -

The long term rate of return on assets assumpta®sgt based on historical returns earned by equtid fixed income securities, adjuste
reflect expectations of future returns as appliedhe plan's target allocation of asset classesuities and fixed income securities w
assumed to earn real rates of return in the raoig89%-9.0% and 3.0%-5.0%, respectively. The l@rgn inflation rate was estimated tc
2.5%. When these overall return expectations ppéied to the plan's target allocation, the expectge of return was determined to be ir
range of 5.0% to 8.0%. Management has chosenet@ 5% expected lorigrm rate of return to reflect current economicditians ans
expected returns.
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The estimated net actuarial loss that will be amedt from accumulated other comprehensive lossnetoperiodic benefit plan cost dur
2015 is $180,000. The estimated amortization efuthrecognized transition obligation and actudeaisé for the post retirement health pla
2015 is $5,000. The expected net periodic bepkit cost for 2015 is estimated at a $309,000 negakpense for both retirement plans.

Plan assets are invested in four diversified irmesit funds of the Pentegra Retirement Trust (thrastT, formerly known as RSI Retirem:
Trust), a private placement investment fund. ThastThas been given discretion by the Plan Spasdetermine the appropriate stratt
asset allocation versus plan liabilities, as goedrby the Trust's Investment Policy Statement. Flam is structured to utilize a Liabil
Driven Investment (LDI) approach which seeks todfuhe current and future liabilities of the Plardaims to mitigate funded status
contribution volatility.

The Plan's asset allocation targets to hold 38%sskts in equity securities via investment in tbad-Term Growth -Equity Portfolic
(LTGE"), 16% in intermediate-term investment grdmbands via investment in the Long-Term Growth —efeidncome Portfolio (LTGFI"
35% in long duration bonds via the Liability Focddeixedincome Portfolio ('LFFI"), 10% in an alternativesasfund (the ALT Portfolio
and 1% in a cash equivalents portfolio (for liqtydli

LTGE is a diversified portfolio that invests in amber of actively and passively managed egigtused mutual funds and colleci
investment trusts. The Portfolio holds a diveeslfimix of equity funds in order to gain exposurdtte U.S. and nok..S. equity market:
LTGFI is a diversified portfolio that invests innamber of fixedincome mutual funds and collective investment susthe Portfolio inves
primarily in intermediate-term bond funds with a&@g on Core Plus fixemhcome investment approaches. LFFI is a diveifiggh qualit
fixed-income portfolio that currently invests in passyehanaged collective investment trusts that holaglauration bonds. The Al
Portfolio invests in professionally managed priviateds that hold alternative assets. The Portfolioently invests in three long/short eq
hedge funds.

The investment objectives, investment strategiesreak of each of the daily valued and unitizedtfedios and the funds held within t
Portfolios are detailed in the Private Placemeniidendum and the Trust's Investment Policy Statémen

The long-term investment objectives are to mainan assets at a level that will sufficiently col@ngterm obligations and to generat
return on plan assets that will meet or exceedateat which londerm obligations will grow. The LTGE and LTGFI Pfotios are designe
to provide long-term growth of equity and fixattome assets with the objective of achieving arestment return in excess of the cos
funding the active life, deferred vested, and @Glydar term and longer obligations of retired liveshie Trust. The LFFI Portfolio is desigi
to fund the Trust's estimated retired lives claskabilities for 30 years. The ALT Strategy isgiigned to add diversification via the addit
of relatively low correlation assets. Risk/vol#ilis further managed by the distinct investmejeotives of each of the Trust's Portfolios
broadly diversified combination of equity and fixedome portfolios and various risk managementragres are used to help achieve tl
objectives.

In addition, significant consideration is paid e tplan’'s funding levels when determining the dvesset allocation. If the plan is conside
to be well-funded, approximately 65% of the plassets are allocated to equities and approxima8&Jy allocated to fixeihicome. Asse
rebalancing normally occurs when the equity anddixcome allocations vary by more than 10% from thespective targets (i.e., a 1
policy range guideline).
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Funds —Fixed Income, were categorized as Level 1 at Deeerdti, 2013. At December 31, 2014, these fundsagortomponents
collective trusts and limited partnership withirsgle investment strategies that require these fuanlols categorized as Level 2.

Pension plan assets measured at fair value are atipaah below:

At December 31, 201

Total Fail
(In thousands) Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equit

Large-cap Growth (b - 914 - 914

Mid-cap Growth (e - 222 - 222

Smal-cap Growth (h 154 154

Equity -Total 5,00¢ 5,00¢

Fixed Income Fund

Long Duration (1)

2,35¢

2,35¢

0O
o
3
o
5
O
o
3
3
o)
5
@
2

*Includes cash equivalents investments in equity fated income strategie

(a) This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yield. The portfolio typically holds beeme50 and 70 stock

(b) This category seeks lo-term capital appreciation by investing primarilylénge growth companies based in the |

(c) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50@inty purchasing the securities represented inntthex in approximately tt
same weightings as the ind«

(d) This category employs an indexing investment apgratesigned to track the performance of the CRSIRMidl-Cap Value Index

(e) This category employs an indexing investment apgratesigned to track the performance of the CRSRMidl-Cap Growth Index

(f) This category seeks to track the performance oSt Midcap 400 Inde>

(g) This category consists of a selection of investséased on the Russell 2000 Value Inc

(h) This category consists of a selection of investmbased on the Russell 2000 Growth Inc

(i) This category consists of an index fund designedaitk the Russell 2000, along with a fund investimreadily marketable securit
of U.S. companies with market capitalizations wittie smallest 10% of the market universe, or andtlan the 1000th largest
company.

() This category has investments in medium t@danonUS companies, including high quality, durable ghoveompanies at
companies based in countries with stable economdt political systems. A portion of this categomynsists of an index fui
designed to track the MSC ACWI-US Net Dividend Return Inde

(k) This category consists of three funds, onetaiaing a diversified portfolio of higluality bonds and other fixed income securi
including U.S. Government obligations, mortgagtated and asset backed securities, corporatemamicipal bonds, CMOs, a
other securities rated Baa or better. The second émphasizes a more globally diversified portfolf higher-quality, intermediate-
term bonds. The third fund seeks to track the BgscCapital U.S. Corporate A or Bette-20 Year, Bullets Inde»
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() This category consists of funds invested primairilydebt securities with the objective of approximgtthe return of the Barcla
Capital US Long Credit Bond Index with maturitiegater than 10 years and the Barclays Capital UPdZate A or Better 20+ ye
Bullets Only Index
(m) This category currently invests in three long/steatity hedge fund:
At December 31, 201
Total Fail
(In thousands) Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity
Large-cap value (a $ 1,372 $ - % - % 1,372
Smal-cap core (b 1,801 - - 1,801
Large-cap Growth (c 2,06¢ - - 2,06¢
International Core (¢ 1,447 - - 1,447
Common/collective trusil- equity
Large-cap core (e - 1,53: - 1,53:
Large-cap value (f - 771 - 771
Common/collective trust- fixed income
Market duration fixed (g - 1,22¢ - 1,22¢
Mutual Fund-Fixed Income
Intermediate duration (| 2,47: - - 2,47
Company common stoc - - - -
Cash Equivalents-Money market - - - -
Total $ 9,161 $ 3,53C $ - $ 12,69:
(a) This category consists of investments whose sectdrindustry exposures are maintained within aomatrand around Russell 1(
index. The portfolio holds approximately 150 st&x
(b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightare maintained within a narrow band around tlebske Russell 2000 inde
The portfolio will typically hold more than 300 sis.
(c) This category consists of a pair of mutualdsinone that seeks fast growing lamgg companies with sustainable franchises
positive price momentum, the other invests primgdrillarge cap growth companies based in the
(d) This category has investments in medium tg@danontS companies, including high quality, durable gfoveompanies at
companies based in countries with stable econondqalitical systems
(e) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50(inty purchasing the securities represented irritiex in approximately tt
same weightings as the Ind:
() This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yields. The portfolio typically holds betm 60 and 70 stock
(g) This category consists of an index fund that trablkesBarclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Indeke Tund invests in Treasu
agency, corporate, mortge-backed and ass-backed securitie:
(h) This category consists of two funds, one cioimg a diversified portfolio of higlguality bonds and other fixed income securi

including U.S. Government obligations, mortgagtated and asset backed securities, corporatemamicipal bonds, CMOs, a
other securities rated Baa or better. The sedomdl emphasizes a more globally diversified pdidfaof higherquality,
intermediat-term bonds
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For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015, #ekBexpects to contribute approximately $27,00héopostretirement plan.

The following benefit payments, which reflect extgetfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée faid from both retirement plans:

Pensiol Postretiremel
(In thousands) Benefits Benefit: Total

Years ending December 31:

2015 $ 264 $ 27 % 291
2016 27C 28 29¢
2017 29C 28 31¢
2018 30z 28 33C
2019 312 28 34C
Years 2020-2024 1,91¢ 131 2,05(

The Company also offers a 401(k) plan to its emg@ésy Contributions to this plan by the Companyav§241,000 and $228,000 for 2014
2013, respectively.In addition, the Company ma#4&b,000 safe harbor contribution to the plan ih420

The Company maintains optional deferred compensagtians for its directors and certain executivecefs, whereby fees and inco
normally received are deferred and paid by the Gombased upon a payment schedule commencing &bagied continuing monthly for
years. Directors must serve on the board for ammim of 5 years to be eligible for the Plan. At Dmber 31, 2014 and 2013, other liabili
include approximately $2,107,000 and $1,990,008peetively, relating to deferred compensation. Befé compensation expense for
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounggxptoximately $326,000 and $208,000, respecti

The Company has a supplemental executive retireplant ("SERP") for the benefit of a retired ChiefeEutive Officer at December !
2014. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, other ligdsliincluded approximately $72,000 and $125,088pectively, accrued under this
related to the retired CEO. Compensation expemdades approximately $8,000 relating to this sapy@ntal executive retirement plan
the year ended December 31, 2014 and $12,000dor¢hr ended December 31, 2013.

To assist in the funding of the Company's benefitder the supplemental executive retirement pla@,Gompany is the owner of sin
premium life insurance policies on selected paénts. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the cagskrslar values of these policies w
$10,356,000 and $8,268,000, respectively.

The Bank adopted a Defined Contribution SupplemeBkecutive Retirement Plan (the "SERP"), effectdanuary 1, 2014. The SE
benefits certain key senior executives of the Bahk are selected by the Board to participate, olioly our Named Executive Officers. 1
SERP is intended to provide a benefit from the Bapén retirement, death, disability or voluntaryiroroluntary termination of service (otl
than "for cause"), subject to the requirements exfti®n 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Accaglyinthe SERP obligates the Ban}
make a contribution to each executive's accourtherdast business day of each calendar year. ditiaal, the Bank, may, but is not requi
to, make additional discretionary contributionghe executive's accounts from time to time. Akextives currently participating in the pl
including the Named Executive Officers, are fullgsted in the Bank's contribution to the plan. He event the executive is termine
involuntarily or resigns for good reason within B¥bnths following a change in control, the Bank éguired to make additional ann
contributions the lesser of: (1) three years 9ttli2 number of years remaining until the execigibenefit age, subject to potential reduc
to avoid an excess parachute payment under Cod®is&80G. In the event of the executive's dedibability or termination within Z
months after a change in control, the executivet®ant will be paid in a lump sum to the executivehis beneficiary, as applicable. In
event executive is entitled to a benefit from tlERE due to retirement or other termination of empient, the benefit will be paid either i
lump sum or in 10 annual installments as detaitedhis or her participant agreement. At December2il4, other liabilities include
$168,000 accrued under this plan.
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NOTE 13: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
The April 2010 Stock Option Plan

All share and per share values have been adjusteste appropriate, by the 1.6472 exchange rate insdet Conversion and Offering tl
occurred on October 16, 2014.

In June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Compapgroved the grant of stock option awards to itedors and Executive Officers un
the 2010 Stock Option Plan that was approved aftireial Meeting of Shareholders on April 28, 2018ew 247,080 shares were author
for award. A total of 74,124 stock option awardsrevgranted to the nine directors of the Companthat time, and 123,540 stock opt
awards, in total, were granted to the Chief Exeeu@fficer and the Company's then four Senior \Rcesidents. The awards will vest rat:
over five years (20% per year for each year ofpidwicipant's service with the Company) and wilpie ten years from the date of the gr

or June 2021. The fair value of each option gvead established at the date of grant using thekBatoles option pricing model. The Black-
Scholes model used the following weighted averageraptions: riskree interest rate of 2.2%; volatility factors bketexpected market pri

of the Company's common stock of .45; weighted ayerexpected lives of the options of 7.0 yearsh dasdend yield of 1.49%. Based uf
these assumptions, the weighted average fair wdloptions granted was $2.29.

In July 2013, the Board of Directors of the Compapproved the grant of 16,472 stock option awandstal to two newly elected Directt
of the Company. The awards will vest ratably dii years (20% per year for each year of the pigdnt's service with the Company) .
will expire ten years from the date of the gramtJoly 2023. The fair value of each option graasvwestablished at the date of grant usin
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Selsomodel used the following weighted average assanyp riskfree interest rate
2.0%; volatility factors of the expected marketcprof the Company's common stock of .45; weightedage expected lives of the option
7.0 years: cash dividend yield of 1.0%. Based wpese assumptions, the weighted average fair wdloptions granted was $3.69.

The compensation expense of the awards is basetheoffiair value of the instruments on the date aingr The Company recorc

compensation expense in the amount of $84,000 &80 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is eegetorecord $84,000, $46,0(
$12,000, and $7,000 in 2015 through 2018.
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At December 31, 2014, there were 170,000 optiotstanding, of which 95,000 were exercisable atvatage exercise price of $5.75, ani
average remaining contractual life of 6.7 years.

Activity in the stock option plans is as follows:

Weightec

Options Average Share

(Shares in thousands) Outstandin.  Exercise Pric Exercisabl
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 17t $ 5.4¢€ 36
Grantec 16 $ 8.4: -
Newly vestec - 5.4€ 35
Exercisec (8) 5.4€ (8)
Expired (10 5.4¢ .
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1752 $ 5.4€ 63
Grantec - 8 = =
Newly vestec - 5.7t 35
Exercisec 3 - (3)
Expired - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 17C $ 5.7¢ 95

The aggregate intrinsic value of a stock optiorresents the total priax intrinsic value (the amount by which the cutnerarket value of tt
underlying stock exceeds the exercise price obfit®n) that would have been received by the optioiders had all option holders exerci
their options prior to the expiration date. Thgiirsic value can change based on fluctuationkénmarket value of the Company's stock
December 31, 2014, the intrinsic value of the stopkons was $693,000. At December 31, 2013, nhinsic value of the stock options v
$430,000.

NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company established the Pathfinder Bank Empl&teck Ownership Plan ("Plan") to purchase stdak@ Company for the benefit
its employees. In July 2011, the Plan received 4 $illion loan from Community Bank, N.A., guaread by the Company, to fund
Plan's purchase of 125,000 shares of the Comptag'sury stock. The loan was being repaid in equatterly installments of principal p!
interest over ten years beginning October 1, 20hferest accrued at the Wall Street Journal PiRate plus 1.00%, and was secured b
unallocated shares of the ESOP stock. This loanrefnanced in connection with the Conversion @fifgring that occurred on October
2014.

In connection with the Conversion and Offering, 88OP purchased 105,442 shares issued in thengffesi obtaining a loan from t
Company which was used to purchase both the addltghares and refinance the remaining outstarishfance on the loan from Commui
Bank N.A. There were 138,982.5 shares associatédtine refinanced loan resulting in a total of 241.5 shares associated with the
loan provided by the Company.

The ESOP loan from the Company has a ten year aewhis being repaid in equal payments of princgral interest under a fixed rate
interest equal to 3.25% which was the prime rat@tefest on the date of the closing of the offgrimhis ESOP loan from the Company,

referred to as an internally leveraged ESOP, dadsappear as a liability on the Company's constdifiastatement of condition as
December 31, 2014 in accordance with ASC 718-4@-85-

In accordance with the payment of principal onltan, a proportionate number of shares are allddat¢he employees over the ten year
horizon of the loan. Participants' vesting inteliesthe shares of Company stock is at the rat2086 per year. Compensation expen:
recorded based on the number of shares releastheé foarticipants times the average market valudh@fCompany's stock over that s:
period. Dividends on unallocated shares, recoeedompensation expense on the income statementyade available to the participa
account. The Company recorded $211,000 and $175r0@0mpensation expense in 2014 and 2013, respégctincluding $15,000 a1
$12,000 for dividends on unallocated shares inettszsne time periods. At December 31, 2014, theme ®38,314 unearned ESOP sh
with a fair value of $2.3 million.
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The components of the net deferred tax (liabilg¥et, included in other assets or other lialslisie of December 31, are as follows:

(In thousands) 2014 201z
Assets:

Allowance for loan losse 2,04¢ 1,95(C

Mortgage recording tax credit carryforwe 90 151

Capital loss carryforwar 30¢& 33¢

Other 14z 18¢€

[
o
=)
=
®
@0

Depreciatior 1,05 782
Loan origination fee 19 10E
Investment securities and financial derivat 28¢ 64

Prepaid expenses (84) (52

157 4

Net deferred tax liability $ (615) $ (505)
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Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent tipogeneration of future taxable income or thsterce of sufficient taxable income wit
the carry back period. A valuation allowance isvided when it is more likely than not that sometioa, or all of the deferred tax assets,
not be realized. In assessing the need for a trafuallowance, management considers the schedeledsal of the deferred tax liabilities,
level of historical taxable income and the projdcfature level of taxable income over the periodswihich the temporary differenc
comprising the deferred tax assets will be dedlectifhe judgment about the level of future taxahlmome is inherently subjective anc
reviewed on a continual basis as regulatory andéhbss factors change. The valuation allowance 88®D0 represents the portion of
deferred tax asset that management believes mayerretalizable, as the Company may not generafieisat capital gains to offset its cap
losses.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tate to the effective income tax rate for thergemnded December 31, is as follows:

201 201:
Federal statutory income tax ri 34.(% 34.(%
State tax, net of federal bene 1.6 2.€
Tax-exempt interest incorr (7.2 (8.5
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance pessiums paic (2.5) (2.1
Other 3.7 -
Effective income tax rate 29.6% 26.(%

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company dichagé any uncertain tax positions. The Companylisypis to recognize interest a
penalties, if any, in income tax expense in thegdtdated Statements of Income. The tax yearsestib) examination by Federal and S
taxing authorities are the years ended Decembe2@®1], through 2014.

NOTE 16: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentswaitf-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busittesseet the financing needs of
customers. These financial instruments include citmemts to extend credit and standby letters oflitreSuch commitments involve,
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in exadgshe amount recognized in the consolidated stat¢rof condition. The contractual ama
of those commitments to extend credit reflectsetkient of involvement the Company has in this paléir class of financial instrument. 1
Company's exposure to credit loss in the eventoojparformance by the other party to the finanagiatrument for commitments to exte
credit is represented by the contractual amourhefinstrument. The Company uses the same creliiigs in making commitments a:
does for on-balance sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the following firnahimstruments were outstanding whose contractuantsorepresent credit risk:

Contract Amoun

(In thousands) 2014 2012
Commitments to grant loai $ 28,16¢ $ 16,00¢
Unfunded commitments under lines of cre 28,17 20,42¢
Standby letters of credit 4,617 4,56:

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totlemdcustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contr
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datesother termination clauses and may require paynoéra fee. Since some of |
commitment amounts are expected to expire witheirtgodrawn upon, the total commitment amounts daroessarily represent future c
requirements. The Company evaluates each custoanedgworthiness on a case-bgse basis. The amount of collateral obtainededinae:
necessary by the Company upon extension of cisdigsed on management's credit evaluation ofdhater party. Collateral held varies
may include residential real estate and inc@raelucing commercial properties. Loan commitmentistanding at December 31, 2014\
fixed interest rates amounted to approximately $h3illion. Loan commitments, including unused liméscredit and standby letters of cre
outstanding at December 31, 2014 with variabler@serates amounted to approximately $47.6 millidhese outstanding loan commitme
carry current market rates.
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Unfunded commitments under standby letters of tredivolving credit lines and overdraft protectiagreements are commitments
possible future extensions of credit to existingtomers. These lines of credit usually do not@iond specified maturity date and may nc
drawn upon to the total extent to which the Compiargpmmitted.

Letters of credit written are conditional commitntemssued by the Company to guarantee the perfarenaha customer to a third par
Generally, all letters of credit, when issued hawxpiration dates within one year. The credit riskolved in issuing letters of credit
essentially the same as those that are involveexianding loan facilities to customers. The Conypgenerally holds collateral and
personal guarantees supporting these commitméfasagement believes that the proceeds obtainedghra liquidation of collateral and 1
enforcement of guarantees would be sufficient teecohe potential amount of future payments reguirader the corresponding guarantt
The amount of the liability as of December 31, 2@hd 2013 for guarantees under standby letterseditdssued is not material.

The Company leases land and leasehold improvenueisr agreements that expire in various years keitiewal options over the next
years. Rental expense, included in building ocnapa&xpense, amounted to $98,000 for 2014 and 883dy 2013

Approximate minimum rental commitments for non-aglable operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 3
(In thousands

2015 $ 11¢%
2016 11€
2017 117
2018 66
2019 29
Thereafter 354

Total minimum lease payments $ 797

NOTE 17: DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTIONS

Through the period up until October 16, 2014, atclwhime the second step Conversion and Offerirudg folace, the Board of Directors
Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C. determined whether tloddithg Company would waive or receive dividendslaesd by the Company, subjec
regulatory approval, each time the Company declardividend. The Holding Company elected to recéivedends and utilize such funds
pay expenses or for other allowable purposes. R Iras indicated that (i) the Holding Company shalile provided the FRB annually w
written notice of its intent to waive its dividendsor to the proposed date of the dividend andRR® shall have the authority to approv:
deny any dividend waiver request; (ii) if a waiigigranted, dividends waived by the Holding Compuaiill/be excluded from the Compan
capital accounts for purposes of calculating diripayments to minority shareholders. During 284d 2013, the Company paid or accl
dividends totaling $190,000 to the Holding Compamgach of these two years. The Holding Companyndidwaive the right to receive
portion of the cash dividends declared during 2002013. After the completion of the Conversionl &iffering on October 16, 2014,
Holding Company, or MHC, ceased to exist.
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The Company's ability to pay dividends to its shatders is largely dependent on the Bank's abititypay dividends to the Company.
addition to state law requirements and the cap#@glirements discussed in Note 18, federal statuéggilations and policies limit t
circumstances under which the Bank may pay dividen@he amount of retained earnings legally avldlainder these regulatic
approximated $7.3 million as of December 31, 20Ddvidends paid by the Bank to the Company wouldobghibited if the effect there
would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced bajagplicable minimum capital requirements. The bpail dividends to the Company of $-
0-, $-0-, and $1.2 million in the years ended Deoen81, 2014, December 31, 2013 and December 32, 28spectively.

Since the Company has chosen to participate imthasury's SBLF program, it is permitted to payidiénds on its common stock provic
certain Tier 1 capital minimums are exceeded antdFS@ividends have been declared and paid to Trgaassirof the most recent divide
period.

NOTE 18: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capiggjuirements administered by the federal banking@gs. Failure to meet minimum cap
requirements can initiate certain mandatory andiptsadditional discretionary actions by regulatthat, if undertaken, could have a di
material effect on the Company's consolidated fifenstatements. Under capital adequacy guidelares the regulatory framework -
prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specHpital guidelines that involve quantitative rse@s of its assets, liabilities, and cel
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulaocpunting practices. The capital amounts and ifilz#ons are also subject
qualitative judgments by the regulators about camepés, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulatioenture capital adequacy require the Bank to mairgaiounts and ratios (set forth in
table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defirie the regulations) to riskeighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 cafasdefined) t
average assets (as defined).

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank's most recerificaiton from the Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion categorized the Bank as "well-
capitalized", under the regulatory framework foompt corrective action. To be categorized as “waflitalized", the Bank must maint
total risk based, Tier 1 riskased and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth entables below. There are no conditions or eveintesha
notification that management believes have chatiged@ank's category.

The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios &eoember 31, 2014 and 2013 are presented in tlosvfo table.

Minimum
To Be "Wel-
Minimum Capitalized"
For Capital Under Promp
Actual Adequacy Purpose Corrective Provision
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratic Amoun Ratic Amount Ratic
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Risk-
Weighted Assets $ 63,83 16.6(% $ 30,75¢ 8.0(% $ 38,44 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted
Assets) $ 58,84 15.31% $ 15,37% 4.0% $ 23,06¢ 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Assets) $ 58,84 10.55% $ 22,30: 4.0(% $ 27,87¢ 5.0(%
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Risk-
Weighted Assets $ 47,86: 14.1% $ 27,10¢ 8.0(% $ 33,88t 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted
Assets) $ 43,45¢ 12.82% $ 13,55! 4.0% $ 20,33( 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Assets) $ 43,45¢ 8.7:% $ 19,92¢ 4.0(% $ 24,91( 5.0(%

100




Table of Contents

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered int®thehase Agreement with the United States Depattofethe Treasury, as part of
Capital Purchase Program ("CPP") pursuant to wtiiehCompany issued and sold to Treasury: (i) 6shékes of the Company's Fixed F
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series Ayvpare $0.01 per share, having a liquidation amgentshare equal to $1,000, for a t
price of $6,771,000; and (ii) a Warrant to purcha5é,354 shares of the Company's common stockyglae $0.01 per share, at an exel
price per share of $6.58. The Company contribtaettie Bank, its subsidiary, $5,500,000 or 81.23%e proceeds of the sale of the Se
A Preferred Stock.

The $6,771,000 of proceeds was allocated to theeSér Preferred Stock and the Warrant based om te&tive fair values at issuar
($6,065,000 was allocated to the Series A Prefe8tedk and $706,000 to the Warrant).

On September 1, 2011, the Company redeemed alll GHa@res of its Fixed Rate Cumulative PerpetualePesl Stock Series A. T
Company paid $6,786,000 to the Treasury Departrteenédeem the Series A Preferred Stock, which deduthe original investment
$6,771,000, plus accrued dividends.

In connection with this redemption, on Septembe2dl,1, the Company entered into a Securities PaecAgreement with the Secretar)
the Treasury ("Treasury") pursuant to which the @any sold to the Treasury, 13,000 shares of itsoBedon-Cumulative Perpetu
Preferred Stock, Series B ("Series B Preferred K3ypdiaving a liquidation preference of $1,000 mrare for aggregate proceed:
$13,000,000. This transaction was entered infmaaisof the Treasury's Small Business Lending Farodyram ("SBLF").

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject tstnietions of the CPP program. The SBLF programsdoave its own requirements, wt
are summarized below:

The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to recaivecumulative dividends payable quarterly, on eacludanl, April 1, July 1 and Octot
1, beginning October 1, 2011. The dividend rateictvis calculated on the aggregate Liquidation Antpwas initially set at 4.2% per ann
based upon the current level of "Qualified SmalsiBess Lending", or "QSBL" (as defined in the Séms Purchase Agreement) by
Company's wholly owned subsidiary, the Bank. Tiweddnd rate for future dividend periods will bet &&sed upon the "Percentage Chi
in Qualified Lending" (as defined in the SecuritRsrchase Agreement) between each dividend periddre "Baseline” QSBL level. St
dividend rate may vary from 1% per annum to 5% g®ertum for the second through tenth dividend perirdsn 1% per annum to 7% |
annum for the eleventh through the first half af thineteenth dividend periods. If the Series 8féred Stock remains outstanding for n
than four-and-onéralf years, the dividend rate will be fixed at 9®yior to that time, in general, the dividend rdéereases as the level of
Bank's QSBL increases. The Company's dividersl aatof the date of this report is 1.0%. Updateditey information provided to the |
Treasury in early 2013 resulted in a credit agaimstdividend rate for 2013 through June of 2084ich dividends are not cumulative, but
Company may only declare and pay dividends ondtsron stock (or any other equity securities jutiothe Series B Preferred Stock)
has declared and paid dividends for the curreritdeind period on the Series B Preferred Stock, aifidbes subject to other restrictions on
ability to repurchase or redeem other securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series Brex@f8tock, in whole or in part, at any time aedemption price equal to the sum of

Liguidation Amount per share and the per-share anofiany unpaid dividends for the thearrent period, subject to any required [
approval by the Company's primary federal bankegufator.
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The Company's ability to pay common stock divideisdsonditional on payment of the Series B Prefe@&ock Dividends described abo
In addition, the SBLF program requires the Comp#myile quarterly reports on QSBL lending. The Gmany must also outreach ¢
advertise the availability of QSBL to organizatioasd individuals who represent minorities, womawl aeterans. The Company m
annually certify that no business loans are madwitwipals of businesses who have been convictedsex crime against a minor. Fing
the SBLF program requires the Company to file qarrt annual and other reports provided to shadsrsiconcurrently with the Treasury.

The Company's goal is to maintain a strong capitaition, consistent with the risk profile of itstsidiary banks that supports growth
expansion activities while at the same time excegpdégulatory standards. At December 31, 2014Btek exceeded all regulatory requi
minimum capital ratios and met the regulatory d&én of a "well-capitalized" institution, i.e. a leverage capit@io exceeding 5%, a Tiel
risk-based capital ratio exceeding 6% and a tigkilvased capital ratio exceeding 10%.

The Bank is required to maintain average balanodsand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At Deeerth, 2014 and 2013, these res
balances amounted to $3,930,000 and $1,680,0Qfkateeely, and are included in cash and due fronkban the statement of condition.

NOTE 19: INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVE

Derivative instruments are entered into primargyaarisk management tool of the Company. Finamgélatives are recorded at fair valus
other liabilities. The accounting for changes ia thir value of a derivative depends on whethba# been designated and qualifies as pal
hedging relationship. For a fair value hedge, clearig the fair value of the derivative instrumend &hanges in the fair value of the hec
asset or liability are recognized currently in éags. For a cash flow hedge, changes in the fdirevaf the derivative instrument, to the ex
that it is effective, are recorded in other compradive income and subsequently reclassified taregsras the hedged transaction impact
income. Any ineffective portion of a cash flow hedg recognized currently in earnings. See Not®R€urther discussion of the fair value
the interest rate derivative.

The Company has $5 million of floating rate trustfprred debt indexed torBeonth LIBOR. As a result, it is exposed to varipiin cast
flows related to changes in projected interest pEyscaused by changes in the benchmark intertest Bauring the fourth quarter of fisi
2009, the Company entered into an interest rat@ sgeeement, with a $2.0 million notional amouatconvert a portion of the variabitate
junior subordinated debentures to a fixed rateaféerm of approximately 7 years at a rate of 4.96%e derivative is designated as a
flow hedge. The hedging strategy ensures thatgdsmm cash flows from the derivative will be highdffective at offsetting changes
interest expense from the hedged exposure.

The following table summarizes the fair value ofstanding derivatives and their presentation onstheements of condition as of Decen
31:

(In thousands) 2014 201z

Cash flow hedge
Other liabilities $ 82 $ 13¢
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The change in accumulated other comprehensivedoss pretax basis, and the impact on earnings fhenmnterest rate swap that qualifies as
a cash flow hedge for the year ended December 84 agefollows:

(In thousands) 2014 2012
Balance as of December ¢ $ (135 $ (19%)
Amount of losses recognized in other comprehersiseme (9) (2
Amount of loss reclassified from other compreheasincome
and recognized as interest expense 62 62
Balance as of December 31: $ (82) $ (13%)

No amount of ineffectiveness has been includedamiags and the changes in fair value have beamded in other comprehensive incor
Some or the entire amount included in accumulatedracomprehensive loss would be reclassified égatoent earnings should a portion of
the entire hedge no longer be considered effectw,at this time, management expects the hedgenain fully effective during tt
remaining term of the swap.

The Company posted cash, of $200,000, under caladerangements to satisfy collateral requiremestociated with the interest rate s
contract.

NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Accounting guidance related to fair value measurgmand disclosures specifies a hierarchy of valnatchniques based on whether
inputs to those valuation techniques are obsenablmobservable. Observable inputs reflect mastkéd obtained from independent sour
while unobservable inputs reflect the Company'sketaassumptions. These two types of inputs havatedethe following fair valu
hierarchy:

Level 1 —Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetfiabilities in active markets that the entity h& tability to access as of t
measurement date.

Level 2 —Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitiegaative markets; quoted prices for identical orisimassets or liabilities in marke
that are not active; and model-derived valuationgliich all significant inputs and significant valdrivers are observable in active markets.

Level 3 — Model-derived valuations in which onenware significant inputs or significant value drigerre unobservable.

An asset's or liability's level within the fair wa& hierarchy is based on the lowest level of injmatt is significant to the fair vall
measurement.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes ualon techniques that maximize the use of obsésvaiputs, minimize the use
unobservable inputs, to the extent possible, andiders counterparty credit risk in its assessrogfdir value.

The Company used the following methods and sigaifi@ssumptions to estimate fair value:

Investment securities: The fair values of seasitavailable-fosale are obtained from an independent third party axe based on quot
prices on nationally recognized securities exchang®eere available (Level 1). If quoted prices rroeavailable, fair values are measurec
utilizing matrix pricing, which is a mathematicachnique used widely in the industry to value deduturities without relying exclusively
quoted prices for specific securities but ratherrblying on the securities' relationship to othenthmark quoted securities (Level
Management made no adjustment to the fair valu¢egubat were received from the independent thartlygricing service.
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Interest rate swap derivative: The fair valuehsf interest rate swap derivative is calculated dasea discounted cash flow model. All fut
floating cash flows are projected and both floatmgd fixed cash flows are discounted to the vabmatiate. The curve utilized f
discounting and projecting is built by obtainingofialy available third party market quotes for vars swap maturity terms.

Impaired loans: Impaired loans are those loanshitlwthe Company has measured impairment baseleofair value of the loan's collate
or the discounted value of expected future cashsloFair value is generally determined based uparket value evaluations by third par
of the properties and/or estimates by managemenbing capital collateral or discounted cash fdwased upon expected proceeds. T
appraisals may include up to three approachesltevthe sales comparison approach, the incomevappr(for incomesroducing property’
and the cost approach. Management modifies theaiggol values, if needed, to take into accounttedevelopments in the market or ot
factors, such as, changes in absorption rates okemaonditions from the time of valuation and aipated sales values consider
management's plans for disposition. Such modifinatto the appraised values could result in loveduations of such collateral. Estima
costs to sell are based on current amounts of sidpmsts for similar assets. These measuremeatslassified as Level 3 within tl
valuation hierarchy. Impaired loans are subjeandarecurring fair value adjustment upon initialaguition or subsequent impairment.
portion of the allowance for loan losses is alledab impaired loans if the value of such loardeismed to be less than the unpaid balance.

Foreclosed real estate: Fair values for foreclosatlestate are initially recorded based on marikie evaluations by third parties, less ¢
to sell ("initial cost basis"). Any writdowns required when the related loan receivabéxéhanged for the underlying real estate collatt
the time of transfer to foreclosed real estate cn@ged to the allowance for loan losses. Valuesdarived from appraisals, similar
impaired loans, of underlying collateral or disctathcash flow analysis. Subsequent to foreclostakeiations are updated periodically
assets are marked to current fair value, not teedahe initial cost basis. In the determinatiérfair value subsequent to foreclost
management also considers other factors or reemi@pments, such as, changes in absorption ratemarket conditions from the time
valuation and anticipated sales values considaringagement's plans for disposition. Either charogdd result in adjustment to lower 1
property value estimates indicated in the appraisahese measurements are classified as LeveahBwie fair value hierarchy.
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The following tables summarize assets measurediavélue on a recurring basis as of December 8dregated by the level of valuati
inputs within the hierarchy utilized to measure failue:

December 31, 201

Total Fail
(In thousands) Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Available-for-sale portfolio
Debt investment securitie

State and political subdivisiol 8,44: 8,44:

Residential mortgacr-backed- US agency 30,57¢ 30,57¢

Equity investment securitie

Ultra short mortﬁaﬁe fun 64¢ - - 64¢
Other mutual fund - 37¢ - 37¢
~ Common stock- financial servicesindust 43 25 - 20%
Total available-for-sale securities $ 1,34C $ 86,737 $ - $ 88,07
Interest rate swap derivative $ - $ 82 $ - $ (82
2013
Total Fail
(In thousands) Level 1 Level Z Level & Value

Debt investment securitie

State and political subdivisiol 6,587 6,587

Residential mortgacr-backed- US agency 42,14 42,14

Equity investment securitie

Ultra short mortgage fun 64 64

Other mutual fund 34¢& 34t

Total available-for-sale securities $ 1,341 $ 79,61¢ $

$ 80,95¢

Interest rate swap derivative $ - $ (135) $ - $ (13E)

Certain assets and liabilities are measured atvidire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imsénts are not measured at fair value o
ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjestiin certain circumstances (for example, wheretis evidence of impairment).
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The following tables summarize assets measurediratdlue on a nonrecurring basis as of Decembges@dregated by the level of valua
inputs within the hierarchy utilized to measure failue:

At December 31, 201« Total Fail
(In thousands) Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Impaired loans $ - 3 - % 1,277 $ 1,277
Foreclosed real estate $ - 3 - 3 108 $ 10E
At December 31, 201: Total Fail
(In thousands) Level 1 Level Z Level Z Value
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 25¢ $ 25¢
Foreclosed real estate $ - 3 - 3 68 $ 69

The following table presents additional quantitatieformation about assets measured at fair vaiue monrecurring basis and for which
Level 3 inputs were used to determine fair value.

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Valuedsurement

Valuation Unobservable Range
Technique: Input (Weighted Avg.)
At December 31,201
Impaired loan: Appraisal of collaters Appraisal Adjustment 5%- 25% (13%)
(Sales Approact Costs to Sel 6% - 50% (13%)
Discounted Cash Flo'
Foreclosed real ests Appraisal of collaters Appraisal Adjustment 15%- 15% (15%
(Sales Approact Costs to Sel 6%- 8% (7%)

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Valueadsurement

Valuation Unobservable Range
Technique: Input (Weighted Avg.
At December 31, 201
Impaired loan: Appraisal of collaters Appraisal Adjustment 5% - 30% (14%)
(Sales Approact Costs to Sel 6% - 50% (12%)
Foreclosed real ests Appraisal of collaters Appraisal Adjustment 15%- 15% (15%)
(Sales Approact Costs to Sel 6%- 7% (6%)

As of June 30, 2013, junior subordinated debentwidis a carrying value of $5.2 million were transéel from a level 3 classification t
level 2 classification.
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Required disclosures include fair value informatiminfinancial instruments, whether or not recogdize the consolidated statement
condition, for which it is practicable to estimdtat value. In cases where quoted market pricesar available, fair values are base:
estimates using present value or other valuatichnigues. Those techniques are significantly &ty the assumptions used, including
discount rate and estimates of future cash flowsthat regard, the derived fair value estimatesioaibe substantiated by compariso
independent markets and, in many cases, couldenm@dized in immediate settlement of the instrumen

The Company has various processes and controltage o ensure that fair value is reasonably estichaThe Company performs ¢
diligence procedures over third-party pricing seevproviders in order to support their use in thkiation process.

While the Company believes its valuation methods appropriate and consistent with other marketiqpants, the use of differe
methodologies or assumptions to determine thevédire of certain financial instruments could regulé different estimate of fair value at
reporting date.

Management uses its best judgment in estimatinfpih@alue of the Company's financial instrumemitsyever, there are inherent weakne
in any estimation technique. Therefore, for sutitsd#ly all financial instruments, the fair valustienates herein are not necessarily indici
of the amounts the Company could have realized $ales transaction on the dates indicated. Thea&sd fair value amounts have b
measured as of their respective period-ends, anel mat been revaluated or updated for purposes of these finhstEtements subsequen
those respective dates. As such, the estimateddhies of these financial instruments subseqteetite respective reporting dates ma
different than the amounts reported at each peiatl-

The following information should not be interpreteslan estimate of the fair value of the entire Gamy since a fair value calculation is ¢
provided for a limited portion of the Company's edssand liabilities. Due to a wide range of valmttechniques and the degree
subjectivity used in making the estimates, compasdsbetween the Company's disclosures and thosethef companies may not
meaningful. The Company, in estimating its failueadisclosures for financial instruments, usedftilewing methods and assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying amourteesé assets approximate their fair value andlassified as Level 1 .
Interest earning time deposits — The carrying artahthese assets approximate their fair valueagedlassified as Level 1 .

Investment securities — The fair values of se@sitivailable - for - sale and heldf@turity are obtained from an independent thirdypanc
are based on quoted prices on nationally recogrezetiange where available (Level 1). If quoteatgsiare not available, fair values
measured by utilizing matrix pricing, which is a thrematical technique used widely in the industrywatue debt securities without rely
exclusively on quoted prices for specific secusitibut rather by relying on the securities' relalip to other benchmark quoted secur
(Level 2). Management made no adjustment to tinesédue quotes that were received from the inddpanthird party pricing service.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — The carrying amotitiiese assets approximates their fair value amdlassified as Level 2 .

Net loans For variable-rate loans that peice frequently, fair value is based on carryingoants. The fair value of other loans (for exan
fixed-rate commercial real estate loans, mortgage l@rscommercial and industrial loans) is estimat@dgudiscounted cash flow analy
based on interest rates currently being offerethinmarket for loans with similar terms to borrosvef similar credit quality. Loan val
estimates include judgments based on expected yorerd rates. The measurement of the fair valubaris, including impaired loans,
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierbyc
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Accrued interest receivable and payable — The maygmount of these assets approximates theivédire and are classified as Level 1 .

Deposits — The fair values disclosed for demandsigp (e.g., interest-bearing and nonintetesaring checking, passbook savings and c¢
types of money management accounts) are, by definiequal to the amount payable on demand ateperting date (i.e., their carryi
amounts) and are classified within Level 1 of th& falue hierarchy. Fair values for fixeate certificates of deposit are estimated us
discounted cash flow calculation that applies ederates currently being offered in the marketertificates of deposits to a scheduli
aggregated expected monthly maturities on time sispoMeasurements of the fair value of time dépase classified within Level 2 of t
fair value hierarchy.

Borrowings —Fixed/variable term "bullet" structures are valusihg a replacement cost of funds approach. Thesewings are discount
to the FHLBNY advance curve. Option structuredrbings' fair values are determined by the FHLB liorrowings that include a call
conversion option. If market pricing is not avaika from this source, current market indicatiorenfrthe FHLBNY are obtained and

borrowings are discounted to the FHLBNY advanceveuess an appropriate spread to adjust for th@mpiThese measurements
classified as Level 2 within the fair value hietarc

Junior subordinated debenture¥he Company secures a quote from its pricing serbsed on a discounted cash flow methodology \
results in a Level 2 classification for this boriog.

Interest rate swap derivativeThe fair value of the interest rate swap derivattvebtained from a third party pricing agent asdalculate
based on a discounted cash flow model. All futlzating cash flows are projected and both floating fixed cash flows are discounted tc
valuation date. The curve utilized for discountangd projecting is built by obtaining publicly aledile third party market quotes for varis
swap maturity terms, and therefore is classifiethiwiLevel 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Comjsafityancial instruments as of December 31 aregmtes! in the following table:

2014 2013
Fair Value Carryincg Estimate: Carryincg Estimate:
(Dollars In thousands) Hierarchy Amounts Fair Value: Amount: Fair Value:

Financial asset:

Cash and cash equivale 1 % 11,35¢ $ 11,35¢ $ 16,57¢ $ 16,57¢
Interest earning time depos 1 - - 50C 50C
Investment securitie- availabl«-for-sale 1 1,34(C 1,34(C 1,341 1,341
Investment securitie- available-for-sale 2 86,73: 86,73: 79,61¢ 79,61¢
Investment securitie- helc-to-maturity 2 40,87¢ 42,13¢ 34,41 34,22:
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 2 3,45¢ 3,45¢ 2,44( 2,44(
Net loans 3 382,18¢ 388,15: 336,59: 343,66(
Accrued interest receivable 1 1,84¢ 1,84¢ 1,71¢ 1,71¢
Financial liabilities:

Demand Deposits, Savings, NOW and MMI 1 $ 263,000 $ 263,000 $ 250,24¢ $ 250,24
Time Deposits 2 152,56« 152,45 159,89: 160,20:
Borrowings 2 66,10( 66,28: 40,85 41,25t
Junior subordinated debentu 2 5,15¢ 4,79¢ 5,15¢ 4,82t
Accrued interest payab 1 63 63 86 86
Interest rate swap derivative 2 82 82 13t 13t
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NOTE 21: PARENT COMPANY — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following represents the condensed financiarmation of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. as of andtfar years ended December 31:

Statements of Condition 2014 2012

(In thousands
Assets

Investment: 43 42

Investment in nc-bank subsidiar 15E 15E

Total assets $ 7461 $ 48,44¢

Accrued liabilities $ 255 $ 221

Shareholders' equity 69,20 43,07(

Statements of Income 201< 201z

Income

D
D

Dividends from non-bank subsidiary

Eernses

Operating, net 171 10¢

Totalexpenses 8% e
Loss before taxes and equity in undistributedmeime of subsidiarie 32¢ 267
Loss before equity in undistributed net incomeuwisidiaries 23C 19
Net income $ 2,74t $ 2,40¢
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Statements of Cash Flow 201< 201z

(In thousands
Operating Activities

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiau 2,97¢ 2,60

Net change in other assets and liabilities 262 39

Investing Activities

Net cash flows from investing activities 12,40
Proceeds from exercise of stock oith 18
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehol 62
Purchase of shares by ESOP 1,054
Change in cash and cash equival 11,41( 33<
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1255 $ 1,147

NOTE 22: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Companygnasted loans to certain directors, executivecef and their affiliates (collective
referred to as "related parties"). These loanseweade on substantially the same terms, includierést rates and collateral, as tt
prevailing at the time for comparable transactioith other unaffiliated parties and do not involmere than normal risk of collectability.

The following represents the activity associatethwians to related parties during the year endeckber 31, 2014:

e
=]
—
>
o
c
(7]
Q
>
o
v

~

Originations and Executive Officer additio 2,29:

Balance at the end of the year $ 7,77

At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, thé& Bad no loan receivable from the Holding Compariyhe Holding Company sc
three properties to the Company in December 20Bvidg the loan receivable at that time to be paffl Interest paid by the Holdil
Company for the years ended 2014 and 2013 wasri#t®50,000, respectively.

Deposits of related parties at December 31, 20#4Dstember 31, 2013 were $1.5 million and $1.6iom|lIrespectively.
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In October 2002, the Company entered into a laasdevith one of its directors, now retired, on ensalength basis. In January 2006, the
Company entered into a lease with the Holding Camdar the use of a training facility. This leas@as executed on an arms-length
basis. During 2010, the Company entered into ansalength lease with the Holding Company for sphe¢ was then sub-leased by the
Company to a charitable organization at below-mardm,ts. This lease remained in effect until tr@dihg Company sold the previously
mentioned properties to the Company in DecembeB 28fter which there was no rent expense paidriadated party. Rent expense paid
to the related parties during 2014 and 2013 was&ka $29,000, respectively.

NOTE 23: CONVERSION AND REORGANIZATION

On October 16, 2014, the Company completed theersion and reorganization pursuant to which PadlkefiBancorp, MHC converted to
the stock holding company form of organization un@ésecond step” conversion (the "Conversion")j e Bank reorganized from the
two-tier mutual holding company structure to thecktholding company structure. Prior to the coripteof the Conversion, the MHC

owned approximately 60.4% of the common stock ef@mmpany. New Pathfinder, the new stock holdmgmany for Pathfinder Bank,

sold 2,636,053 shares of common stock at $10.08hmme, for gross offering proceeds of $26.4 nriliio its stock offering. In addition,

$197,000 in cash was received by New Pathfinden fitee MHC upon it ceasing to exist.

Concurrent with the completion of the offering, sfg®of common stock of the Company owned by thdipulere exchanged for shares of
New Pathfinder's common stock so that the sharem®ldow own approximately the same percentage of Regthfinder's common sto

as they owned of the Company's common stock imrtegigrior to the Conversion, subject to adjustmaest disclosed in the
prospectus. Shareholders of the Company receiv@t72 shares of New Pathfinder's common stock é&@heshare of the Company's
common stock they owned immediately prior to cortipie of the transaction. Cash in lieu of fractibshares was paid based on the
offering price of $10.00 per share. Common shagdd hy the Company's ESOP prior to the Conversierevalso exchanged using the
conversion ratio of 1.6472. As a result of theenffg and the exchange of shares, New Pathfinded /32,203 shares outstanding.

The Conversion was accounted for as a change porate form with no resulting change in the histalribasis of the Company's assets,
liabilities, and equity. Costs related to the dffg were primarily marketing fees paid to the Camys investment banking firm, legal and
professional fees, registration fees, printing aradling costs and totaled $1.5 million. Accordinghet proceeds were $24.9 million. In
addition, as part of the Conversion and dissolutibthe MHC, the Company received $197,000 of gashiously held by the MHC. As a
result of the Conversion and Offering, PathfindemBorp, Inc., a federal corporation, was succednjed new fully public Maryland
corporation with the same name and the MHC ceasegist.

The shares of common stock sold in the offering iasded began trading on the Nasdaq Capital MankeéDctober 17, 2014 under the
trading symbol "PBHC."

In accordance with Board of Governors of the FddBeserve System regulations, at the time of tlwrgamnization, the Company
substantially restricted retained earnings by distasibg a liquidation account. The liquidation agat will be maintained for the benefit of
eligible account holders who continue to maintaieit accounts at the Bank after conversion. ThekBwill establish a parallel
liquidation account to support the Company's ligtith account in the event the Company does no¢ Isafficient assets to fund its
obligations under its liquidation account. Theaul@ation accounts will be reduced annually to tkiewt that eligible account holders have
reduced their qualifying deposits. Subsequentimses will not restore an eligible account holdat&rest in the liquidation accounts. In
the event of a complete liquidation of the Bankher Company, each account holder will be entittedeteive a distribution in an amount
proportionate to the adjusted qualifying accouriahees then held. The Bank may not pay dividefdsadse dividends would reduce
equity capital below the required liquidation acebamount
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NOTE 24: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
Changes in the components of accumulated other drapsive income (loss) ("AOCI"), net of tax, fhetperiods indicated are summari

in the table below.

For the year ended December 31, 2

Unrealize(

Unrealize( Unrealize( Loss ot

Gains an Gains an Securitie

Losses o Losses 0 Transferred t

Retiremer Financia Available-for- Held-to-

Plan: derivative Sale Securitie Maturi Total

Other comprehensive (loss) income before
reclassification: 83¢ 5 544 48 251

Ending balance $ (1,799 $ (49 $ 457 $ (739 $ 2,11¢

Unrealize(

Unrealize( Unrealize( Loss ot

Gains an Gains an Securitie

Losses o Losses 0 Transferred t

Retiremer Financia Available-for- Held-to-
Plan: derivative Sale Securitie Maturity Total

Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassification: 1,55¢ 3 1,24 781) $ 47€

Ending balance $ (982 $ (1) $ 99 $ (781) $ (1,745)

The following table presents the amounts reclassifiut of each component of AOCI for the indicaedual period:

(In thousands) For the year ende
December 3: December 3:
Details about AOCtcomponents 201< 201: Affected Line Item in the Statement of Income

Unrealized holding gain on financial derivati
Reclassification adjustment f

25 23 Provision for income taxes

Retirement plan item

recognized in plan expens? 43) $ 381) Salaries and employee bene

26) $ 22¢) Net Income

Available-for-sale securitie

12

14€) Provision for income taxes

2These items are included in net periodic pensit.
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NOTE 25: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2015, the FitzGibbons Agency, LLC, ofickhPathfinder Risk Management Company, Inc. owrsl% controlling interes
purchased a small insurance agency in OnondagatZéem$225,000 in cash. The Company will estdblise allocation of the purche
price for this acquisition during the first quartér2015. Revenues for this agency approximat® B annually.

ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBIL

The Company's management, including the Companyrxipal executive officer and principal financiafficer, have evaluated t
effectiveness of the Company's "disclosure contesid procedures,” as such term is defined in R@ke15(e) promulgated under f
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, filkeHange Act"). Based upon their evaluation, theggpal executive officer and princiy
financial officer concluded that, as of the endttod period covered by this report, the Companyssldsure controls and procedures v
effective for the purpose of ensuring that the iinfation required to be disclosed in the report$ tha Company files or submits under
Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Casion (the "SEC") (1) is recorded, processed, suimpthand reported within the tit
periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, @)dis accumulated and communicated to the Compamanagement, including
principal executive and principal financial offiseas appropriate to allow timely decisions regaydequired disclosure.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANREPORTINC

Management's report on internal control over finaneeporting is contained in "ltem 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
this annual report in Form 10-K.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of the Company's independent registeredipualgicounting firm regarding interr
control over financial reporting pursuant to théesuof the SEC Act that exempts the Company froch sattestation and requires @
management's report.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN

There were no changes in the Company's interngtaoover financial reporting that occurred duritige Company's last fiscal quarter -
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtreer financial reporting.

ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE, COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 16 (A)
OF EXCHANGE ACT

(a) Information concerning the directors of the Compamniyncorporated by reference hereunder in the Gamys Proxy Materials for tl
Annual Meeting of Shareholde!

(b) Set forth below is information concerning the Exe@iOfficers of the Company at December 31, 2(

Name Age Positions Held With the Company

Thomas W. Schneidkt 53 President and Chief Executive Offic

James A. Dowd, CP. a7 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic

Edward A. Mervine 58 Senior Vice President, General Cour

Melissa A. Miller 57 Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Offi

Daniel Phillips 50 Senior Vice President, Chief Information Offic

Ronald Tascarella 56 Senior Vice President, Chief Credit Officer

ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to management compensatiawhtransactions required under this item is ipoated by reference hereunder in
Company's Proxy Materials for the Annual Meetingbareholders under the caption "Compensation Ctiaehi

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorpaatby reference hereunder in the Company's Proxieats for the Annual Meeting
Shareholders under the caption "Voting SecuritiesRrincipal Holders Thereof".

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpaatby reference hereunder in the Company's Proxieats for the Annual Meeting
Shareholders under the caption "Transactions wéthath Related Persons”.

ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@ctby reference hereunder in the Company's Proxieats for the Annual Meeting
Shareholders under the caption "Audit and RelatssF
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PART IV

ITEM 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(8)(1) Financial StatementsFhe Company's consolidated financial statementsthie years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013hta
with the Report of Independent Registered Publicodaiting Firm are filed as part of this Form KGeport. See "ltem 8: Financ
Statements and Supplementary Data."

(8)(2) Financial Statement Schedulesl-financial statement schedules have been othétethe required information is inapplicable cs
been included in "ltem 7: Management Discussion/amalysis."

(b)  Exhibits

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Pathfinder Bancorpgclr(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit ®1Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc
Registration Statement on Form S-1, file no. 3386/, originally filed on June 11, 2014)

3.2 Bylaws of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporatedeim by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Pathfinder Bampg Inc.'s Registratic
Statement on Form S-1, file no. 333-196676, orifyrfded on June 11, 2014)

3.3 Articles Supplementary to the Company's Articles lnforporation establishing the terms for the Serie Preferred Stoc
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1P@thfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s Current Report on F@&4, file no. 00136695
originally filed on October 22, 2014)

4.1 Form of Stock Certificate of Pathfinder Banqzdnc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Extiltio Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, file no. 3386I/®, originally filed on June 11, 2014)

4.2 Indenture between Pathfinder Bancorp, Infedaral corporation, and Wilmington Trust Compaay frustee, dated March 22, 2007
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4. Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s Current Report on F8fK, file no. 001-36695,
originally filed on October 22, 2014)

4.3 Supplemental Indenture between Pathfinder &andnc. and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustis#ed October 16, 2014
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4. P&ihfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s Current Report on F8fi file no. 001-36695,
originally filed on October 22, 2014)

4.4 Form of Stock Certificate for the Series AfBned Stock (Incorporated herein by referencexiiliit 4.3 to Pathfinder Bancorp,
Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K, file no. 001-866originally filed on October 22, 2014)

10.1 Pathfinder Bank 1997 Stock Option Plan (Ipooaited herein by reference to Appendix A to Patidir Bancorp, Inc's Registration
Statement on Form S-4, file no. 333-36051, oridynfilled on September 19, 1997)

10.2 2010 Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plarc@tporated by reference to Appendix A to PathfinBancorp, Inc's definitiv
proxy statement on Schedule 14A for Pathfinder Bamcinc.'s Annual Meeting of Shareholders, file 86023601, originally filet
on March 26, 2010)

10.3 2003 Executive Deferred Compensation Placo(porated herein by reference to the Company'siAinReport on Form 18-for the
year ended December 31, 2008 file no.-23601
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.17

10.18

2003 Trustee Deferred Fee Plan (Incorporiagedin by reference to the Company's Annual Repoftorm 10K for the year ende
December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Employment Agreement between Pathfinder Bank arahEs W. Schneider, President and Chief ExecutiVieéf(Incorporated k
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Pathfinder Bancorg,'WAnnual Report on Form I0for the year ended December 31, 2008, file
000-23601, originally filed on March 27, 2009)

Employment Agreement between Pathfinder Bank andvaEdl A. Mervine, Vice President, General Counsetl &ecretar
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Fattér Bancorp, Inc.'s Annual Report on FormKL@ar the year ended December
2008, file no. 000-23601, originally filed on Mar2f, 2009)

Change of Control Agreement between Pathfinder Band Ronald Tascarella (Incorporated by referemcdesthibit 10.7 ti
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s Annual Report on ForrrKlfor the year ended December 31, 2008, file i®-23601, originally filed o
March 27, 2009)

Change of Control Agreement between Pathfinder BartkJames A. Dowd (Incorporated by reference tuliix10.8 to Pathfindk
Bancorp, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for ylear ended December 31, 2008, file no. @8601, originally filed on March 2
2009)

Change of Control Agreement between Pathfinder BantkMelissa A. Miller (Incorporated by referenoebBixhibit 10.9 to Pathfind
Bancorp, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for ylear ended December 31, 2008, file no. @8601, originally filed on March 2
2009)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwaghfinder Bank and Thomas W. Schneider (Incotpdréy reference
Exhibit 10.11 to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s AnnRa&lport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe2808, file no. 00®3601
originally filed on March 27, 2009)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwbe Bank and Thomas W. Schneider (Incorporatedeligrence to tt
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreemetuidmn Pathfinder Bank and Thomas W. SchneidertefeeEebruary 24, 20:
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Ratler Bancorp, Inc.'s Current Report Form 8-Ke filo. 00023601, originally filet
on February 25, 2014)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreemetwdsn Pathfinder Bank and Edward A. Mervine effectrebruary 24, 20:
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Ratler Bancorp, Inc.'s Current Report Form 8-Kg filo. 00023601, originally filet
on February 25, 2014)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreemeihwdmn Pathfinder Bank and James A. Dowd effectigbrérary 24, 201
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Ratler Bancorp, Inc.'s Current Report Form 8-Ke filo. 00023601, originally filet
on February 25, 2014)

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust amonbfiRdér Bancorp, Inc., a federal corporation, asr&or, Wilmington Tru:
Company, as Delaware and Institutional Trustee, thedadministrative trustees of the Pathfinderutay Trust Il (Incorporate
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pathfindean&orp, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K, file 80136695, originally filed o
October 22, 2014)

Amendment two to the Trustee Deferral Fem Rled herewith

Amendment one to the Executive Deferral Gamsption Plan filed herewith
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10.19 Amendment one to the Supplemental Exec&ate@ement Plan filed herewith

14

21

23
311
31.2
32
101

Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference thikik 14 to Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s Annual Repor Form 10K for the year ende
December 31, 2003, file no. (-23601, originally filed on March 31, 200

Subsidiaries of Registrant (Incorporated hereinrdfgrence to Exhibit 21 to Pathfinder Bancorp, 'fh&egistration Statement
Form -1, file no. 33-196676, originally filed on June 11, 201

Consent of Bonadio & Co., LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Officer puemt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6220
Certification of Chief Financial Officer puient to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6220
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 ¢ tharbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 40Refulation SF: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Conditioro®ecember 31, 20:
and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Inedor the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2Gi)3hé Consolidate
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the yeadederDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, (iv) the Conselii@tatements
Shareholders' Equity for the years ended Decembe?@®14 and 2013, (v) the Consolidated Statemen@aeh Flows for the yee
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, and (vi) thestiotthe Consolidated Financial Statem:
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of gmufities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company hag dalised this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly anigkd.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Date: March 18, 2015 By: /sl Thomas W. Schneider

Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé of 1934, this report has been signed belothdjollowing persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbsated

By: /s/ Thomas W. Schneid By: /s/ James A. Dow
Thomas W. Schneider, President i James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President .
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office
(Principal Executive Officer (Principal Financial Officer
Date March 18, 201! Date March 18, 201!
By: /s/ Lloyd Stemple By: /s/ Richard M. Jablonk
Lloyd Stemple, Directo Richard M. Jablonka, Vice President ¢
Date March 18, 201! Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer

By:  /s/John P. Funiciell
John Funiciello, Directo By: /s/ William A. Barclay
Date March 18, 2015 William A. Barclay, Directol
Date March 18, 201!

By: /s/ David A. Ayouk

David Ayoub, Directol By: /s/ Chris R. Burrit
Date  March 18, 2015 Chris R. Burritt, Directo
Date: March 18, 201!
By: /s/ George P. Joyc
George P. Joyce, Direct By: /s/ John F. Sharke
Date: March 18, 2015 John F. Sharkey, Direct:
Date: March 18, 201!

By: /s/ Adam C. Gags

Adam C. Gagas, Direct
Date: March 18, 201!
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EXHIBIT 10.17

AMENDMENT TWO TO THE
PATHFINDER BANK
AMENDED AND RESTATED
TRUSTEE DEFERRED FEE PLAN

This Amendment (the "Amendment”) to the PathfinBank Amended and Restated Trustee Deferred Fee(fPlariPlan’) is mac
by Pathfinder Bank (the "Employer"). Capitalizednis which are not defined herein shall have theesaeaning as set forth in the Plan.

WHEREAS , the Employer adopted the Plan, as amended atadeéseffective January 1, 2005; and

WHEREAS , the Employer wishes to adopt this Amendment Tavthe Plan to formalize the Board action taken @c@&mber 201
to allow participants in the Plan (formerly, therti$tees," currently referred to as the "Directots"jncrease their deferral percentage
deferrals commencing in the 2014 calendar yearafted, and

WHEREAS , the Employer reserves the right under Sectiod 18.the Plan to amend the Plan at anytime, pravittet th
amendment does not reduce the Trustees' accruefitibareunder.

NOW, THEREFORE , this Amendment Two is hereby adopted, as foll@ffective immediately, unless otherwise specifetbw:

1.The term "Trustee" throughout the Plan shall éended to refer to "Director” rather than "Trustaet]l the name of the Plan shal
changed to the "Amended and Restated Director Befdfee Plan".

2.Section Il Establishment of Rabbi Trustis hereby amended by the revising the languagadh Section to read as follows:

"The Bank may establish a rabbi trust into whick Bank may contribute assets which shall be heddeth,
pursuant to the agreement which establishes suith teust. The contributed assets shall be sulifg¢he claims of the
Bank's creditors in the event of the Bank's "Ineaby" as defined in the agreement which establishek rabbi trust, until
the contributed assets are paid to the TrusteehemBeneficiary(ies) in such manner and at suclesims specified in this
Plan. The rabbi trust and any contributions t@ssets held therein shall conform to the term&i@frabbi trust agreement
which has been established in conjunction with Bi&n. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to toatrary, in the event
of an expected Change in Control, each Directdestive Contribution Account balance shall be paydthe Bank into an
irrevocable rabbi trust that is a grantor trust tfee benefit of the Directors and their benefigarat least thirty (30) days
prior to the effective date of such Change in GantrThe rabbi trust shall be established in acaocg with Internal
Revenue Service Rev. Proc. 92-64 and any othercapf# law. Such trust shall have an independestde, as selected by
the Compensation Committee of the Bank. The Banltg successor) shall pay the trustee fees flifistime of the trust.
The rabbi trust shall be dissolved after all asseésdistributed from the trust to the Directorsl aheir beneficiaries in
accordance with the terms of the Plan."
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3.Effective December 18, 2013, the date of the 8eapprovalSection Il Deferred Compensationis hereby revised to read to i
the following language to the end of that Section:

"Commencing with deferrals for the 2014 Plan Yead &or all Deferral Periods thereafter until chamds amendment or
Board resolution (which for purposes hereof, shalldleemed an amendment to this Plan), the Directdrthe Bank agree
that the Director may defer into his Elective Cdnition Account on a monthly basis up to the lessfei) Two Thousand
Dollars ($2,000.00), or (ii) One Hundred Percen®O%) of the retainer and monthly fees which theeBtor would

otherwise be entitled to receive from the Bankh@ €Company for each month of the Deferral Peridte total deferral
during the term of the Deferral Period shall nateed the Director's Projected Deferral, without i8lazf Director approval.

The specific amount of the Director's monthly defdr compensation shall be designated in the Dirscideferral

Agreement and shall apply only to compensatioribattable to services not yet performed."”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date provided below.

PATHFINDER BANK

February 26, 2015 By: /S/ Thomas W. Schneider

Print Name: Thomas W. Schneider

Title: President and CEO
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EXHIBIT 10.18

AMENDMENT ONE TO THE
PATHFINDER BANK
EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

This Amendment (the "Amendment") to the Pathfin@@mk Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (ther'®lés made b
Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). Capitalized termdahhare not defined herein shall have the same imgas set forth in the Plan.

WHEREAS , the Bank adopted the Plan, as amended and ikstdfiective January 1, 2005; and

WHEREAS , the Bank wishes to adopt this Amendment One ¢oPlan to revise the requirements related to thebkshment an
funding of an irrevocable rabbi trust for the bénef participants in the Plan.

WHEREAS , the Bank reserves the right under Section 13the@Plan to amend the Plan at anytime, providatittite amendme
does not reduce the Executives' accrued benefiuhéer.

NOW, THEREFORE , this Amendment One is hereby adopted, as foll@fisctive immediately, unless otherwise specifietbw:
1. Section Il Establishment of Rabbi Trustis hereby amended by revising the language in Section to read as follows:

"The Bank may establish a rabbi trust into whick Bank may contribute assets which shall be heddeth
pursuant to the agreement which establishes suahi taust. The contributed assets shall be sulife¢he claims of tr
Bank's creditors in the event of the Bank's "Ineoby" as defined in the agreement which establisbek rabbi trust, un
the contributed assets are paid to the TrusteehanBeneficiary(ies) in such manner and at suclesgims specified in tt
Plan. The rabbi trust and any contributions t@ssets held therein shall conform to the term&@frabbi trust agreems
which has been established in conjunction with Bie&m. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to toatrary, in the eve
of an expected Change in Control, each Executlie'stive Contribution Account balance shall be gajdthe Bank into ¢
irrevocable rabbi trust that is a grantor trusttfoe benefit of the Executives and their benefiemat least thirty (30) da
prior to the effective date of such Change in GantrThe rabbi trust shall be established in acancg with Intern:
Revenue Service Rev. Proc. 82-and any other applicable law. Such trust di@te an independent trustee, as select
the Compensation Committee of the Bank. The Bankt¢ successor) shall pay the trustee fees folifistime of the trust
The rabbi trust shall be dissolved after all asse¢sdistributed from the trust to the Executivad #heir beneficiaries
accordance with the terms of the Plan."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been exelcaseof the date provided below.

PATHFINDER BANK

February 26, 2015 By: /s/ Thomas W. Schneider

Print Name: Thomas W. Schneider

Title: President and CEO
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EXHIBIT 10.19
AMENDMENT ONE TO THE
PATHFINDER BANK
SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN

This Amendment (the "Amendment"”) to the Pathfin@anmk Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (ther'® is made b
Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). Capitalized termdakhare not defined herein shall have the same imgas set forth in the Plan.

WHEREAS , the Bank adopted the Plan, effective Januar@142and

WHEREAS , the Bank wishes to adopt this Amendment One ¢oPdan to revise the requirements related to thebkshment an
funding of an irrevocable rabbi trust for the bénef participants in the Plan.

WHEREAS , the Bank reserves the right under Section 7 thefPlan to amend the Plan at anytime, providetlttemamendme
does not reduce the Executives' accrued benefitiheer.

NOW, THEREFORE , this Amendment One is hereby adopted, as foll@fisctive immediately, unless otherwise specifietbw:
1.Section VIl is hereby amended by the addingftiiewing paragraph at the end thereof:
"Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contran the event of an expected Change in Contath Executive
Account Balance shall be paid by the Bank into mevbcable rabbi trust that is a grantor trust thoe benefit of th
Executives and their beneficiaries at least th{&y) days prior to the effective date of such CheaimgControl. The rab
trust shall be established in accordance with ir@eRevenue Service Rev. Proc. ®2-and any other applicable law. S
trust shall have an independent trustee, as sdlbgtthe Compensation Committee of the Bank. TaekBor its successt
shall pay the trustee fees for the lifetime of tifust. The rabbi trust shall be dissolved afteassets are distributed from
trust to the Executives and their beneficiarieadnordance with the terms of the Plan."
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been exelcaseof the date provided below.

PATHFINDER BANK

February 26, 2015 By: /s/ Thomas W. Schneider

Print Name: Thomas W. Schneider

Title: President and CEO
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EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Jurisdiction or Stal

Company Owned by Percent Owne  of Incorporatior
Pathfinder Banl Pathfinder Bancorp, In 100% New York
Pathfinder Statutory Trust Il Pathfinder Bancdng, 100% Delaware
Pathfinder Commercial Bar Pathfinder Banl 100% New York
Pathfinder REIT, Inc Pathfinder Banl 100% New York
Whispering Oaks Development Co Pathfinder Banl 100% New York
Pathfinder Banl 100% New York

Pathfinder Risk Management Company |

EXHIBIT 23: CONSENT OF BONADIO & CO., LLP

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No.-333081) of Pathfinder Bancorp,
Inc. and subsidiaries of our report, dated March2Dd.5, relating to the consolidated financialetatnts, which appears in this Form 10-K,

for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Bonadio & Co., LLP
Syracuse, New York
March 18, 201!

/ s/ BONADIO & CO., LLP
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EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15¢-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002

I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exee@ifficer, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual report on Form 18fathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or eondttate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantééments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly prese
in all material respects the consolidated financaaddition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting, to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external pseg in accordance with generally accepted acemuptinciples:

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbd report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such evaluati
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgggteant's internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anbalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauanmittee of the registrant's board of directors

(a) All significant deficiencies and material easses in the design or operation of internalrobot/er financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; an
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilnes management or other employees who have disattirole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 18, 2015 /s/ Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15¢-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002

I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chieéicial Officer, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual report on Form 18fathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantééments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly presel
in all material respects the consolidated financaaddition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting, to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
consolidated financial statements external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principle

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and pres@antbd report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thrgggteant's internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anbalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauanmittee of the registrant's board of directors

(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refieaincial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilnes management or other employees who have disattirole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 18, 2015 /s/ James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




EXHIBIT 32 Section 1350 Certification of the ChiefExecutive and Chief Financial Officers

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Execuffecer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice Presiderd €hief Financial Officer «
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company"), eachifgeitt his capacity as an officer of the Compangtthe has reviewed the Annual Repo
the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended Dece®be?014 and that to the best of his knowledge:

1. the report fully complies with the requiremeotsSections 13(a) of the Securities Exchange AdtS#4; and

2. the information contained in the report fairhggents, in all material respects, the consolidfiteahcial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

The purpose of this statement is solely to comph Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Udlitates Code, as amended by Se
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

March 18, 2015 /sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 18, 2015 /s/ James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




